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210 N Park Ave
Winter Park, FL
32789

PO Drawer 200
Winter Park, FL
32790-0200

Tel 407-740-8575
Fax 407-740-0613

tmi@tmin¢c com

October 21, 2005
Via Overnight Delivery

Ms Sharla Dillon

Docket Room Manager
Tennessee Regulatory Authonty
460 James Robertson Parkway
Nashwville, TN 37243-0505

DS~ 00 I

RE: Network Telephone Corporation; Application for Transfer of Control

Dear Ms Diallon.

Enclosed please find one (1) oniginal and three (13) copies of the Application of Network
Telephone Corporation for Authority to Transfer Control.

Questions regarding the attached information may be directed to my attention at (407) 740-

3031 or via e-mail at sthomas@tminc com

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by date stamping the extra copy of this cover letter
and returning 1t 1n the self-addressed, stamped envelope enclosed for this purpose

Sincerely,

The Vs

Sharon Thomas
Consultant

Enclosure

cc. M. Ring — Network Telephone
C. Pizer - Talk

File  Talk — Network Tel Acquisition

TMS. ~ TNx0502




BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
In Re: Application of Network Telephone )
Corporation for Authority to Transfer )  Docket No
Control )

APPLICATION

Pursuant to Section 65-4-113 of the Tennessee Code, Network Telephone Corporation ("Network
Telephone" or "Applicant") hereby requests authornity for its proposed Transfer of Control (“Transfer”) to Talk
America Inc. (“Talk America” or “Buyer”) After consummation of the proposed transfer of control, NT
Corporation (“NT Corp ™), the parent of Network Telephone, will be a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Talk
America which will remain a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Talk America Holdngs, Inc  Thus, Talk
America Holdings, Inc will become the new ultimate parent company of Network Telephone. Network
Telephone proposes to retain 1ts name, tanffs, and operating authority in Tennessee.

Applicant respectfully requests that the Tennessee Regulatory Authority ("TRA") 1ssue an order
approving the proposed Transfer, and offers the following information in support of this request
L THE APPLICANT

Network Telephone Corporation (“Network Telephone™), a privately-held Flornida corporation, 1s a
direct wholly owned subsidiary of NT Corporation (“NT Corp.”), a privately-held Delaware corporation, based
n Pensacola, Florida. Network Telephone 1s a facilities-based telecommunications company that provides local
and long distance telephone service, and data services such as high-speed connectivity, security, web hosting
and network services, primarily to small and medium sized business customers in Alabama, Florida, Georgia,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississipp1, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee

Network Telephone 1s authorized to provide local and long distance telecommunications services in
the state of Tennessee, having been granted authority as a facilities-based competitive local exchange carrer 1in

Case No. 00-00009 on June 23, 2000, and long distance resale authority in Case No 98-00349 on February 2,



1999. Network Telephone currently serves approximately 1,942 local and long distance customers in
Tennessee Coptes of Network Telephone's Tennessee CCNs are included in Attachment 1. A copy of the
Applicant's Tennessee Secretary of State authonty 1s included in Attachment 2.
IL THE BUYER

Talk America Inc , a Pennsylvania corporation headquartered in New Hope, Pennsylvania, 1s a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of Talk America Holdings, Inc. ("Talk Holdings), a publicly held Delaware
corporation located at the same address. Talk America 1s a certificated telecommunications carrier in the state
of Tennessee, having been granted long distance resale authority by Commission Order in Case Number 95-
02758 and Case Number 99-00610 1ssued September 7, 1995 and local exchange authority by Commussion
Order 1n Case Number 02-00991 1ssued December 17,2002 Copies of Talk America's Tennessee CCNs are
included in Attachment 1. A copy of Talk America's Tennessee Secretary of State authority 1s included i
Attachment 2.

While the services currently provided by Network Telephone 1n Tennessee will not be "transferred" to
Talk America, but will continue to be provided by Network Telephone, Talk America clearly has the financial
and managerial capabilities to efficiently provide those services and will place Network Telephone n a
stronger financial and managerial position going forward. The financial statements provided in Attachment 3
demonstrate Talk America's financial strength
1. THE AGREEMENT

On October 18, 2005, the parties signed an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Agreement’)
providing for Talk America’s acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of NT Corp. (the
“Transaction”). Following completion of the Transaction, Network Telephone will remain a direct, wholly
owned subsidiary of NT Corp and NT Corp will be a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Talk America, which

1tself will remain a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of Talk Holdings Corporate organizational charts of Talk
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America and Network Telephone before and after the transaction are included as Attachment 4. A copy of the
Agreement and Plan of Merger 1s included as Attachment 5

IV. CUSTOMER IMPACT

The proposed Transaction will be generally transparent to customers of Network Telephone. In
particular, because the Transaction 1s a stock transaction, the transfer of control of Network Telephone will not
result 1n a change of carrier for any of the Network Telephone customers Network Telephone's customers n
Tennessee will not be transferred to Talk America as a result of this transaction. Immediately after completion
of the Transaction, Network Telephone will continue to provide the same services at the same rates, terms and
conditions as at present and any future changes 1n the rates, terms and conditions of service will be made
consistent with applicable law. The Transaction 1s not expected to result in any discontinuance of serv1'ce for
the Network Telephone customers Furthermore, 1n addition to having access to Talk’s expertenced and high-
quality management team, the operations of Network Telephone in numerous mstances will continue to be
supervised by Network Telephone’s management, technical and customer service personnel.

No notice to Network Telephone's customers 1s required under TRA Rule 1220-4-2-.56(2)(d), because
this transaction does not mvolve a transfer of Network Telephone's Tennessee customer base. As noted above,
Network Telephone will continue to operate as a separate entity and will continue to serve its existing
Tennessee customer base under 1ts current operating authority and pursuant to its existing Tenm?ssee tariffs

V. PUBLIC INTEREST STATEMENT

The Apphcant respectfully submuts that the Transaction serves the public interest  After
consummation of the Transaction, Network Telephone will continue to operate under 1ts same name and
operating authonties as at present The Transaction involves no change 1n the entity providing service to
customers, the facilities used to provide such service or the rates, terms and conditions of such service. All
existing taniffs will remain in place. The transfer of control will be generally transparent to customers and will

not have any adverse impact on them; they will continue to use the same number to reach customer service




The only change will be 1n the ultimate ownership of Network Telephone.

The Applicants expect that the Transaction will increase competition 1n the telecommunications market
by strengthening Talk’s position as an effective and multifaceted telecommunications carner. The Transaction
will allow Talk to combine 1ts financial, technical and market resources and expertise with that of Network
Telephone, thereby enhancing 1ts ability to provide reliable, competitively priced services to customers Talk
will be able to expand 1its product offerings by adding the offerings of Network Telephone to its current
offerings.

Both Talk and Network Telephone have created strong customer service organizations that provide
high levels of customer satisfaction as demonstrated by their low customer churn rates. Botﬁ organizations
share similar technology platforms and Network Telephone’s focus on the small to medium sized business
customers will complement Talk’s focus on the consumer and small business markets. In an era of increasing
telecommunications products and services, these customers require expert assistance to find the best solution
for their telecommunications requirements. The similarity of business models between Talk and Network
Telephone means that integrating their operations will not occasion significant changes in what either company
does a-nd thus the Transaction poses little risk to customers

The transfer of control of Network Telephone to Talk does not result in any antxcompet}tlve effects
Network Telephone and Talk together will achieve economues of scale and scope, which will enhance the
company’s ability to roll out new products and services and expand into new markets. Although Network
Telephone and Talk both provide service 1n the markets served by Network Telephone, neither has sigmificant
market share in any of these markets, and the combined market share post-closmg will not exceed 10 percent in
any market. In all instances, the incumbent local exchange carrier has a virtual monopoly and this Transaction
will not diminish the ILEC’s dominant market position Accordingly, the transfer of control of Network

Telephone to Talk will increase, not degrade, the competitiveness of these markets



VL CONTACT INFORMATION
The name and address of the individual to contact regarding this filing 1s

Sharon Thomas

Technologies Management, Inc

210 Park Avenue North

Winter Park, Florida 32789
Telephone- (407) 740-3031
Facsimile, (407) 740-0613
email sthomas@tminc com

The name and address of the individual who currently handles regulatory affairs on behalf of Network
Telephone 1s.

Margaret Ring
Director of Regulatory

3300 North Pace Boulevard
Pensacola, FL 32350
(850) 465-1748 (telephone)
(850) 432-0218 (facsimile)
margaret.ning@networktelephone net

The name and address of the individual who handles regulatory affairs on behalf of Talk America 1s.

Francie McComb, Vice President of Regulatory Affairs
6805 Route 202
New Hope, PA 18938
Phone 215-862-1517
Fax. 215-862-1085
e-mail. francie@talk com
A complete listing of officers and directors for Network Telephone and Talk America 1s included as
Attachment 6.
VII. CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Applicant and Buyer respectfully submut that the pubhc mterest, converence,
and necessity would be furthered by grant of this Application, that the application satisfies the requirements for
approval contained in Section 65-4-113(b) of the Tennessee Code, and respectfully request that the

Commission approve the transfer



VERIFICATION

I, Danyelle Kennedy-Lantz, am Chief Financial Officer of Network Telephone Corporation and am
authorized to represent it and to make this verification on 1ts behalf The statements contaned n this
Application and related attachments as they relate to Network Telephone Corporation and the transaction
described therein, except as otherwise specifically attributed, are true and correct to the best of my knowledge
and belef.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing 1s true and correct

T2 M A A

Anyelle Kefinedy-Lantz
Chief Financial Officer
q

N
Sworn to and subscribed before me this OTD day of Qcm_, 2005.

Do M@

Notary Public

My Commuission expires

2\ 8%\ 200




VERIFICATION
I, Aloysius T Lawn IV, am Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Talk America Inc. and
am authorized to represent 1t and make this verification on its behalf. The statements contaned 1 this
Application and related attachments they relate to Talk America Inc. and the transaction described therein,
except as otherwise specifically attributed, are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and behief.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing 1s true and correct.

e 770

Aloys s T Lawn IV
EVP-General Counsel

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of @(N’J/\ , 2005.
@mw WCCuMen
: Q \ COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
Notanal Seal
Notary Public Amy McCusker, Notary Public

New Hope Boro, Bucks County
My Commission Expires May 20, 2008

Member, Pennsylvania Association Of Notaries,

My Commusston expires

S\aolct




Attachment 1

Network Telephone Corporation
and
Talk America Inc.

Tennessee Regulatory Authority CCNs
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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY AT

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE
June 23, 2000

IN RE:

APPLICATION OF NETWORK TELEPHONE DOCKET NO. 00-00009
CORPORATION FOR A CERTIFICATE OF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY TO
PROVIDE FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL
EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
SERVICES IN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE

(RS RNIE T A A A A 4

ORDER GRANTING CERTIFICATE OF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

On February 15, 2000, this matter came before the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
(*Authority”) upon the Application of Network Telephone Corporation (“Network™) for a
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity as a Competing Telecommunications Service
Provider to offer a full array of telecommunications services within the State of Tennessee (the

«Application™). The Application was made pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-4-201, ef seg.

LEGAL STANDARD FOR GRANTING CCN

Network’s Application was considered in light of the criteria for granting a certificate of
public convcnience and necessity (“CCN") as set forth in applicable statutes. Tenn. Code Ann. §
65-4-20] providcs, in part:

(2) No pubic utility shall establish or begin the construction of, or operate
any line, plant, or system, or route in or into a municipality or other territory
already receiving a like service from another public utility, or establish sexvice
therein, without fitst having obtained from the authority, after written application
and hearing, a certificate that the present or future public convenience and
necessity require or will require such construction, establishment, and operation,
and no person or corporation not at the time 2 public utility shall commence the
construction of any plant, line, system or route to be operated as a public utility,
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ot the operation of which would constitute the same, of the owner OF operator
thereof, 3 public utility as defined by 1aw, without having ficst obtaiped, in ke
mannecr, a similar certificate - - -

- fe ®

(c) Aftex notice to the jncumbent 1ocal excbange wlephqne company and
other interested parties and following 2 hearing, the _authonty shall _grat_it a
certificate of copvemence and necessity 1o 2 competing telecommunicatons

<ervice provider if after examining the evidence presented, the authonty finds:

(1) The applicant has demonstrated that it will adhere to all applicable
commission policies, qules and orders; and :

(2) The applicant possesses sufficient mapagerial, financial, and technical
abilities to provide the applied for services.
An authority order, including appropriat® findings of fact 'and oonclusi_ons- of law,
denying ©f approving. with or without modiﬁc?ation, an application for

certification of 2 competing telecommunications service providet chall be entered
no more than sixty (60) days from the filing of the application-

(d) Subsection (c) is not applicable to areas served by an incambent ocal
exchange telephone company with fewer than 100,000 total access lines in this
state unless such company voluntarily enters into an igterconnection agreement
with a competing telecommunications service provider of unless such incurnbent
local exchange telephone company applies for 2 certificate 10 pravide

telecommunications services in an area outside its service are existing on June 6,
1995.

In addition, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-5-212, competing telecommunications

providers arc required to file with the Authority (1) 2 plan containing the provider's plan for

purchasing goods and services from small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses

and (2) information on programs that might provide technical assistance to such businesses.

INTERVENORS

Publjc notice of the hearing in this matter was made by the Authority’s Executive

Secretary.,

ry, purseant to Tenn. Code Apn. § 65-4-204. No interested persons sought interventio
n

prior to or during the hearing.

PAGE B3
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NETWORK'’S HEARING

The Application of Network was uncontested. At the hearing held on February 15, 2000,
Network was represented by Mr. H. LaDon Baltimore, Esq. of Farrar & Bates, 211 7th Avenue
North, Suite 420, Nashville, Tenncssee 347219. In addition, Mr. Johnny Matthews, Network’s
Chief Financial Officer, presented testimony and was subject to examination by the Authority’s
Directors. Upon Network’s conclusion of the proof in its case, the Authority pranted Network’s

Application based upon the following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

L APPLICANT’S QUALIFICATIONS

1. Network is a Florida corporation that was incorporated on October 27, 1997 and
reccived authority to transact business in the State of Tennessee on December 18, 1999.

2. The complete street address of Network’s principal place of business is 304 South
Palafox, Pensacola, Florida 32501. The phone number is (850) 432-4855, and the fax number is
(850) 470-9641. Network’s counsel is the sbove mentioned H. LaDon Baltimore.

3. The Application and supporting documentary information existing in the record
indicate that Applicant has the requisite technical and managerial ability necessary to provide a
full array of local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services within the State of
Tennessee on 2 facilities-based and resale basis.

4 Applicant has the necessary capital and financial capability to provide the services
it proposes to offer.

5. Applicant has represented that it will adhere to all applicable policies, rules and

orders of the Authority.

IL PROPOSED SERVICES
1. Applicant intends to provide facilities-based local exchange telecommunications

services as would normally be provided by an incumbent local exchange telephone company

including, but not limited to, dedicated and switched access service, private line services, local




15/28/2895 11:3% 85A-432-A218 REGLILATORY

'Dor, Baltimore (Business Fax)' 21:18; p 9 PAGE

dial tone, toll service, and enhanced services. The Applicant will initially provide its facilities-
based local exchange service in Memphis, Nashville, Knoxville and Chattanooga.

2. Except as may be authorized by law, Applicant does not intend to serve any areas
currently being served by an incumbent local telephone company with fewer than 100,000 total
access lines where local exchange competition is prohibited pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 64-4-
201(d). |
i PERMITTING COMPETITION TO SERVE THE PUBLIC CONVENIENCE

AND NECESSITY _

Upon a review of the Application and the record in this matter, the Authority finds that
approval of Network’s Aprlication would inure to the benefit of the present and future public
convenience by permitting competition in the telecommunications service markets in the state
and by fostering the development of an efficient technologically gdvanced statewide system of

telecommunications services.

IV. SMALL AND MINORITY-OWNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS
PARTICIPATION PLAN & BUSINESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

1. Applicant has filed a satisfactory small and minority-owned telecommunications
business participation plan, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-5-212 and the Authority’s Rules.

2. Applicant has acknowledged its obligation to contribute to the funding of the
small and minority-owned telecommunications business assistance program, as set forth in Tenn.

Code Ann. § 65-5-213.

ITIS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:
1. The Applications of Network Telephone Corporation as applied for is approved;

2. Any party aggrieved by the Authority’s decision in this matter may file a Petition

for Reconsideration with the Authority within fifteen (15) days from and after the date of this
Order.
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3. Any party aggrieved with the Authority’s decision in this matter has the

right of judicial review of filing a Petition for Review in the Tennessee Court of Appeals, Middle

Section, within sixty (60) days from and after the date of this Order.

vi alone, ®hairman

L IT., tor

ara Kyle, Director

ATTEST:

KDt gaetk

K. David Waddel], Executive Secretary .
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TENNESSEE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
" 460 JAMES ROBERTSON PARKWAY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0505
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KEITH BISSELL, cmmian 2R
STEVE HEWLETT, coMmiSSIONER

SARA KYLE, COMMISSIONER

PAUL ALLEN, EXEcuTIVE DIRECTHR
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Company ID: 00112298
Tel-Save, Inc.

22 Village Square, Ste. 22
New Hope, PA 18938

BEFORE THE TENNESSEE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
Nashville, Tennessee ' September 12, 1995

IN RE: CASE NUMBER: 95-02758

Application for Authority for Operator Services and/or Resell Interexchange
(Long Distance) Telecommunications Service and/or Telecommunications Operator

Services in Tennessee Pursuant to Rule 1220-4-2-.57.
-~-0RBER---

This matter is before the Tennessee Public Service Commission upon the
application of the above-mentioned company for certification as a long
distance/interexchange reseller or telecommunication operator service
provider in Tennessee. The Commission considered this application at its
regularly scheduled Commission Conference held on September 7, 1995

and concluded that the applicant has met all the requirements for
certification and should be authorized to provide the resell of
interexchange telecommunications service and/or an operator service on an

intrastate basis.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the above-mentioned company is issued a Certificate of Convenience
and Necessity as an interexchange telecommuications reseller and/or an
operator service provider for state-wide service in Tennessee as specified
in its application on file with the Commission.

2. That said company shall complly with all applicable Commission rules and
regulations. l

3. That this order shall be retained as proof of certification with this
Commission, and may be used to obtain appropriately tariffed access service
and billing arrangements from Commission authorized telecommuications

service providers.

4. That any party aggrieved with the Commission's decision in this matter
may file a Petition for Reconsideration with the Commission within ten (10)
days from and after the date of this Order.

5. That any Party aggrieved with the Commission's decision in this matter
has the right of judicial review by filing a petition wj the Tennessee

Court of Appeals, Middle Section within sixty (60) day f[om and after the

date of this Order.

’Av

%ﬂissiaﬁer )

Executive Director "//9ommiséi S~——
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Company ID- 112298 .
Talk.com Holding Corp. d/b/a Network Services
Of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phone Cormpany
6805 Route 202
New Hope, PA 18938

BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
Nashville, TN September 14, 1999

IN RE: CASE NUMBER 9900610 ,
Talk com Holding Corp. d/b/a Network Services of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phonc Company namc
change from Tel-Save, Inc d/b/a Network Services of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phonc Company

---ORDER--

This matter is before the Tennessee Regulatory Authonty upon the petition of Tel-Save, Inc. d/b/a Network
Services of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phone Company to change its company name The TRA

-considered this request at their regularly scheduled Conference held on-September 14, 1999 and concluded
that the applicant has met all the TRA requirements for changing their name

Pursuant to § T.C.A. 65-4-113,
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the petition of Tel-Save, Inc d/b/a Network Services of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phone
Company Inc to change its name to Talk com Holding Corp d/b/a Network Services of New Hope
and also d/b/a The Phone Company is approved.

2 That Talk com Holding Corp d/b/a Network Services of New Hope and also d/b/a The Phone
Company 1s authonzed as an operator service provider and/or reseller of (elecommunications
services for state-wide service in Tennessee as specified in its applicaton on file with the Authority

3 That said company shall comply with all applicable TRA rules and regulations

4 That this order shall be retatned as proof of certification with this Authonty, and may bc uscd to
obtan appropriately tariffed service and billing arrangements from Authority authonzed
telecommunications service providers.

/4

’ ' 41 .~

Chai an™”

A\
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Executive Secretary | 7’ y Drrectar_ —
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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSER
December 17, 2062
IN RE:
APPLICATION OF TALK AMERICA INC,
FOR AMENDED AUTHORITY TO
PROVIDE FACILITIES-BASED

COMPETING LOCAL
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

DOCKET N3. (2-00061

INITIAL ORDER GRANTING CERTIFICATE GF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

On November 13, 2002, this matter came before the Hearing Officer of the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority (“Authority”) upon the Application for Amended Av:thority Cerz'zﬁcate to
Provide Competing Local Telecommunications Services (the “dpplication™ filed on September
12, 2002 by Talk America, Inc. fk/a Talk.com Holding Corp. and f/k/a Tel-Save, Inc. (“Talk

America™). The Application was made pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-4-201 ez seq.

LEGAL STANDARD FOR GRANTING CCN

Talk America’s Application was considered in light of the cnteria for granting a
certificate of public convenience and necessity (“CCN™) as set forth in applicable statutes. Tenn.
Code Ann. § 65-4-201 provides, in part:

(a) No public utility shall establish or begin the construction of, or operate
any hine, plant, or system, or route in or info g murnicipality or orher tetritory
already recerving a Iike service from another public utility, or establish serv; ce
therein, without first having obtained from the authority, afier written application
and hearing, a certificate that the present or future public convenience and




necessity require or wil] require such construction, establishment, and operation,
and no person or Corporation not at the time g4 public utilizy sha’] sommence the
construction of any plant, line, system or route to be operated ay a public utihty, or
the operation of which would constitute the fame, or the owner or operator
thereof, a public utility as defined by law, without having first obtained, in like
manner, a similar certificate . . . :

% % &

(c) After notice to the incumbent Iocal €xchange telephone company and
other interested parties and following a hearing, the authority shall grant a
certificate of convenience and necessity to a competing telecommunications
service provider if after examining the evidence bresented, the authority finds:

(1) The applicant has demonstrated that it wil] adhere to zl] applicable
commussion policies, rules and orders; and

(2) The applicant bossesses sufficient managerial, financial, and technyoa}
abilities to provide the applicd for services. ‘

* % %
/

(d) Subsection (c) is not a};plicable to areas served by an incumbent local
exchange telephone company with fewer than 100,000 total access hnes in this

local exchange telephone company applies for a certificate to provide
telecommumcations Services in an area outside its service area existing on June 6,

! Notwithstandmg the existence of subsection (d), the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC™) has éxpressly
breempted the Authority’s enforcement of subsection” (d) pursuant to the authority granted 1o the FCC under
47US.C § 253(d). See In Re- AVR, L P. d/b/a Hyperion of Tennessee, L, P. Peition Jor Preemption of Tennessee
Code Annotated Section 65-4-201¢d) and Tennessee Regulatory Authority Decision Denying Hyperion s Arplcation
Requesting Authority to Prowvide Service in Tennessee Rural LEC Service Area, FCC 99-100, Foc Memaorandim
Opiniton and Order (May 27, 1999); FCC Memorandum Opimon and Order (Tanuary 8, 2001

The Authority has smce issued an order expanding a competing local exchange cairier’s CCN e provide
telecommunicationg Services on a statewide bagis mcluding areas served by incumbent loca; exchange caniers with
fewer than 100,000 total access lines Tennessee. See Order Approving Application of Level 3 Comrwunications,

LLC to 4mend Is Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity, Authority Dacket Mo, 02-00230 (June 28,
2002). .

N



purchasing goods and services from small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses,
and (2) information on programs that might provide technical assistance to such businesses.

INTERVENORS

Public notice of the Hearing in this matter was issued by the Hearing Officer on
November 1, 2002, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-4-204. No intsrested persons sought
intervention prior to or during the Hearing.

TALK AMERICA’S HEARIN G

Talk America’s Application was uncontested. At the Hearing held on November 13,
2002, Mr. Alan Kirk, Director of Incumbent Local Exchange Carrer (“ILEC™) Relations,
participated in the Hearing, presented testimony, and was subject to exammation by the Hearing
Officer. Upon Talk America’s conclusion of proof in its case, the Hearing Officer granted Talk
America’s Application based upon the following findings of fact and conclusions of law-
L APPLICANT’S QUALIFICATIONS

1. Talk Amenca is a corpbration organized under the laws of the Pennsylvania on
May 17, 1989 and was qualified to transact business in Tennessee on Angust 21, 2003.

2. The complete street address of Talk America’s principal place of business 15 Talk
America Inc., 6805 Route 202, New Hope, PA 18938. The phone number i¢ (215) 862-1500 and
facsimile number is (215) 862-1085. Talk America’s counssl is Henry M. Walker, Esq., and
April A, Ingram, Esq., of Boult, Cummings, Conners & Berry, P.L.C., 414 Union Street,
Suite 1600, P.O. Box 198062, Nashville, TN 37219-8062.

3. The Application and supporting documentary information existing i the record
indicate that Talk America has the requsite technical and managerial ability to provide

competing local telecommunications services within the State of Tennessce. Specifically, Talk




Amernica’s senior management team possesses extensive busmess, technical, operarional and
regulatory telecommunications experience.

4, Talk America has the necessary capitzl and financia} ability to provide the
services it proposes to offer.

5. Talk America has represented that it will adhere to alj applicable policies, rules
and orders of the Authority. At the November 13, 2602 Hearing, Mr. Kirk stated that Talk
America will comply with the Authority’s September 9, 2002 Order in Dacket No, 01-00216, in
which the Authority approved a settlement agreement between the Consumer Services Division
of the Tennessee Regulatory Authority and Talk.com Holding Corp. relating to alleged violations
of Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-4-125(a) and (b) and Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-4-401 et seq., which
includes the implementation of safeguards designed to ensure compliance with the provisions of
these statutes.?

Il PROPOSED SERVICES

Talk America intends to offer competing local telecommunications services, including

exchange access telecommunications services, to customers within the State of Tennessee.

ffi. PERMITTING COMPETITION TO SERVE T HE PUBLIC CONVENIEN CE AND
NECESSITY

Upon a review of the Application and the record in this matter, the Hearing Cfficer finds
that approval of Talk America’s Application would inure to the benefit of the present and future
public convenience by permtting competition in the telecommunications services markets in the
State and by fostering the development of an efficient technologically advanced statewide system

of telecommunications services.

? See In Re- Talk Com, Inc., Docket No 0 1-00216, Order Approving Settlement Agreement {September 8, 2002),




IV.  SMALL AND MINORITY-OWNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS
PARTICIPATION PLAN & BUSINESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

1 Talk America Inc. has filed a satisfactory small and munority-owned
telecommunications business participation plan, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 65-5-212 and the
Authonty’s Rules.

2. Talk America has acknowledged its obligation to contribute to the funding of the

small and minority-owned telecommunications business assistance program, as set forth in Tenn.

Code Ann. § 65-5-213,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:
1. The Application of Talk America Inc. is approved; and
2. Any party aggrieved by the Hearing Officer’s decision in this matter may file a

Petition for Reconsideration within fifteen (15) days from and after the dats of this Order.

et 0Ly

J (@than N. Wike, Hearing Officer
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Business Information Search

Page 1 of 1

[ Secretary of State Web Site I I Instructions ]
Name I.D. Number
NETWORK TELEPHONE CORPORATION 0347356
Business Type™: CORPORATION
Profit/Nonprofit: FOR PROFIT
Status™: ACTIVE
Date of Formation/Qualification: 03/13/1998
Domestic/Foreign: FOREIGN
Place of Incorporation/Organization: FL
Duration: PERPETUAL
FYC(Fiscal Year Closing) Month: DECEMBER

Principal Office:
Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
City:

State:

Zip:

Other than USA:
Registered Agent:
Name:

Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
City:

State:

Zip:

Business Filing History

* Important Note: Business filing History includes information about (1) the basis for an inactive status
and (2) the current true name and filing status of a business with an assumed name or a changed status

3300 N PACE BLVD

PENSACOLA
FL
325050000

CORPORATION SERVICECOMPANY
2908 POSTON AVENUE

NASHVILLE
TN
37203

Note This information is current as of three working
days prior to today's date

[ Search Agan ]

http://www.tennesseeanytime org/soscorp/details.jsp 10/20/2005




e

Business Information Search

Page 1 of 1

! Secretary of State Web Site I | Instructions l
Name I.D. Number
TALK AMERICA INC. 0253969

Business Type*: CORPORATION
Profit/Nonprofit: FOR PROFIT

Status™: ACTIVE

Date of Formation/Qualification: 06/01/1992
Domestic/Foreign: FOREIGN

Place of incorporation/Organization: PA

Duration: PERPETUAL

FYC(Fiscal Year Closing) Month: DECEMBER

Principal Office:
Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
City:

State:

Zip:

Other than USA:

Registered Agent:

Name:

Address Line 1:
Address Line 2:
City:

State:

Zip:

Business Filing History

* Important Note: Business filing History includes information about (1) the basis for an inactive status
and (2) the current true name and filing status of a business with an assumed name or a changed status

6805 ROUTE 202

NEW HOPE
PA
18938

CORPORATION SERVICECOMPANY
2908 POSTON AVENUE

NASHVILLE
TN
372030000

Note This information 1s current as of three working
days prior to today's date

[ Search Again |

http //www.tennesseeanytime.org/soscorp/details.jsp

7/13/2005
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TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except for per share data)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
- . . PN - - - PR P, . - N s - June 30’
B R R g gl e e TR T L N e D T 008 - 5 -, 2004 T A

2005 %

1&%&&§§¢1-7~k&éiuﬂﬁﬁﬁbﬁ-sn;%J%$fjﬂm%%gﬁyﬁ EME§B&$ﬁ£%@ﬁ£@ﬂa'

Gosts. and-expenses - e : 3 ARG
Network and hine costs, excluding deprematlon and

amortization (see below) o o 55,681 . 55,586 116 077 109,806

General-and-admimistrativeiexpenses = s ok e C18B30TR RS 15801 hR 0361450 ~3053%

Provision for doubtful accounts L o 4},80§ o 4905 10,394 8,326

Salesiand miarketing/éXpensas <= 5 i _ v b s a0 R T 519 904, 1450418 §36 4887

Depreciation and amortization 9,615 5322 19.116

. s [P FOR 101453 -
Totalicosfs afd:ExpPenses . oo e e 92205 " 400,908 .2 5 < 1966785 T i R196512 6

Opérannghncomers e e s TR T L R 1546450 L 9414305,
Other income (expense) o . o
Interestanconmie = o %% s w0 U e
Interest expense o e
Otherexpensernet “x i B Tl e T U R L
Income before provmon formcome taxes .

Provision for income: “axes - . 1% Sl

L
)..
51
3
i
-

I N RS VA SR Pl S or - Ty T TR
Netancome: Lo o5 e Simrs S v 5 0

SO SIS RO o I LR L
Incomeiperishare =:Basic .. & w ™
Net income per share

76746 "

At L RS Fa R (,,.«.i ¥

Income per share = Dlluted
Netindome per share .5 -

shares: outstandmg

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
2005 2004
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,467 § 47.492
Accounts recervable, trade (net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $15,309 and

$17,508 at June 30, 2005 and December

31, 2004, respectively) 38,317 48,873
Deferred income taxes 23,228 34815
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,330 6.888
Total current assets 138,342 138,068
Property and equipment, net 78,199 65.823
Goodwill 13,013 13,013
Intangibles, net 565 1,966
Deferred income taxes 12,234 14,291
Capitalized software and other assets 8.808 8.567

$ 251,161 $ 241,728

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 38,580 $ 38,843
Sales, use and excise taxes 7.543 11,179 .
Deferred revenue 13,382 15,321
Current portion of long—term debt 2,552 2.529
Accrued compensation 4,764 - 6,690
Other current hiabilittes 11,068 10,022 °
Total current liabilities 77.889 84.584
Long—term debt 993 1,717
Deferred income taxes 8,331 13,906

Commitments and contingencies — _—

Stockholders' equity )

Preferred stock — $ 01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, no shares outstanding — —
Common stock — § 01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 27,843,150 and 27,037,096

shares 1ssued and outstanding at

_ June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively 292 284
Additional paid—1n_capital ' 359.990 356.409
Accumulated deficit (191,334) (210,172)

Treasury stock — § 01 par value, 1,315,789 shares at June 30, 2005 and December 3 1 ,
2004 , respectively (5,000) (5.000)
Total stockholders' equity ) 163.948 141,521

3 251,161 $ 241.728

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 18,838 § 16,710
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for doubtful accounts 10,394 8,326
Depreciation and amortization 19,115 10.453
Loss on sale, retirement and write—down of assets 349 —
Non—cash interest and amortization of accrued interest hiabilitics — (130)
Deferred income taxes 10,015 9,534
Non-cash compensation — 9
Changes 1n assets and habilities
Accounts receivable, trade 162 (16,114)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (442) (1,488)
Other assets 47 (24)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8,929) 5,888
Sales, use and excise taxes (3.636) (255)
Deferred revenue ) (1,939) 3,643
Accrued compensation (1,926) (5,009
Other current habilities X 1,046 (748)
Net cash provided by operating activities 43.000 ° 30,795
Cash flows from investing activities . ‘
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 42 -
Capital expenditures (19.986) (3.339)
Capitalized software development costs ) (2,023) (1.787)
Net cash used in investing activities (21,967) (5,126)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of borrowings . - (30,362)
Payments of capital lease obligations (701) (672):
Proceeds from exercise of options 1,643 550
Net cash provided by (used 1n) financing activities 942 (30,484):
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 21,975 ) (4,.815).
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 47.492 35,242
Cash and cash equivalents. end of period $ 69,467 $ 30,427

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements

5




TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except for per share data)

Year Ended Decen_lber 31,

2004 2003 2002

Revenue : Calh o T 8.t 4714012 383.693 8 317.507
Costs-and expenses . f e e oL ;" - -
Network and Iine costs (excluding deprecxatlon o o L e
“shown below) ™~ o . R 225,088 193349 - 146,911
Genéral:and admimistrative ‘expénses LY . 72,0200 .7 63104 62,166
Provision for doubtful accounts 21,313 11,599 9,365
Sales and. marketing.expenses " 70.202 51,008 27:148
Depreciation and amortization 22,904 18.345 17318
Total costs and expenses C e - R I "~ 411,683" 317.405 262.908.
Operating. income v . Pt st e 3 e 5013004 L _ 66288 .= . ' '54599
Other income (expense) ) ) . ]
Interest.inconie . T Lt e 3RO G 11290, 388 ‘802
Interest expense ' ) (733) (7,353) (9,087)
Other.income; net . AP 5 . e 1895 2.470 28.448 .
Income before provision (beneﬁt) for mcome taxes ) L . 60,781 61,793 74,762
Provision:(benefit) for méome taxes . bty et L 6239969% iy 5(20.024) +(22.300Y
Net sficome : sl v e B 36812, 080V, L 8181 § L 97,062
Income:per-share — Basic L i R TS . ) :
Net income per share . 8 1 37 310 $ 356
Welghted average common shares outstandmg ‘ 26 847 26.376 A 27,253‘

. S . L __”_'Lg::-'\v FOPE A TN - yl_‘;,:l-ﬂ . ( R “—., . N = .
Income per share — Dlluted _ _ _
Net incéme.per-share - g s il TR S g 30008, 2940 8 3150

Weighted average comimon and.comnionequivalgiit'shares outstanding « -

L7854

27,8062 " i

" 30,798

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements




TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

December 31, December 31,

2004 : 2003
Assets- : : L ¢
Current assets . . .
Cash-and cash equivalents § 47492 § «. 35,242
Accounts recetvable, trade (net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $17,508 and
$9,414 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) 48,873 40,321
Deferred.mmcome taxes . : - . T r 34815 24,605
Prepard expenses and other current assets _ _ N 6, 888¢ — 5427
““Total irrent assefs - T T T T T T N TR 1381068 = 2105595
Property and equipment, net. - - ' ) . 65,823 68:069
Goodwill R - 13,013 13,013
Intangible assets,net. L I VO Y + : - C e > 1.966. - 4:666
Deferred mcome taxes 14,291 48,288
Capitahized software-cost ghd othér dssets. T T PPV L0 N RSO S . 8567 7.547
3 241,728 § 247.178
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equrty . i
Currént hiabilities” . N P P I :
Accounts payable _ 3 43439 § 35,296
Sales; use.and-exciseitaxes: .- ) T e T IR AT Lt CPRPR) § 0 & TR 13.521..
Deferred revenue . 15,321 10,873
Current portion:of long—term:debt:and:capitalizéd‘lease:dbligations’ .« « + oo v ce= e . =15 L2590 16806
Accrued compensation o . o 6,690 9,888
Othercurient:habilities . -~ @ . Ve R e SR L T e 526 L - L 6,851
Total current 11ab111t1es . ) S 84.584 93,235
Long—term debt and capltalxzed lease obhgatlons 1,717 31,791
s iV B T At :‘:d S “ B i’;..“‘ M R Lo, : .
Deferred Income taxes : o o L o 13,906 19,009
Commltments and contingencies ) - o ) )
Stockholders' equity ) )
Preferred-stock — $ 01’ par-vihie; 5:000:000:shates authérizéd, no'shires outstandisis * o — LN
Common stock — § 01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 27,037,096 and
26,662,952 shares 1ssued and outstandmg at December 31 2004 and 2003 respectlvely 284 280
Additional paid=in.capital & Ny el A7T0356409 . L. 354:847
Accumulated deficit ) (210,172) . (246,984)
Treasury-stock — at cost;.1:315,789 shares-at:Deceriber:31,.2004 id 20034 + o . 277 22 “o o (5,000)-x% L (5.000)
Total stockholders' equity . . ) 141.521 103.143
R - B bt N A T A A L IS VU 8§ 41,728 L § - 2474178

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

N S . 2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 3 -36812 § 81817 § 97.062
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Provision for. doubtful-accounts o : 21.313 11,599 L9365
Depreciation and amortization 22,904 18,345 17,318
Qther non—cash charges. : : 9 L == 194
Non-—cash interest and amortization of accrued iterest liabilities ' (956) (260) 832
Loss-on sale and retirement of assets . . 4 : 205
Gain from restructuring of convertible debt —_ - ~ (28,909)
Gain from extinguishment of. debt S e > . Cn e AT — o (2476, . - . (431
Gain on legal settlement — — (1,681)
Deferred income.taxes R N R s o . 19.588:: (23.41.1) (22.300)
Changes n.assets-and-liabilities- ~ . % ° 7, T ST L L
Accounts recetvable, trade o ) e (29 865) (24 077) (10,560)
Prepaid:expenses. anid othercurrenitassits v St Ie sl dn ko AR ._(900). . o ({1,533) - o S(1.902),
Other assets _ 60 1,410 2,211
Accounts.payable A SR o et Tas 81143 L3144, - - (11.462)
Deferred revenue ) L i . 4,448 ) 4,393 (3,713)
Sales, use.and:excige:taxes e e a0 349) - 25082 T - .3.101
Accrued compensation .. (3,198) 4,279 - 4,501
Other-current liabilities- Lrs L e T T (1425) LT L (2163 . (1.933)
Net cash provnded by operatmg aCtIVItICS C 74,595 73.171 51.898
Cash ﬂows from mvestmg activities o i .
Acquisition-ofantangibles” "~ 7, 7 -t i e avae L0 Y L — s (133 . (50)
Caputal expenditures o ) (12,963) (11,844) (4,781)
Capitalized software development costs # ; L LAt e A L (3.534) 0T (2.738) . +{2.501)
Net cash used in investing activities ) _ _ (16.497) (14.715) (7.332)
Cash flows from financing activities o
Payments on:borrowings : Co e T L U T N T45.093), a (52918) " - . :(17.983)
Payments of capital lease obligations L S (1,228) 6h (1,036)
Acqusition of:convertible.debt-and’senior.igtes™ ' h S Fh s e v i T L e . (14:691):
Proceeds from exercise of options 653 1,177 632
Purchase of treasury-stock Com et b et R TR L e L w— 0 (5.000) - —
Net cash used n ﬁnancmg actlvmes . oy e (45.848) (56.802) (33 078)
Net increase in cash and cash equ1valents 12,250 1,654 11 488
Cash ahd casheqiitvalénis, beginnngeofiyearsss &« a8 T T TGS 1 35040 -, L 33588 - 22100~
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3 47492 § 35242 § 33.588

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FORM 8-K

TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS INC - TALK
Filed: October 20, 2005 (period: October 18, 2005)

Report of unscheduled material events or corporate changes.




Item 1.01 Entry into a Matenial Definitive A

Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure

t 01 Financial Statements and Exhibits
SIGN RES

EXHIBIT INDEX

EX-10 1 (Matenal contracts)
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K
CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): October 18, 2005

Talk America Holdings, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in 1ts charter)

Delaware 000—26728 23-2827736
(State of incorporation) (Commusston File Number) (IR S Employer Identification No )
6805 Route 202, New Hope, Pennsylvania 18938
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(215) 862-1500
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

N/A
(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Check the appropriate box below 1f the Form 8-K filing 1s intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant
under any of the following provisions (see General Instruction A 2 below)

[ ] Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230 425)
[ 1 Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a—12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240 14a—12)
[ ] Pre—commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240 14d-2(b))

[ ] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e—4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240 13e-4(c))




Ttem 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On October 18, 2005, Talk America Holdings, Inc and a subsidiary of Talk America entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) with NT Corporation, pursuant to which Talk America will acquire NTC NTC 1s a privately held,
facilines—based competitive local exchange carrier serving business customers primarily in the Southeast United States Under the
terms of the Acquisition Agreement, at closing, the Talk America subsidiary will be merged into NTC, NTC will become a wholly
owned subsidiary of Talk America and Talk America will pay cash of approximately $20 million, including transaction fees The
Acquisition Agreement and the NTC acquisttion transaction have been approved by both the board of directors and the stockholders of
NTC and the closing 1s subject, among other conditions, to the receipt of certain regulatory approvals, which both companies expect to
recetve

A copy of the Acquisition Agreement 1s filed as Exhibit 10 1 of this Report The foregoing discussion of the Acquisition Agreement
and the acquisition contemplated thereby 1s only a summary of the terms and conditions of the Acquisition Agreement and 1s qualified
1n 1ts entirety by reference to the Acquisition Agreement included as Exhibit 10 1
Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure

On October 19, 2005, Talk America 1ssued a release announcing that 1t had entered into an agreement to acquire NT Corporation, a
privately held, facilities—based competitive local exchange carrier serving business and residential customers primarily 1n the
Southeast United States A copy of the release 1s furnished as Exhibit 99 1 of this Report
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(c) Exhibuts

10 1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 18, 2005, among NT Corporation, Talk America Holdings, Inc and
THNetco, Inc

99 | Release dated October 19, 2005
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized

TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC,

Date October 19, 2005 By [s/ Aloysius T, Lawn IV
Name Aloysius T Lawn IV

Title Executive Vice President —
General
Counsel and Secretary

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Number Description

101 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 18, 2005, among NT Corporation, Talk America Holdings, Inc and
THNetco, Inc

99 1 Release dated October 19, 2005




Exhibit 10.1
AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
dated as of
October 18, 2005
Among
NT CORPORATION
TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC.
AND

THNETCO, INC.
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (the “Agreement”) 1s dated effective October 18, 2005, by and among TALK
AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), THNETCO, INC., a Delaware corporation and indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (“Merger Sub”), and NT CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“Company”) Parent, Merger
Sub and Company are referred to collectively herein as the “Parties,” and Company and Merger Sub are sometimes collectively
referred to as the “Constituent Corporations ™

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, this Agreement contemplates a transaction whereby Parent will acquire all of the outstanding capital stock of Company
through a merger of Merger Sub with and into Company,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of each of Parent, Merger Sub and Company has approved the acquisition of Company by Parent,
including the merger of Merger Sub with and into Company (the “Merger”), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth
herein, and the Board of Directors of each of Company and Merger Sub has adopted this Agreement,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Company has determined that the Merger 1s advisable and 1s fair to and in the best interests of
the holders of the Company Shares and recommended the approval of the Merger and this Agreement by the stockholders of Company
and this Agreement and the Merger have been approved by the requisite vote of the stockholders of Company, and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises set forth herein, and in consideration of the
representations, warranties and covenants set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows

ARTICLE

DEFINITIONS
1 1 Defimtions

(a) The following terms, as used herein, have the following meanings
“Affilate” has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 of the regulations promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act

“Affiliated Group” means any affiliated group within the meaning of Code Section 1504(a) or any similar group defined under a
simular provision of federal, state, local or foreign law

“Claim Date” means the earlier of (a) the 60th day after Parent files its Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC for 1ts fiscal year
ending December 31, 2006 and (b) May 31, 2007




“COBRA” means the requirements of Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA and Code Section 4980B and of any simular state law
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended

“Combined Material Adverse Effect” means a Material Adverse Effect on Company or a Material Adverse Effect on Parent and 1ts
Subsidiaries (including the Surviving Corporation), taken as a whole, after the Effective Time

“Company Board” means the board of directors of Company

“Company's Restated Charter” means the Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of NT CORPORATION filed
with the Delaware Secretary of State on July 29, 2004, as in effect as of the Effective Time

“Confidentiality Agreement” means the letter agreement dated August 23, 2005 between Parent and Company, as 1t may be amended,
providing that, among other things, each Party would maintain confidential certain information of the other Party

“Consenting Stockholders” means the Preferred Stockholders that approve the adoption of this Agreement and the Merger by written
consent pursuant to Stockholder Consents

“Deferred Intercompany Transaction™ has the meaning set forth in Treas Reg Section 1 1502-13

“Delaware Law” means the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, Chapter 1, Title 8 of the Delaware Code 1953, as
amended

“Dissenting Stockholder” at any time means a holder of Company Shares that are Dissenting Shares at such time the holder of which
continues to be entitled to appraisal nghts under Section 262 of the Delaware Law (including not having withdrawn any demand or
otherwise warved or lost such rights) in respect of such shares

“Employee Benefit Plan” means any “employee benefit plan” (as such term 1s defined in ERISA Section 3(3)) and any other employee
benefit plan, program or arrangement of any kind

“Employee Options” means any stock options to purchase shares of Common Stock granted under any employee stock option or
compensation plan or arrangement of Company

“Employee Pension Benefit Plan” has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 3(2)
“Employee Welfare Benefit Plan™ has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 3(1)

“Environmental, Health and Saféety Requirements” means all federal, state, local and foreign statutes, regulations, ordinances and other
provisions having the force or effect of law, all judicial and administrative orders and determinations, all contractual obligations and
all common law concerning public health and safety, worker health and safety, and pollution or protection of the environment,
including all those relating to the presence, use, production, generation, handling, transportation, treatment, storage, disposal,
distnibution, labeling, testing, processing, discharge, release, threatened release, control, or cleanup of any hazardous materials,
substances or wastes, chemical substances or mixtures, pesticides, pollutants, contaminants, toxic chemicals, petroleum products or
byproducts, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl, noise or radiation, each as amended and as now or hereafter in effect




“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended

“ERISA Affiliate” means each entity that 1s treated as a single employer with Company for purpoées of Code Section 414
“Excess Loss Account” has the meaning set forth in Treas Reg Section 1 1502~19

“FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission

“FCC Consent” means the grant by the FCC of its consent to the transfer of the FCC Licenses in connection with the consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereby

“Fiduciary” has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 3(21)
“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time

“Governmental Entity” means any Umited States federal, state or local or any foreign government, governmental regulatory or
adminustrative authority, agency, commussion (including any department or poliucal subdivision of any of the foregoing), court,
tribunal or judicial or arbitral body

“Governmental Order” means any order, ruling, writ, Judgment, mjunction, decree, charge, stipulation, determination or award
entered by or with any Governmental Entity

“Intellectual Property” means (a) all inventions (whether patentable or unpatentable and whether or not reduced to practice), all
improvements thereto, and all patents, patent applications and patent disclosures, together with all reissuances, continuations,
continuations—in—part, revisions, extensions and reexaminations thereof, (b) all trademarks, service marks, trade dress, logos, trade
names and corporate names, together with all translations, adaptations, derivations and combinations thereof and including all
goodwill associated therewith, and all applications, registrations and renewals in connection therewith, (c) all copyrightable works, all
copyrights and all applications, registrations and renewals in connection therewith, (d) all mask works and all applications,
registrations and renewals in connection therewith, (e) all trade secrets and confidential business information (including 1deas,
research and development, know—how, formulae, compositions, manufacturing and production processes and techmques, technical
data, designs, drawings, specifications, customer and supplier lists, pricing and cost information, and business and marketing plans
and proposals), (f) all Computer Software (including data and related documentation), (g) all other proprietary nghts and (h) all copies
and tangible embodiments thereof (1n whatever form or medium)




“Interim Agreement” means the Interim Operating and Integration Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, between Parent and
Company

“Interim Escrow Amount” means, as of any date, the aggregate amount remaining in the Escrow Fund as of such date, as such amount
1s reduced by the aggregate amount of any claims for indemnification that have been resolved but not yet paid as of such date or that
have not been resolved but have been asserted 1in writing prior to such date pursuant to Section 7 2

“Knowledge” of any Person that 1s not an individual means the actual knowledge of (1) such Person's executive officers, in the case of
Parent and Merger Subsidiary, and (1) each of Leo J Cyr and Danyelle L Kennedy—Lantz, in the case of the Company, in each case
after reasonable investigation by such individual

“Laws” mean any laws, statutes, rules, ordmnances, regulations, codes, plans, injunctions, judgments, orders, writs, decrees, rulings and
charges thereunder of any Governmental Entity

“Liabulity” means any hability (whether known or unknown, whether asserted or unasserted, whether absolute or contingent, whether
accrued or unaccrued, whether liquidated or unhquidated, and whether due or to become due), including any hability for Taxes

“Lien” means, with respect to any property or asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind
in respect of such property or asset

“Main Leases” means collectively all leases by Company or any of 1ts Subsidiaries of 3300 Pace Street, Pensacola, Florida and 2700
N E Expressway, Building B, Suites 700 and 900, Atlanta, Georgia

“Material Adverse Effect” means, with respect to or of or on any Person, (a) a material adverse change in, or materially adverse effect
on, the business, assets, revenues, financial condition or results of operations of such Person and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole,
excluding any such effect resulting from (1) changes in political or regulatory conditions generally, (11) changes or conditions generally
affecting the U S economy or financial markets or generally affecting the segments of the telecommunications industry in which such
Person or any of its Subsidiaries operates, (111) changes in GAAP, (1v) actions or forbearances taken 1n accordance with the terms of
the Interim Agreement or (v) the announcement or consummation of this Agreement, or (b) an effect that would prevent, materially
delay or matenally impair the ability of such Person to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement

“Most Recent Balance Sheet” means the balance sheet contained within the Most Recent Financial Statements
“Multiemployer Plan™ has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 3(37)
“Nasdaq” means the Nasdaq National Market

“Ordinary Course of Business” means the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice




“Parent Board” means the board of directors of Parent
“PBGC” means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a hmited hability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust,
a jomnt venture, an unincorporated organization or a Governmental Entity

“Preferred Stockholder” means a holder of record of shares of Preferred Stock

“Prombited Transaction” has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 406 and Code Section 4975
“Reportable Event” has the meaning set forth in ERISA Section 4043

“Representatives” has the meaning set forth in the Escrow Agreement

“Requisite Stockholder Approval” means adoption of this Agreement by the affirmative vote, at a meeting or by written consent, of (1)
the holders of a majority of the outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock voting together as a single class, with the Preferred
Stock voting on an as—converted—to—Common Stock basis, (11) the holders of 60% of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred,
Series B Preferred and Senes C Preferred, voting together as a single class, and (111) the holders of 75% of the shares of Series D
Preferred, voting separately as a class

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission
“Securities Act” means the Secunities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder

“Securities Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder

“Secunity Interest” means any Lien other security interest, other than (a) mechanic's, materialman's and similar liens, (b) Liens for
taxes not yet due and payable, (c) purchase money Liens and Liens securing rental payments under capital lease arrangements, and (d)
other Liens ansing in the Ordinary Course of Bustness and not incurred i connection with the borrowing of money

“Severance Amounts™ means all out—of—pocket compensation, bonuses, fees and expenses payable by Company or any of its
Subsidiaries to any of its employees or directors 1n connection with or by reason of the transactions contemplated hereby and the
consummation of any thereof, including payments and amounts of the categories, natures and types reflected in the statement in
Section 5 6(¢) of the Company Disclosure Letter and including all costs and payments to be paid as contemplated by Section 5 6(¢),
but in any case not including payments described in Note 2 of Section § 6(e) of the Company Disclosure Letter, and any other amount
that 1s stated in Section 5 1(a)(18)(z) to be, or be deemed to be, a Severance Amount By way of example but not imitation of the

generality of the foregoing definition, set forth in Section 5 6(e) of the Company Disclosure Letter 1s an estimate, as of the date of this
Agreement, of the “Severance Amounts ”




“State PUC Consent” means the grant by any state Governmental Entity that granted or 1ssued any of the State Licenses or otherwise
has authority in the matter of its consent to the transfer of the State Licenses in connection with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby

“Stockholder Consent” means a Consent, executed by a Preferred Stockholder, approving the adoption of this Agreement and the
Merger

“Subsidiary” of a specified Person means any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture or other legal entity of
which the specified Person (either alone or together with any other Subsidiary of the specified Person) owns, directly or indirectly,
more than 50% of the stock or other equity, partnership, limited Liability company or equivalent interests, the holders of which are
generally entitled to vote for the election of the board of directors or other governing body of such corporation or other legal entity, or
otherwise has the power to vote or direct the voting of sufficient securities to elect a majority of such board of directors or other
governing body

“Tax” means any federal, state, local or foreign income, gross receipts, license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp,
occupation, premium, windfall profits, environmental (including taxes under Code Section 59A), customs duties, capital stock,
franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar), unemployment, disability, real property, personal property, sales, use,
transfer, registration, value added, alternative or add—on minimum, estimated or other tax of any kind whatsoever, including any
interest, penalty, or addition thereto, whether disputed or not

“Tax Return” means any report, return, declaration or other information required to be supplied to a taxing authority in connection
with Taxes

“Total Merger Consideration” means $23,000,000, minus the sum of the Transaction Costs and Severance Amounts, as set forth in the
Closing Costs Certificate

“Transaction Costs” means all fees and expenses of legal counsel, investment bankers, brokers or other representatives and
consultants, including Breckenridge Secunities Corp and The Breckenridge Group, Inc , Latham & Watkins LLP, Cooley Godward
LLP, Nowalsky Bronston & Gothard PLLC, Kilpatrick Stockton LLP and Ernst & Young LLP, incurred or accrued by Company, or
for which Company or any of its Subsidiaries 1s hable, in connection with the negotration, execution and delivery of this Agreement,
the performance of the obligations of Company and its Subsidiaries hereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby, including payments and amounts of the categories, natures and types reflected in the statement in Section 5 6(b) of the
Company Disclosure Letter, the premium payable for the purchase of the “tail” policy required to be procured pursuant to Section

5 5(b) and any other amount that 1s stated 1n Section 5 1(a)(18)(z) to be, or be deemed to be, a Transaction Cost By way of example
but not limitation of the generality of the foregoing definition, set forth in Section 5 6(b) of the Company Disclosure Letter is an
estimate, as of the date of this Agreement, of the maximum amounts of the various categories of “Transaction Costs ”
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(b) Each of the following terms is defined in the Section set forth opposite such term

TERM SECTION
Agreement Preamble
Allocable Series Consideration 24(H
Allocated Portion 72(e)(2)
Applicable Series Liquidation Amount 24(f)
Basket Amount 72(f)
Certificate of Merger 23
Closing 22
Closing Costs Certificate 62(1)
Closing Date 22
Common Stock 32
Common Stock Exchange Ratio 24(H)
Communications Licenses 34
Company Preamble
Company Disclosure Letter ARTICLE III
Company Indemnified Party 7 2(a)(2)
Company Outstanding Shares 2 4(f)
Company Shares 32(a)2)
Computer Software 316
Compensation Plan 5 1(a)(18)
Constituent Corporations Preamble
Dissenting Shares 24(g)
Effective Time 2 4(a)
Escrow Agent 2 6(a)
Escrow Agreement 2 6(a)
Escrow Amount 2 6(a)
Escrow Fund 2 6(a)
Escrowed Consideration 2 5(a)
Exchange Agent 2 5(a)
Exchange Fund 2 5(a)
FCC Licenses 3 4(b)
Financial Statements 310
Indemnified Party 7 2(b)(1)
Indemnifying Party 7 2(b)(1)
IT Assets 316
Licenses 3 4(b)
Local Licenses 3 4(b)
Material Contract 318
Merger Recitals
Merger Consideration 2 4(e)
Merger Sub Preamble
Most Recent Financial Statements 310
Most Recent Fiscal Year End 310
Parent Preamble
Parent Indemnified Party 7 2(a)(1)
Parties Preamble
Per Share Merger Consideration 2 4(e)
Preferred Merger Consideration 2 4(f)
Preferred Share Liquidation Consideration 24(f)
Preferred Stock 32(a)(2)
Reserved Insurance Proceeds 7 2(g)(1)
Series A Preferred 32
Series B Preferred 32
Series C Preferred 32
Series D Preferred 32
Series E Preferred 32
Series F Preferred 32
Series Shares Outstanding 2 4(f)
State Licenses 34
Stockholder 3 2(b)
Surviving Corporation 21
Surviving Corporation New Plans 5 6(b)
Termination Date 8 1(d)
Third Party Claim 7 2(b)(1)
Total Liquidation Amount 2 4(f)







(c) Any reference to any federal, state, local or foreign statute or law shall be deemed also to refer to all rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, unless the context requires otherwise The words “include,” “includes™ and “including” shall mean include,
includes or including without imitation The phrase “business day” shall mean any day other than a day on which banks in the State of
New York are required or authorized to be closed The phrases “heretn,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and words of stmilar import shall be
deemed to refer to this Agreement as a whole, including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto, and not to any particular provision of this
Agreement The word “or” shall be inclusive and not exclusive Any pronoun shall include the corresponding masculing, femimine and
neuter forms

ARTICLE IT

THE TRANSACTION
21 The Merger

On and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Company at the Effective Time
and the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will thereupon cease Company shall be the surviving corporation in the Merger
(the “Surviving Corporation’), and the separate corporate existence of Company, with all of 1ts rights, privileges, summary powers
and franchises, shall continue unaffected by the Merger, except as provided for in Section 2 4

22 The Closing

The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall take place (1) at the offices of Latham & Watkins
LLP, 555 Eleventh Street, NW, Suite 1000 Washington, D C 20004, commencing at 9 00 A M local time on January 2, 2006 or, i
the event the conditions set forth in Article VI are not satisfied or warved (other than those conditions that by their terms are to be
satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions) as of such date, the first day that 1s the last
business day of a month and at least three business days after the satisfaction or waiver of all conditions set forth in ARTICLE VI
(other than those conditions that by their terms are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those

conditions} or (11) at such other place and time or on such other date as Parent and Company may agree in writing (the “Closing
Date™)

23 Actions at the Closing

At the Closing, (1) Company will deliver to Parent and Merger Sub the various certificates, instruments and documents referred to in
Section 6 2, (1) Parent and Merger Sub will deliver to Company the various certificates, instruments and documents referred to in
Section 6 3, (1) Company and Merger Sub shall duly execute and deliver a certificate of merger (the “Certificate of Merger)to the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware for filing under Section 251 of the Delaware Law and make all other filings or recordings
required by the Delaware Law in connection with the Merger and (1v) Parent will deliver or cause to be delivered the Exchange Fund
to the Exchange Agent in the manner provided below in this ARTICLE I
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2 4 Effect of Merger

(a) General The Merger shall become effective at such time as the Certificate of Merger 1s duly filed with the Secretary of State of
the State of Delaware or at such later date or time as 1s specified in the Certificate of Merger (the “Effective Time”) From and after the
Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall possess all of the property, rights, privileges, immunities, powers and franchises and
be subject to all of the debts, liabilities, obligations, restrictions, disabilities and duties of the Company and Merger Sub, all as
provided under this Agreement and the Delaware Law The Surviving Corporation may, at any time after the Effective Time, take any
action (including executing and delivering any document) in the name and on behalf of either Company or Merger Sub 1n order to
carry out and effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement

(b) Cernificate of Incorporation At the Effective Time, the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation shall be
amended and restated to read in its entirety as did the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub 1n effect immediately prior to the
Effective Time, except that the name of the Surviving Corporation shall be NT CORPORATION, and, as so amended, shall be the
certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until thereafter amended in accordance with their terms and as provided by
law

(¢) By—laws The By—laws of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended and restated at and as of the Effective Time to read in
their entirety as did the By-laws of Merger Sub 1n effect immediately prior to the Effective Time and shall be the By-laws of the
Surviving Corporation until amended 1n accordance with their terms and as provided by law

(d) Durectors and Officers The directors and officers of Merger Sub immeduately prior to the Effective Time shall be the directors
and officers of the Surviving Corporation at and as of the Effective Time (retaining their respective positions and terms of office),
until the earlier of their respective resignation, removal or otherwise ceasing to be a director or officer, respectively, or until their
respective successors are duly elected and qualified, as the case may be

(e) Conversion of Company Shares At and as of the Effective Time, (A) each 1ssued and outstanding Company Share will be
converted into the right to receive the Merger Constderation set forth below 1n Section 2 4(f) (as to each Company Share, 1ts “Per
Share Merger Consideration™), and all such Company Shares will no longer be outstanding, will be canceled and retired and will
cease to exist, and each holder of a certificate representing any such Company Shares will thereafter cease to have any rights with
respect to such Company Shares, except the right to receive the respective Per Share Merger Consideration for each such Company
Share to which the holder of such Company Shares 1s entitled pursuant to Section 2 4(f) upon the surrender of such certificate in
accordance with Section 2 4(f) (collectively, the “Merger Consideration”) and (B) each Company Share owned by Company or any
Subsidiary of Company shall be canceled and retired without payment of any constderation therefor and shall cease to exist No
Company Share shall be deemed to be outstanding or to have any nights other than those set forth above 1n this Section 2 4(e) after the
Effective Time




(1) Per Share Merger Consideration The Company Shares will be converted 1nto the respective rights to receive the following Per
Share Merger Consideration, which shall be payable in cash, as provided, and subject to the lnmitations set forth, below

(1) each share of Common Stock held by the Company as treasury stock or owned by Parent or any Subsidiary of Parent
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and retired, and no payment shall be made with respect thereto,

(2) each share of any series of Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted nto the
night to receive from Parent a portion of the Merger Consideration determined 1n accordance with the following formula

(Allocable Series Consideration multiplied by Total Merger Consideration)

Number of Applicable Series Shares Outstanding

(3) thereafter, a holder of a share of Common Stock and a holder of Preferred Stock other than the Series E Preferred (treating the
Preferred Stock on an as—converted to Common Stock basis) outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted
into the right to receive from Parent, a portion of the Merger Consideration determined 1n accordance with the following formula

(Total Merger Consideration minus Preferred Share Liguidation Constderation)

Company Outstanding Shares

Notwithstanding clause (2) or (3) immediately above, the maximum Merger Consideration that shall be paid by Parent in the Merger
shall not exceed the Total Merger Consideration
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For purposes of this Section 2 4(f), each of the following terms 1s defined as follows
“Allocable Series Consideration” means the Applicable Series Liquidation Amount divided by the Total Liquidation Amount

“Applicable Series Liquidation Amount” means the total amount that would be payable to the holders of outstanding Preferred Stock
in the Merger if, in the Merger, the holders of Preferred Stock were entitled to recerve the following (a) with respect to the Series A
Preferred, the Series B Preferred and the Senes C Preferred, the Liquidation Price (as defined in the Company's Restated Charter), (b)
with respect to the Series D Preferred, the Series D Liquidation Preference (as defined in the Company's Restated Charter), and (c)
with respect to the Series E Preferred, the Sale Preference (as defined in the Company's Restated Charter)

“Common Stock Exchange Ratio” means, for the Common Stock, the ratio obtained pursuant to clause (3) immediately above

“Company Outstanding Shares” means the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the Effective Time (assuming the
exercise, converston or exchange of all outstanding nights, warrants, options, convertible securities or indebtedness or other rights
exercisable, convertible or exchangeable for or into, directly or indirectly, Common Stock whether at the time of 1ssue or upon the
passage of time or the occurrence of some future event, including the conversion into Common Stock of all shares of Preferred Stock
outstanding as of the Effective Time)

“Preferred Merger Consideration” means the merger consideration paid to all holders of Preferred Stock pursuant to clauses (2) and
(3) immediately above

“Preferred Share Liquidation Consideration” means the total amount of Merger Consideration allocated at the Effective Time to the
holders of Preferred Stock pursuant to clause (2) immediately above

“Series Shares Outstanding” means (a) in the case of the Series A Preferred, the total number of shares of Series A Preferred
outstanding at the Effective Time, (b) in the case of the Series B Preferred, the total number of shares of Series B Preferred
outstanding at the Effective Time, (c) 1n the case of the Series C Preferred, the total number of shares of Series C Preferred
outstanding at the Effective Time, (d) in the case of the Series D Preferred, the total number of shares of Series D Preferred
outstanding at the Effective Time, and (e) in the case of the Sertes E Preferred, the total number of shares of Series E Preferred
outstanding at the Effective Time

“Total Liqundation Amount” means the sum of all Applicable Series Liquidation Amounts
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(g) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, each Share that 1s held by a holder (1) who has not voted 1n favor
of the Merger or consented thereto 1n writing, (11) who shall have properly demanded 1n writing appraisal of such Shares pursuant to,
and who complies 1n all respects with, Section 262 of the Delaware Law and (111) who has neither effectively withdrawn nor lost the
night to such payment (each such share, a “Dissenting Share” and collectively, the “Dissenting Shares”) shall not be converted into the
right to recerve Merger Consideration as provided in Sections 2 4(€) and (f), but rather the holders of Dissenting Shares shall be
entitled to payment of the fair value of such Dissenting Shares in accordance with Section 262 of the Delaware Law, provided,
however, that 1f any such holder shall fail to perfect or otherwise shall waive, withdraw or lose the right to appraisal under Section 262
of the Delaware Law, then the right of such holder to be paid the fair value of such holder's Dissenting Shares shall cease and such
Dissenting Shares shall be deemed to have been converted as of the Effective Time into, and to have become exchangeable solely for
the right to receive, Merger Consideration as provided in Section 2 4(f) Company shall serve prompt notice to Parent of any written
demands recetved by Company for appraisal of any Company Shares, and Parent shall have the right to participate 1n and direct all
negotiations and proceedings with respect to such demands Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall not, without the prior
written consent of Parent, make any payment with respect to, or settle or offer to settle, any such demands, or agree to do any of the
foregoing

(h) Cancellation of Employee Stock Options At or immediately prior to the Effective Time, each stock option or warrant to
purchase Company Shares or any other capital stock of Company or any Company Subsidiary outstanding, whether or not vested or
exercisable, and each commitment or agreement to 1ssue Company Shares or any other capital stock of Company or any Company
Subsidiary, including without limitation, all such stock options, warrants and commitments or agreements to 1ssue Shares or any other
capital stock of the Company or any Subsidiary set forth in Section 3 2(b) of the Company Disclosure Letter, shall be cancelled
without the payment of any consideration, and Company and its Subsidiaries shall take all such actions, and shall obtain all consents
and approvals as are necessary, to effect such cancellation

() Conversion of Capital Stock of Merger Sub At and as of the Effective Time, each share of common stock, $ 01 par value per
share, of Merger Sub shall be converted into one share of common stock, $ 01 par value per share, of the Surviving Corporation
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25 Procedure for Exchange

(a) Immediately after the Effective Time, (A) Parent shall furnish to StockTrans, Inc , its transfer agent, or such other bank or trust
company reasonably acceptable to Company to act as exchange agent (the “Exchange Agent”), a corpus (the “Exchange Fund)
consisting of cash sufficient to permit the Exchange Agent to make full payment of the Merger Constderation to the holders of all of
the 1ssued and outstanding Company Shares (other than any Company Shares owned by Company), less the amount in cash equal to
10% of the Total Merger Consideration, which amount (the “Escrowed Consideration”) will be withheld from the amounts otherwise
to be delivered to the holders of Preferred Stock as Merger Consideration to which each such holder of Preferred Stock would, but for
this Section 2 5(a), be entitled to be delivered pursuant to this Agreement, pro rata n proportion to the respective amount otherwise so
deliverable and (B) Parent will cause the Exchange Agent to mail a letter of transmittal (with instructions for 1its use) 1n a form to be
mutually agreed upon by Company and Parent prior to Closing to each holder of 1ssued and outstanding Company Shares (other than
any Company Shares owned by Company) that 1s entitled to receive any Merger Consideration for the holder to use 1n surrendering
the certificates that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented his or its Company Shares against payment of the Merger
Consideration to which the holder 1s entitled pursuant to Section 2 4(f), subject to the escrow of the Escrowed Consideration pursuant
to the Escrow Agreement Notwithstanding the withholding of the Escrowed Consideration and deposit thereof with the Escrow Agent
pursuant to Section 2 6(a), each Preferred Stockholder shall, for all purposes of Section 2 4, be deemed to have recetved 1ts pro rata
share of such Escrowed Consideration so withheld and deposited Upon surrender to the Exchange Agent of these certificates, together
with the letter of transmittal, duly executed and completed in accordance with the letter of transmittal instructions, subject to the
escrow of the Escrow Amount pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, Parent shall promptly cause to be 1ssued a check representing the
Merger Consideration (after giving effect to any required tax withholdings and the withholding of the Escrowed Consideration) No
interest will be paid or accrued on any amounts payable to former holders of Company Shares If payment is to be made to a Person
other than the registered holder of the certificate surrendered, 1t shall be a condition of payment that the surrendered certificate must be
properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer and that the Person requesting such payment shall pay any transfer or other
taxes required by reason of the payment to a Person other than the registered holder of the certificate surrendered or establish to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Surviving Corporation or the Exchange Agent that this tax has been paid or 1s not applicable If any
certificate representing Company Shares 1s lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person
claiming a certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed, the Exchange Agent will issue 1n exchange for this lost, stolen or destroyed
certificate the Merger Consideration deliverable in respect thereof except that the Person to whom this Merger Consideration 1s paid
shall, as a condition precedent to the payment thereof, indemmify the Surviving Corporation in a manner reasonably satisfactory to 1t
against any claim that may be made against the Surviving Corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen
or destroyed

(b) Parent shall pay, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to pay, all charges and expenses of the Exchange Agent

26 Escrow

(a) Atthe Effective Time, Parent, Merger Sub, Company, the Representatives and the Escrow Agent shall execute and deliver an
escrow agreement substantially in the form of the attached Exhibit A (the “Escrow Agreement”) under which U'S Bank Corporate
Trust Services or other Person mutually satisfactory to Parent and Company shall act as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) with
respect to the Escrowed Consideration (the aggregate value of which, the “Escrow Amount”), which shall be deposited in an escrow
fund (the “Escrow Fund™) to be governed by the terms set forth in the Escrow Agreement Parent shall deposit the Escrowed
Consideration with the Escrow Agent, which shall be withheld from the Merger Consideration as provided 1n Section 2 5 1n
connection with the indemnification obligations set forth in Section 7 2
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(b) Subject to the provisions of this Section 2 6 and the Escrow Agreement, (1) on the first business day that 1s at least 270 days
after the Closing Date, an amount equal to 50% of the Interim Escrow Amount as of such date shall be paid to the Preferred
Stockholders, and (11) on the Claim Date, the then remaining amount in the Escrow Fund, as such amount 1s reduced by the aggregate
amount of any claims for indemnification that have been resolved but not yet paid or that have not been resolved but have been
asserted 1n writing prior to the Claim Date pursuant to Section 7 2, shall be paid to the Preferred Stockholders

27 Closing of Transfer Record After the Effective Time, no transfer of Company Shares outstanding prior to the Effective Time
may be made on the stock transfer books of the Surviving Corporation If, after the Effective Time, certificates representing such
shares are presented for transfer to the Exchange Agent, they shall be canceled and exchanged for Merger Constideration as provided
in Section 2 5

ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF COMPANY

Except as set forth in the disclosure letter (subject to Section 9 13(c)) delivered to Parent by Company at or prior to entering into this
Agreement (the “Company Duisclosure Letter”), Company hereby represents and warrants to Parent and Merger Sub that

31 Orgamzation, Qualification and Corporate Power, Transaction Authorization

(a) Each of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the Laws of
the junisdiction of its incorporation and has all requisite corporate or similar power and authonty to own and operate 1ts properties and
assets and to carry on 1ts business as presently conducted and 1s qualified to do business and 1s 1n good standing as a foreign
corporation in each jurisdiction where the ownership or operation of its assets or properties or conduct of 1ts business requires such
qualification, except where the failure to be so organized, validly existing, qualified or in good standing, or to have such power or
authority, would not be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company Section 3 1 of the Company Disclosure
Letter lists for each of Company and 1its Subsidiaries (1) the directors and officers, (11) the state of incorporation and (11) the
Junsdictions 1n which the corporation 1s quahified to do business Company has delivered to Parent correct and complete copies of the
charter and bylaws of each of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries (as amended to date) The minute books (containing the records of
meetings of the stockholders, the board of directors and any commuttees of the board of directors), the stock certificate books, and the
stock record books of each of Company and its Subsidiaries are correct and complete, and Company has delivered to Parent copies of
all such items None of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries 1s in default under or in violation of any provision of its charter or bylaws
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(b) The Company Board has received the opinion of Breckenridge Securnities Corp , dated October 18, 2005, to the effect that, as of
such date, based upon and subject to the terms, qualifications, assumptions, limitations and exceptions set forth therein, the aggregate
consideration to be received by the holders of the Company Shares pursuant to the Merger 1s fair to such holders, taken as a whole,
from a financial point of view A copy of such opmion was furmshed to Parent on or before the date hereof The Company Board, at a
meeting duly called and held, has (1) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger,
are fair to and 1n the best interest of Company's stockholders, (it) adopted this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby,
including the Merger, 1n accordance with the requirements of Section 251 of the Delaware Law with respect to the transactions
contemplated hereby, (1) adopted resolutions recommending to the Company's stockholders approval of the transactions
contemplated hereby, including the Merger, (1v) directed that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the
Merger, be submutted to the Preferred Stockholders for their approval and adoption on or before the date of this Agreement, and (v)
taken all necessary action to provide that Employee Options outstanding as of the Effective Time will be 1n all respects cancelled and
of no further force and effect from and after the Effective Time The only vote of holders of any class or series of Common Stock or
Preferred Stock necessary to approve and adopt this Agreement and the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby 1s the
Requisite Stockholder Approval and no vote of the holders of the shares of Common Stock and the Preferred Stock, or any of them, 1s
necessary to consummate any transaction expressly contemplated hereby other than the Merger Company has received the consents of
the Consenting Stockholders in the Stockholder Consents, a true and correct copy of each of which has been provided to Parent, and
such consents so recetved constitute the Requisite Stockholder Approval This Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby,
including the Merger, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action

(c) Company has all requisite corporate power and authority and has taken all corporate action necessary 1n order to execute,
deliver and perform 1ts obhgations under this Agreement and to consummate the Merger 1n accordance with its terms This Agreement
i1s a valid and binding agreement of Company enforceable against Company n accordance with 1ts terms, subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and sumilar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’
nghts and to general equity principles and except as indemnification obligations hereunder may be limited by applicable securities
laws No Stockholder is entitled to any dissenter's rights with respect to, or other rights of appraisal of, its Company Shares in respect
or by reason of the Merger or any of the transactions contemplated hereby, except only such rights of appraisal as a holder of
Company Shares that 1s not a Consenting Stockholder shall have under Section 262 of the Delaware Law

(d) Company has all requisite corporate power and authority and has taken all corporate action necessary in order to execute,
deliver and perform 1ts obligations under the Interim Agreement and the Interim Agreement 1s a valid and binding agreement of
Company enforceable against Company 1n accordance with 1ts terms, subject to bankruptcy, nsolvency, fraudulent transfer,

reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ nights and to general equity
principles
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32 Capitahzation

(a) As of the date of this Agreement, Company's authorized capitalization consisted of

(1) 90,028,495 shares of Common Stock, par value $0 01 per share (the “Common Stock™), of which 9,408,544 shares were
issued and outstanding, an aggregate of 5,033,998 shares were 1ssuable upon exercise of outstanding Employee Options and an
aggregate of 67,731,279 shares were 1ssuable upon conversion of shares of the Preferred Stock, as set forth below, and

(2) 58,020,595 shares of Preferred Stock,

Stock, the “Company Shares™), designated as

Q]

(n)

()

()

V)

(v1)

par value $0 01 per share (the “Preferred Stock” and, collectively with the Common

7,500,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A Preferred”), of
which 7,500,000 shares were 1ssued and outstanding and were convertible into
7,704,628 shares of Common Stock,

4,459,320 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Sertes B Preferred”), of
which 4,459,320 shares were 1ssued and outstanding and were convertible into
4,581,326 shares of Common Stock,

6,584,372 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series C Preferred”), of
which 6,584,372 shares were 1ssued and outstanding and were convertible into
6,764,747 shares of Common Stock,

29,668,487 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series D Preferred”), of
which 25,584,455 shares were 1ssued and outstanding and were convertible into
38,615,437 shares of Common Stock, and

9,796,238 shares of Sernies E Convertible Preferred (“Series E Preferred”), of which
9,796,238 shares were 1ssued and outstanding and were convertible into 10,065,142
shares of Common Stock

2,178 shares of Series F Convertible Preferred (“Series F Preferred”), of which 0
shares were 1ssued and outstanding
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(b) All of the 1ssued and outstanding Company Shares have been duly authorized, are validly 1ssued, fully paid and nonassessable,
and, as of the date of this Agreement, are held of record by the respective stockholders as set forth in Section 3 2(b) of the Company
Disclosure Letter (each a “Stockholder” and collectively, the “Stockholders™) The Company has no treasury stock Other than the
Employee Options that are exercisable for 5,033,998 shares of Common Stock as of the date of this Agreement, there are no
outstanding or authorized options, warrants, purchase rights, subscription rights, conversion rights, exchange nghts, or other contracts
or commitments that could require Company to 1ssue, sell or otherwise cause to become outstanding any of its capital stock There are
no outstanding or authorized stock appreciation, phantom stock, profit participation or similar rights with respect to Company There
are no voting trusts, proxies or other agreements or understandings with respect to the voting of the capital stock of Company,
provided that the foregoing representation and warranty 1s to the Knowledge of Company as respects voting trusts, proxies or other
agreements or understandings to which none of Company and 1its Subsidiaries 1s a party or has acknowledged 1n writing Each
Stockholder holds of record and, to Company's Knowledge, owns beneficially, as of the date of this Agreement, the number of
Company Shares set forth next to his or its name and record address in Section 3 2(b) of the Company Disclosure Letter, free and
clear, to Company's Knowledge, of any restrictions on transfer (other than any generally applicable restrictions on transfer under the
Securities Act and state securities laws), Taxes, Security Interests, options, warrants, purchase rights, contracts, commitments,
equities, claims and demands To Company's Knowledge, no Stockholder 1s a party to any option, warrant, purchase right or other
contract or commitment that could require the Stockholder to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any caputal stock of Company
(other than this Agreement) From and after the Effective Time, all Employee Options will be cancelled and shall represent no rights
of any holder thereof As of the Effective Time, each of the Employee Options shall in all respects be cancelled and of no further force

or effect

33 Noncontravention, Consents Neither the execution and the delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, will (1), assuming the filing of the Certificate of Amendment as contemplated by Section 2 3, violate any
provision of the charter or bylaws of any of Company and its Subsidianes or (11), assuming compliance with the matters referred to 1n
the next sentence of this Section 3 3, (A) violate any Laws or Governmental Order to which any of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s
subject or (B) with or without notice, lapse of ime or both, conflict with, result in a breach of, constitute a default under, result in the
acceleration of, create in any party the right to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, or require any notice under any agreement,
contract, lease, license, nstrument or other arrangement to which any of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a party or by which 1t 1s
bound or to which any of its assets 1s subject (or result in the imposition of any Security Interest upon any of its assets), except, in the
case of clause (11), such violation, breach, default, acceleration or other change that would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company Except for (a) any FCC Consent, State PUC Consent or
consent or approval of any other Governmental Entity 1dentified 1n Section 3 3 of the Company Disclosure Letter, in each case as
required by applicable Laws, (b) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of Delaware pursuant to the
Delaware Law and of appropriate documents with relevant authorities of other states in which Company 1s qualified to do bustness to
reflect such Certificate of Merger filing, and (c) any other third party approvals as are reflected 1n Section 3 3 of the Company
Disclosure Letter, including with respect to any Computer Software program and databases (other than commercial, non—exclusive
end-user hicenses having a total consideration, with respect to each license, of less than $50,000), the execution, delivery and
performance by Company of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not require any consents, waivers,
authorizations or approvals of, or filings with, any Governmental Entity or any other third Person except for those that the failure to
make or obtain would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company
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34 Compliance with Laws, Licenses

(a) Company and its Subsidiaries are not in violation of any Laws, License or Governmental Order applicable to any of the
businesses 1n which any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries 1s engaged except to the extent that noncompliance would not reasonably be
expected to have a Matenal Adverse Effect on Company and no action, suit, proceeding, hearing, investigation, charge, complaint,
claim, demand or notice has been filed or, to Company's Knowledge, commenced, and currently pending, against any of them alleging
any failure so to comply, except to the extent such failure would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on

Company

(b) Company and 1ts Subsidiaries hold all permuts, licenses, certificates, variances, exemptions, orders, approvals, tariffs, rate
schedules and similar documents from Governmental Entities (collectively, “Licenses™) that are necessary to own, lease and operate
the assets and properties they currently own, lease and operate and to conduct their respective businesses and operations in the manner
currently conducted, except where the failure to hold such Licenses would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect on Company Section 3 4 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth all Licenses 1ssued or granted to Company or any of 1ts
Subsidiaries by the FCC (“FCC Licenses”), all Licenses 1ssued or granted to Company or any of its Subsidiaries by any state public
utility commission or other state commission or authority regulating telecommunications businesses or services (“State Licenses™) and
all Licenses 1ssued or granted to Company or any of its Subsidiaries by any local government regulating telecommunications
businesses or services or authorizing Company or any of 1ts Subsidiaries to place facilities within the boundary of such local
government (“Local Licenses’) and, collectively with the FCC Licenses and the State Licenses, the “Communications Licenses™) and
all other material Licenses held by Company or its Subsidiaries, together with any pending applications filed by Company or its
Subsidianes for Communications Licenses or other material Licenses that would be Licenses 1f 1ssued or granted or for modification,
extension or renewal of any License Company has delivered to Parent correct and complete copies of all Licenses (including the
applications related thereto) and all pending applications listed on Section 3 4 of the Company Disclosure Letter

(c) Each of Company and its Subsidiaries is in compliance 1n all material respects with each Communications License Each of
Company and 1ts Subsidianes 1s in compliance with (A) its obligations under each of the Licenses and (B) the rules and regulations of
the Governmental Entity 1ssuing such Licenses, except for any failures to be in comphance that would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on Company There 1s not pending or, to the Knowledge of
Company, threatened 1in wnting before the FCC or any other Governmental Entity any matenal proceeding, notice of violation, order
of forfeiture or complaint or investigation against Company or any of its Subsidiaries relating to any of the Licenses, except, in the
case of Licenses other than Communications Licenses, for any of the foregoing that would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on Company As of the date of this Agreement, Company has received
no written notice, and, as to any Communications License, has no Knowledge, that any event has occurred with respect to any such
License or application that would permit the revocation, termination, suspension or denial thereof or would result 1n any impairment
of the nights of the holder thereof No written notice has been received and to Company’s Knowledge no investigation or review 1s
pending or threatened 1n writing by any Governmental Entity with regard to any alleged violation by Company or any of its
Subsidiaries of any License or any alleged failure by Company or any of its Subsidiaries to have any Licenses The actions of the
applicable Governmental Entities granting all Licenses have not been reversed, stayed, enjoined, annulled or suspended, and there 1s
not pending or, to the Knowledge of Company, threatened in writing, any matenal application, petition, objection or other pleading
with the FCC or any other Governmental Entity that challenges or questions the validity of or any rights of the holder under any
License, except, n the case of Licenses other than Communications Licenses, for any of the foregoing that would not, individually or
in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Matenal Adverse Effect on Company
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35 Customers Listed 1n Section 3 5 of the Company Disclosure Letter are the names and addresses of the 50 most sigmficant
separate customer billing accounts (by revenue) of Company and its Subsidiaries for the twelve—month period ended June 30, 2005
and the amount for which each such customer was invoiced during such penod As of the date of this Agreement, Company has not
recetved any written notice nor does 1t have any Knowledge that any of the above—listed significant customers of Company or any of
its Subsidiaries has ceased, or will cease, to use the products, equipment, goods or services of Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or
has substantially reduced or will substantially reduce, the use of such products, equipment, goods or services at any time

36 Securities To the Knowledge of Company, the outstanding shares of Company were 1ssued in accordance with the registration or
qualification provisions of the Securities Act and any relevant state securities laws or pursuant to valid exemptions therefrom

37 Brokers' Fees Except for fees payable to Breckenridge Secunties Corp and The Breckenridge Group, Inc as set forth in the
Company Disclosure Letter, neither Company nor its Subsidiaries has any Liability or obligation to pay any fees or commissions to
any broker, finder, or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement

38 Tule to Assets Company and its Subsidiaries have good and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, the properties and
tangible assets used by them, located on their premises or shown on the Most Recent Balance Sheet or acquired after the date thercof,
free and clear of all Security Interests, except for (1) properties and assets disposed of 1n the Ordinary Course of Business since the
date of the Most Recent Balance Sheet, (11) Security Interests disclosed 1n Section 3 8 of the Company Disclosure Letter, (1) Security
Interests or imperfections of title that are not, individually, material 1n character, amount or extent and that do not, individually or in
the aggregate, materially detract from the value or materially interfere with the present or presently contemplated use by Company of
the assets subject thereto or affected thereby, (1v) Secunty Interests ansing under conditional sale or title retention agreements, real
property leases, equipment leases or lease purchase agreements that are disclosed in Section 3 8 of the Company Disclosure Letter, (v)
Security Interests arising in the Ordinary Course of Business (including, but not limited to, Liens for Taxes or governmental charges
or levies, Security Interests of mechanics, carriers, workmen and repairmen, Security Interests incurred 1n connection with workmen's
compensation, unemployment insurance, social security and other hke laws) for amounts that are not delinquent, except such Security
Interests as are being contested 1n good faith, and (v1) Secunty Interests or imperfections of title that would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company

39 Subsidiaries Section 3 9 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth for each Subsidiary of Company (1) its name and
Junisdiction of incorporation, (11) the number of shares of authorized capital stock of each class of its capital stock, (111) the number of
1ssued and outstanding shares of each class of its capital stock, the names of the holders thereof, and the number of shares held by each
such holder, and (1v) the number of shares of its capital stock held in treasury All of the 1ssued and outstanding shares of capital stock
of each Subsidiary of Company have been duly authorized and are validly 1ssued, fully paid and nonassessable All of the outstanding
shares of each Subsidiary of Company 1s free and clear of any restrictions on transfer (other than generally applicable restrictions
under the Secunities Act and state secunities laws), Taxes, Secunty Interests, options, warrants, purchase rights, contracts,
commitments, equities, claims and demands There are no outstanding or authorized options, warrants, purchase rights, subscription
rights, conversion rights, exchange rights or other contracts or commitments that could require any of Company and its Subsidiaries to
sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any capital stock, of any of its Subsidiaries or that could require any Subsidiary of Company to
1ssue, sell or otherwise cause to become outstanding any of its own capital stock There are no outstanding stock appreciation,
phantom stock, profit participation or similar rights with respect to any Subsidiary of Company There are no voting trusts, proxies or
other agreements or understandings with respect to the voting of any capital stock of any Subsidiary of Company None of Company
and 1ts Subsidiaries controls directly or indirectly or has any direct or indirect equity participation in any corporation, partnership, trust
or other business association, which 1s not a Subsidiary of Company
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3 10 Financial Statements

Company has furmished to Parent prior to the date of this Agreement audited consolidated balance sheets and statements of income,
changes 1n stockholders' equity, and cash flow as of, and for the fiscal years ended, December 31, 2002, December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2004 (the “Most Recent Fiscal Year End”) for Company and its Subsidiaries, together with the reports of Company's
independent auditors thereon, and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet and statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity,
and cash flow as of, and for the fiscal quarter ended, June 30, 2005 (the “Most Recent Financial Statements”) Such financial
statements so furnished and the subsequent unaudited quarterly financial statements that may be delivered to Parent as provided 1in this
Agreement are collectively the “Financial Statements ” The Financial Statements (including the notes thereto) present fairly (or will
present fairly, in the case of those furnished after the date hereof) the financial condition of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries as of their
respective dates and the results of operations of Company and its Subsidiaries for their respective periods (subject, in the case of the
unaudited statements, to notes and normal year—end audit adjustments that will not be material in amount or effect), in each case in
accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the periods covered thereby

3 11 Events Subsequent to Most Recent Fiscal Year End Since the Most Recent Fiscal Year End, Company and 1ts Subsidiaries have
conducted their businesses only in, and have not engaged 1n any material transaction other than in accordance with, the Ordinary
Course of Business of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries Since the Most Recent Fiscal Year End and prior to the date hereof, there has not
been any Material Adverse Effect on Company, provided, however, that, any damage to properties, service interruptions, loss of
customers, additional operating and other costs and other adverse consequences resulting from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, as and to
the extent described 1n the Section 3 11(m) of the Company Disclosure Letter under the heading “Katrina/Rita Impact,” shall not be
deemed to be a Material Adverse Effect Since the Most Recent Fiscal Year End and prior to the date hereof

(a) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has sold, leased, transferred, or assigned any of its assets, tangible or intangible, other
than in the Ordinary Course of Business,

(b) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has entered into any agreement, contract, lease or license (or series of related
agreements, contracts, leases and licenses with the same other party or Affiliates of such other party) either involving more than
$250,000 or other than 1n the Ordinary Course of Business,

(c) no party (including any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries) has accelerated, terminated, modified or cancelled any agreement,
contract, lease or license (or series of related agreements, contracts, leases and licenses with the same other party or Affiliates of such
other party) involving more than $250,000 to which any of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a party or by which any of them 1s bound,
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(d) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has made any capital expenditure (or series of related capital expenditures) either
involving more than $250,000 or other than 1n the Ordinary Course of Business,

(¢) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has made any capital investment in, any loan to, or any acquisition of the securities or
assets of, any other Person (or series of related capital investments, loans or acquisitions with the same other party or Affiliates of such
other party) either involving more than $50,000 or other than in the Ordinary Course of Business,

(f) none of Company and 1its Subsidiaries has 1ssued any note, bond or other debt security or created, incurred, assumed or
guaranteed any indebtedness for borrowed money or capitalized lease obligation either involving more than $50,000 singly or

$250,000 in the aggregate,

(g) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has delayed or postponed the payment of accounts payable or other Liabtlities other than
in the Ordinary Course of Business,

(h) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has cancelled, compromised, waived or released any nght or claim (or series of related
rights and claims) either involving more than $50,000 or other than in the Ordinary Course of Business,

(1) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has granted any license or sublicense of any nights under or with respect to any
Intellectual Property,

(1) other than as contemplated by this Agreement, there has been no change made or authorized in the charter or bylaws of any of
Company and its Subsidiaries,

(k) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has 1ssued, sold or otherwise disposed of any of its capital stock, or granted any options,
warrants or other rights to purchase or obtain (including upon conversion, exchange or exercise) any of its caputal stock except for the
1issuance of shares of Common Stock upon exercise of Employee Stock Options outstanding as of the Most Recent Fiscal Year End 1n

accordance with their terms,
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(1) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has declared, set aside or paid any dividend or made any distribution with respect to 1ts
capital stock (whether 1n cash, property, stock or any combination thereof) or redeemed, purchased or otherwise acquired any of 1ts

capital stock,

(m) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has experienced any damage, destruction or loss (whether or not covered by insurance)
to 1ts property that could reasonably be expected to have a Matenal Adverse Effect on Company,

(n) none of Company and its Subsidiaries (x) has made any loan or advance to, or entered into any other transaction with, any of
its directors, officers or stockholders, or (y) made any loans or advances to, or entered 1nto any other transactions with, any of its
employees that were in the aggregate as to an employee 1n excess of $10,000 at any one time outstanding, other than, in the case of
transactions wtth officers or employees (including stockholders in their capacity as officers or employees) referenced 1n either of
clause (x) or (y), employment arrangements in the Ordinary Course of Business,

(o) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has entered into any employment contract or collective bargaining agreement, written or
oral, or modified the terms of any such existing contract or agreement,

(p) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has granted any increase in the base compensation of any of its directors or officers or,
other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, any of its employees,

(@) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has adopted, amended, modified or terminated any bonus, profit-sharing, incentive,
severance or other plan, contract or commitment for the benefit of any of 1ts directors, officers or employees (or taken any such action

with respect to any other Employee Benefit Plan),
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(r) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has made any other change in employment terms for any of its directors or officers,

(s) none of Company and its Subsidiaries has made or pledged to make any charitable or other capital contribution other than in
the Ordinary Course of Business, and

(t) none of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has commuitted to any of the foregoing

3 12 Undisclosed Liabilines There are no liabilities or obligations of Company or any Subsidiary of Company, whether or not
accrued, contingent or otherwise and whether or not required to be disclosed, nor any other facts or circumstances that would
reasonably be expected to result in any hiabihties or obligations of Company or any of its Subsidiaries, other than

() hiabihties or obligations to the extent (1) reflected on the Most Recent Balance Sheet or (11) readily apparent in the notes thereto,

(b) habilities or obligations incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business since the date of the Most Recent Balance Sheet (none of
which results from, arises out of, relates to, 1s 1n the nature of or was caused by any breach of contract, breach of warranty, tort,

infringement or violation of law),
(c) habilities or obligations under this Agreement or in the Interim Agreement,

(d) performance obligations under contracts required in accordance with their terms, or performance obligations to the extent
required under applicable Laws, in each case to the extent arising after the date hereof, and

(e) habilities or obligations that would not, individually or 1n the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Matenal Adverse
Effect on Company
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3 13 Anutakeover Statutes No anti~takeover or similar statute or regulation under Delaware Law applies to any of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement No other “control share acquisition,” “fair price,” “moratorium” or other similar anti—takeover laws
or regulations enacted under Delaware Law or under any other laws of the State of Delaware or under any laws of the State of Florida
apply to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby Without hmitation of the foregoing, the business combination
restrictions of Section 203 of the Delaware Law are mnapplicable to the Merger, this Agreement or the other transactions contemplated
by this Agreement and no other state takeover statute or similar statute or regulation 1s or purports to be applicable to the Merger, this

Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby

3 14 Tax Mutters

(a) Each of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has filed all Tax Returns that 1t was required to file, except, in the case of Tax Returns
other than federal or state income, sales and use Tax Returns, where failure to file such Return would not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect on Company All such Tax Returns were correct and complete 1n all matenal respects All Taxes owed
by any of Company and 1its Subsidiaries (whether or not shown on any Tax Return) have been paid, except where failure to pay such
Taxes would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company None of Company and its Subsidiaries
currently 1s the beneficiary of any extension of time within which to file any Tax Return No claim has been made 1n the last 5 years,
by a Governmental Entity 1n a jurisdiction where any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries does not file Tax Returns that 1t 1s or may be
subject to taxation by that jurisdiction There are no Security Interests on any of the assets of any of Company and its Subsidiaries that
arose 1n connection with any failure (or alleged failure) to pay any Tax, except for (1) Liens for current Taxes not yet due and (i1) Liens
arising 1n connection with any failure or alleged failure that 1s being contested 1n good faith by appropriate proceedings and are set

forth 1n Section 3 14 of the Company Disclosure Letter

(b) Each of Company and 1its Subsidiartes has, in all material respects, withheld and paid all Taxes required to have been withheld
and paid 1n connection with amounts paid, or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder or other third
party
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(c¢) There 1s no dispute or claim concerning any Liability for any Tax of any of Company and its Subsidiaries either (A) claimed or
raised by any Governmental Entity in writing received by Company or any of its Subsidianes or (B) as to which any of the directors
and officers (and employees responsible for Tax matters) of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has Knowledge based on personal contact
with any agent of such Governmental Entity Section 3 14 of the Company Disclosure Letter lists all federal, state and foreign income
Tax Returns filed with respect to any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries for taxable periods ended on or after December 31, 2002,
indicates those Tax Returns that have been audited and indicates those Tax Returns that currently are being audited Company has
delivered to Parent correct and complete copies of all federal income Tax Returns, examination reports and statements of deficiencies
assessed against or agreed to by any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries since December 31, 2002

(d) None of Company and its Subsidiaries has waived any statute of limitations 1n respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of
time with respect to a Tax assessment or deficiency, which waiver or extension 1s currently n effect, in each case with respect to any

taxable period that remains open

(e) None of Company and its Subsidiaries has made any payments, 1s obligated to make any payments or 1s a party to any
agreement that could obligate 1t to make any payments that will not be deductible under Code Section 280G, 1n part, as a result of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement None of Company and 1its Subsidiaries has been a United States real property holding
corporation within the meaning of Code Section 897(c)(2) during the apphcable period specified in Code Section 897(c)(1)(A)(11)
Each of Company and its Subsidiaries has disclosed on 1ts federal income Tax Returns all positions taken therein that could give rise
to a substantial understatement of federal income Tax within the meaning of Code Section 6662 None of Company and its
Subsidiaries 1s a party to any Tax allocation or sharing agreement None of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries (A) has been a member of an
Affiliated Group filing a consolidated federal income Tax Return (other than a group the common parent of which was Company) or
(B) has any Liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than any of Company and its Subsidiaries) under Treas Reg Section
1 1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise
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315 Real Property
(a) Neither Company nor any of its Subsidiaries owns any real property

(b) Section 3 15 of the Company Disclosure Letter hists and describes briefly all real property leased or subleased to any of
Company and its Subsidiaries Company has delivered to Parent correct and complete copies of the leases and subleases with respect
to the real property listed 1n Section 3 15 of the Company Disclosure Letter With respect to each lease and sublease listed in Section
3 15 of the Company Disclosure Letter and, other than with respect to the Main Leases, except as would not reasonably be expected to

have a Material Adverse Effect on Company
(1) the lease or sublease 1s legal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full force and effect,

(2) the lease or sublease will continue to be legal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full force and effect on 1dentical terms
following the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby,

(3) no party to the lease or sublease 1s 1n breach or default, and no event has occurred that, with notice or lapse of time, would
constitute a breach or default or permit termination, modification or acceleration thereunder, except for any such breach or default as

would not reasonably be expected to have a Matenial Adverse Effect on Company,

(4) no party to the lease or sublease has repudiated any provision thereof,
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(5) there are no disputes, oral agreements or forbearance programs in effect as to the lease or sublease,

(6) with respect to each sublease, to the Knowledge of Company, the representations and warranties set forth 1n subsections (1)
through (5) above are true and correct with respect to the underlying lease,

(7) none of Company and 1its Subsidiaries has assigned, transferred, conveyed, mortgaged, deeded in trust or encumbered any
interest 1n the leasehold or subleasehold,

(8) all facihties leased or subleased thereunder have received all approvals of Governmental Entities (including Licenses)
required 1n connection with the operation thereof required to be obtained by Company or any of its Subsidiaries and have been
operated and maintained by Company and 1ts Subsidiaries in accordance with all Laws, except in each case (including the Main
Leases) where failure to receive such approval or so operate and maintain would not reasonably be expected to have a Material

Adverse Effect on Company,

(9) all facihties leased or subleased thereunder are supplied with utilities and other services necessary for the operation of said
facihties, and

(10) to the Knowledge of Company, there are no restrictions that impair the current use or occupancy of the property that 1s
subject to the lease
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3 16 Intellectual Property

(a) Set forth 1n Section 3 16 of the Company Disclosure Letter 1s a complete and correct hist of all material patents, patent
applications, and all registrations or applications for registration of trademarks, servicemarks, copyrights and mask works owned or
used by Company or its Subsidiaries With respect to all Intellectual Property owned or used by Company or its Subsidiaries, except
as would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company, (A) Company and/or its Subsidiaries own or
have the right to use all of such Intellectual Property free and clear of any Security Interest, license or other restriction, other than
commercial, non—exclusive end—user licenses having a total consideration, with respect to each hicense, of less than $50,000, (B) no
proceedings have been instituted, are pending or, to the Knowledge of Company, are threatened in writing that challenge the nights of
Company and/or 1ts Subsidiaries, 1n respect of such Intellectual Property or the validity thereof and, to the Knowledge of Company,
there 1s no basis for any such proceedings, (C) none of such Intellectual Property violates any Laws, or has at any time infringed on or,
to the Company's Knowledge, violated any rights of others, or, to the Company's Knowledge, 1s being infringed by others, and (D) to
the Company's Knowledge, none of such Intellectual Property 1s subject to any outstanding Governmental Order except for rulings
generated in the ordinary course of ex parte prosecution of applications for patents or for registration of trademarks, servicemarks,

copyrights or mask works

(b) Company and its Subsidiaries own or have the right to use pursuant to license, sublicense, agreement or permuission all
Intellectual Property necessary for the operation of the businesses of Company and its Subsidiaries as presently conducted Each item
of Intellectual Property owned or used by any of Company and its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Closing hereunder will be
owned or available for use by the Surviving Corporation or 1ts Subsidiary, on substantially identical terms and conditions immediately
subsequent to the Closing hereunder, except as such non—ownership or unavailability or change in terms would not, individually or in
the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company Each of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has
taken all necessary action to maintain and protect each item of Intellectual Property that it owns or uses, except where failure to take
such action would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company None
of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has any obligation to indemnify any Person for or against any interference, infringement,
misappropriation or other conflict with respect to any item included in such Intellectual Property owned by Company or any of its

Subsidiaries

(¢) Except where failure so to operate and perform would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a
Matenal Adverse Effect on Company, the IT Assets of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries operate and perform 1n accordance with their
documentation and functional specifications and otherwise as required by Company and 1ts Subsidianies for the operation of therr
respective businesses, and, except as the result of such malfunction or farlure did not have a Material Adverse Effect on Company at
the time, have not malfunctioned or failed within the three (3) year period immedsately preceding the date of this Agreement To the
Knowledge of Company, no Person has gained unauthorized access to such IT Assets Company and 1ts Subsidiaries have
implemented and maintained for the three (3) year period immediately preceding the date of this Agreement reasonable and sufficient

backup and disaster recovery technology consistent with industry practices
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As used 1n this Agreement,

(1) “Computer Software” means all computer software and databases (including source code, object code, and ali related
documentation)

(2) “IT Assets” means computers, Computer Software, firmware, middleware, servers, workstations, routers, hubs, switches,
data communications lines, and all other information technology equipment and elements, and all associated documentation

3 17 Tangible Assets Company and 1ts Subsidiaries own or lease all buildings, machinery, equipment and other tangible assets
necessary for the conduct of their businesses as presently conducted Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably
be expected to have a Matenial Adverse Effect on Company, each such tangible asset 1s free from material defects (patent and latent),
has been maintained 1n accordance with normal industry practice, 1s in good operating condition and repair (subject to normal wear

and tear), and 1s suitable for the purposes for which 1t presently 1s used

3 18 Contracts Section 3 18 of the Company Disclosure Letter lists the following contracts and other agreements to which any of
Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a party or by which its assets are bound, 1n each case as of the date of this Agreement (each contract

or other agreement required to be so listed, a “Material Contract™)

(a) any agreement (or group of related agreements with the same other party or Affihates of such other party) for the lease of
personal property to or from any Person providing for annual lease payments in excess of $50,000 per annum,

(b) any agreement (or group of related agreements with the same other party or Affilates of such other party) for the purchase of
raw materials, commodities, supplies, products or other personal property, or for the receipt of services, the performance of which will
extend over a period of more than one year or involve annual consideration 1n excess of $250,000,
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(c) any agreement (or group of related agreements with the same other party or Affiliates of such other party) for the sale of raw
materials, commodities, supplies, products or other personal property, or for the furnishing of services, that involves annual

consideration 1n excess of $250,000,
(d) any agreement concerning a partnership or joint venture,

(e) any agreement (or group of related agreements) under which 1t has created, incurred, assumed or guaranteed any tndebtedness
for borrowed money, or any capitalized lease obligation, in excess of $50,000 or under which 1t has imposed a Security Interest on any

of 1ts assets, tangible or intangible,

(f) any agreement imiting the solicttation or hiring by Company or 1ts Subsidiaries of employees or agents of, or the pursuit or
consummation by Company or 1ts Subsidiaries of investments 1n, or transactions with, any other Person or otherwise concerning

competition or noncompetition by Company or 1ts Subsidianies,

(g) any agreement with any of the Stockholders and their Affiliates (other than Company and its Subsidiaries),

(h) any profit sharing, stock option, stock purchase, stock appreciation, deferred compensation, severance or other plan or
arrangement for the benefit of its current or former directors, officers or employees,
(1) any collective bargaining agreement,

(3) any agreement for the employment of any individual on a full-time, part—time, consulting or other basis providing annual
compensation 1n excess of $250,000 or providing severance benefits,

(k) any agreement under which Company or 1ts Substdiaries (x) has made any loan or advance to any of its directors, officers or
stockholders, or (y) has made any loans or advances to any of its employees that were in the aggregate as to an employee 1n excess of

$10,000 at any one time outstanding,

() any agreement under which Company or 1ts Subsidiaries would be required, by 1its terms, to pay 1n excess of $250,000 to
terminate the agreement, and

(m) any other agreement (or group of related agreements with the same other party or Affiliates of such other party) the
performance of which mvolves annual constderation in excess of $250,000
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Company has made available to Parent a correct and complete copy of each written agreement histed in Section 3 18 of the Company
Disclosure Letter (as amended to date) and a written summary setting forth the terms and conditions of each oral agreement referred to
in Section 3 18 of the Company Disclosure Letter Except as the failure of this representation and warranty to be true and correct,
individually or in the aggregate as to all such agreements, would not reasonably be expected to have a Matenal Adverse Effect, with
respect to each such agreement, to Company's Knowledge (A) the agreement 1s legal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full force and
effect, (B) the agreement will continue to be legal, valid, binding, enforceable and 1n full force and effect on substantially 1dentical
terms following the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, (C) no party 1s in material breach or matenal default, and
no event has occurred that with notice or lapse of time would constitute a material breach or material default, or permit termination,

modification or acceleration under the agreement, and (D) no party has repudiated any material provision of the agreement

3 19 Notes and Accounts Recervable Listed 1n Section 3 19 of the Company Disclosure Letter are notes or accounts recetvable of
Company or any of its Subsidiaries in excess of $50,000 as of the date of this Agreement

3 20 Powers of Attorney There are no outstanding powers of attorney executed on behalf of any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries

3 21 Insurance Section 3 21 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth the following information with respect to each current
insurance policy (including policies providing property, casualty, liability and workers' compensation coverage and bond and surety
arrangements) to which any of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a party, a named insured or otherwise the beneficiary of coverage

(a) the name, address and telephone number of the agent,

(b) the name of the insurer, the name of the policyholder, and the name of each covered nsured,

(c) the policy number and the period of coverage,

(d) the scope (including an indication of whether the coverage was on a claims made, occurrence or other basis) and amount
(including a description of how deductibles and cetlings are calculated and operate) of coverage, and

(e) adescription of any retroactive premium adjustments or other loss—sharing arrangements
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With respect to each such insurance policy, to Company's Knowledge (A) the policy is legal, valid, binding, enforceable and 1n full
force and effect, (B) the Policy will continue to be legal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full force and effect on 1dentical terms
following the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, (C) neither any of Company and its Substdiaries nor any other
party to the policy 1s 1n breach or default (including with respect to the payment of premiums or the giving of notices), and no event
has occurred that, with notice or the lapse of time, would constitute such a breach or default, or permit termination, modification or
acceleration under the policy, and (D) no party to the policy has repudiated any provision thereof or otherwise indicated that any
coverage under the policy would be reduced or not available, for any reason whatsoever Each of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has
been covered during the past 5 years by insurance 1n scope and amount customary and reasonable for the businesses in which 1t has
engaged during the aforementioned period Neither Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has maintained any self—insurance

arrangements during the past 5 years

322 Lingation Section 3 22 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth each instance in which any of Company and its
Subsidianies 1s, as of the date of this Agreement, (1) subject to any outstanding Governmental Order or (11) a party or, to the
Knowledge of Company, threatened to be made a party to any action, suit, proceeding, hearing or investigation of, in or before, any
Governmental Entity or quasi—judicial or administrative agency of any federal, state, local or foreign jurisdiction or before any
arbitrator or mediator There are no (1) civil, criminal or administrative actions, suits, claims, hearings, arbitrations, investigations or
proceedings pending or, to Company's Knowledge, threatened against Company or any of its Subsidiaries or (1) litigations,
arbitrations, mvestigations or other proceedings, or Governmental Orders relating thereto, pending or, to Company's Knowledge,
threatened against Company or any of its Subsidiaries before any Governmental Entity, including the FCC, except in the case of either
clause (1) or (11), for those that would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse

Effect on Company

3 23 Employees To the Knowledge of Company, there 1s no organizational effort presently being made or threatened by or on behalf
of any labor union with respect to employees of any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries None of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s a party
to or bound by any collective bargaining agreement, nor has any of them experienced any strikes, material grievances, claims of unfair
labor practices or other collective bargaining disputes since January 1, 2003 None of Company and its Subsidiaries has commutted

any unfair labor practice, except any such as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Matenal

Adverse Effect on Company

3 24 Employee Benefits

(a) Section 3 24 of the Company Disclosure Letter hists each Employee Benefit Plan that any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries
maintains or to which any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries contributes or has any obhigation to contribute

(1) To the Knowledge of Company, each such Employee Benefit Plan (and each related trust, insurance contract or fund) has
been maintained, funded and adminustered 1n all matenal respects 1n accordance with the terms of such Employee Benefit Plan and
complies in form and n operation 1in all matenal respects with the applicable requirements of ERISA, the Code and other applicable

laws

(2) To the Knowledge of Company, all material required reports and descriptions (including annual reports (IRS Form 5500),
summary annual reports, and summary plan descriptions) have been timely filed and/or distributed in accordance with the applicable
requirements of ERISA and the Code with respect to each such Employee Benefit Plan To the Knowledge of Company, the
requirements of COBRA have been met in all matenial respects with respect to each such Employee Benefit Plan that 1s an Employee

Welfare Benefit Plan subject to COBRA
32




(3) All matenal contributions (including all employer contributions and employee salary reduction contributions) that are due
have been made within the ime period prescribed by ERISA to each such Employee Benefit Plan that 1s an Employee Pension Benefit
Plan and all material contributions for any period ending on or before the Closing Date that are not yet due have been made to each
such Employee Pension Benefit Plan or accrued in accordance with the past custom and practice of Company and 1its Subsidiaries All
premiums or other payments for all periods ending on or before the Clostng Date that are due on or before the Closing Date have been
paid with respect to each such Employee Benefit Plan that 1s an Employee Welfare Benefit Plan

(4) Each such Employee Benefit Plan that 1s intended to meet the requirements of a “qualified plan” under Code Section 401(a)
has received a determination from the Internal Revenue Service that such Employee Benefit Plan 1s so qualified, and to the
Knowledge of Company nothing has occurred since the date of such determination that could adversely affect the qualified status of

any such Employee Benefit Plan
(5) There 1s no Employee Benefit Plan that 1s an Employee Pension Benefit Plan

(6) Company has delivered to Parent correct and complete copies of the plan documents and summary plan descriptions, the
most recent determination letter received from the Internal Revenue Service, the most recent annual report (IRS Form 5500, with all
applicable attachments), and all related trust agreements, insurance contracts, and other funding arrangements that implement each

such Employee Benefit Plan

(b) With respect to each Employee Benefit Plan that any of Company, its Subsidiaries, and any ERISA Affiliate maintains or to
which any of them contributes or has any obligation to contribute or has any habtlity

(1) To the Knowledge of Company, there have been no Prohibited Transactions with respect to any such Employee Benefit Plan
No Fiduciary has any material Liability for breach of fiduciary duty or any other failure to act or comply in connection with the
administration or investment of the assets of any such Employee Benefit Plan No action, suit, proceeding, hearing, or investigation
with respect to the administration or the investment of the assets of any such Employee Benefit Plan (other than routine claims for

benefits) 1s pending or to the Knowledge of Company 1s threatened

(2) None of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries has incurred any material Liability under COBRA with respect to any such Employee
Benefit Plan that 1s an Employee Welfare Benefit Plan

(c) None of Company, its Subsidiaries and any ERISA Affiliate contributes to, has any obligation to contribute to, or has any
Liability (including withdrawal liability as defined tn ERISA Section 4201) under or with respect to any Multiemployer Plan
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(d) Section 3 24(d) of the Company Disclosure Letter lists each Employece Welfare Benefit Plan that any of Company and 1ts
Subsidiaries maintains, to which any of Company and its Substdiaries contributes or has any obligation to contribute, and describes
any Liability or potential Liability that may be incurred by or imposed on Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to medical,
health or life insurance or other welfare—type benefits for current or future retired or terminated employees, their spouses or their
dependents (other than with respect to claims incurred prior to an employee's retirement or other termination or in accordance with

COBRA or simular statutes)

325 Guarannes None of Company and ts Substdiaries 15 a guarantor or otherwise 1s hable for any Liability or obligation (including
indebtedness) of any other Person

326 Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

(a) Except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Company, the properties and facilities
currently occupied by Company and its Subsidiaries are not being used by Company or 1ts Subsidiaries to make, store, handle, treat,
dispose, generate, or transport hazardous substances in violation of any Environmental, Health and Safety Requirement

(b) To the Knowledge of Company, hazardous substances have never been made, stored, handled, treated, disposed of, generated,
or transported on or from the properties and facilities occupied by Company and its Subsidiaries during the term of such occupancy,
except in accordance with Environmental, Health and Safety Requirements and except as would not reasonably be expected to have a

Matenal Adverse Effect on Company

(¢) The properties, facilities and operations of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries and their respective predecessors and Affiliates have
complied and are in compliance 1n all material respects with all applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Requirements Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, each of Company, its Subsidiaries and their respective Affiliates has obtained and complied
with, and 1s in compliance with, all permuts, licenses and other authorizations that are required pursuant to Environmental, Health and
Safety Requirements for the occupation of its facilities and the operation of its business, except for those the failure of which to obtain
or comply or be in compliance with would not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on Company A list of all
such permuts, licenses and other authorizations 1s set forth in Section 3 26 of the Company Disclosure Letter

(d) To the Knowledge of Company, none of the properties, facilities or operations of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s subject to any
Judicial or administrative proceedings alleging the violation of any applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Requirements

(e) Tothe Knowledge of Company, none of the properties, facilities or operations of Company and its Subsidiaries 1s the subject of
federal, state or local investigation evaluating whether any remedial action is needed to respond to a release of any hazardous or toxic
waste, substance or constituent, any petroleum or petroleum product or any other hazardous, illegal or unlawful substance into the

environment
(f) Neither Company nor its Subsidiaries has filed any notice under any Environmental, Health and Safety Requirements indicating

past or present treatment or disposal of a hazardous waste, hazardous substance or any petroleum or petroleum product, or reporting a
spill or release of a hazardous or toxic waste, substance or constituent, any petroleum or petroleum product or any other substance into

the environment
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(g) None of Company and its Subsidiaries have within the past year received written notice nor are they aware of any Liability of
any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries 1n connection with any release of any hazardous or toxic waste, substance or constituent, any

petroleum or petroleum product or any other substance into the environment

3 27 Certain Business Relationships with Company and 1ts Subsidiaries None of the Stockholders and their Affiliates has been
involved 1n any business arrangement or relationship with any of Company and its Subsidiaries within the past 12 months, and none of
the Company's employees, the Stockholders and their respective Affiliates owns any asset, tangible or intangible, that 1s used tn the

business of any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries

328 Accounts, Lockboxes, Safe Deposit Boxes Section 3 28 of the Company Disclosure Letter contains a true and complete hist of
(1) the names of each bank, savings and loan association, securities or commodities broker or other financial institution in which any
of Company and its Subsidiaries has an account, including cash contribution accounts, and the names of all persons authorized to draw
thereon or have access thereto and (11) the location of all lockboxes and safe deposit boxes of Company or 1ts Subsidiaries and the
names of all persons authorized to draw thereon or have access thereto The Stockholders and their Affiliates have not commingled
monies or accounts of Company or its Subsidiaries with other monies or accounts of the Stockholders and their Affiliates or relating to
their other businesses nor have the Stockholders or their Affiliates transferred monies or accounts of Company or its Subsidiaries other
than to an account of Company or its Subsidiaries At the Effective Time, all monies and accounts of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries

shall be held by, and be accessible only to, Company or 1ts Subsidiaries

329 Accounting Matters Listed in Section 3 29 of the Company Disclosure Letter are all predecessor companies of Company, the

names of any Persons from which, since January 1, 1999, Company previously acquired material properties or assets tn a single
transaction or series of related transactions with a single party 1n excess of $2,000,000, and the changes in Company's capital structure

and caprtal stock ownership since October 1, 2003

330 PUHCA Company, together with its affiliates (as defined in Section 2(a)(11)(B) of the Public Uulity Holding Company Act of

1935, as amended (“PUHCA") (15 U S C § 79b(a)(11)(B))), 1s engaged exclusively in the business of providing telecommunications
services, information services, other services or products subject to the jurisdiction of the FCC or products or services that are related
or incidental to the proviston of any of the foregoing products or services, within the meaning of Section 34(a)(1) of PUHCA (15

US C § 79z-5c(a)(1)) and the rules and regulations thereunder

331 Investment Company Act Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary 1s an “investment company” as defined in the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended

332 Disclosure The representations and warranties contained 1n this ARTICLE I1I do not contain any untrue statement of a matenal
fact or omut to state any materal fact necessary to make the statements contained in this ARTICLE IT1, 1n the hight of the

circumstances under which they are made, not misleading
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ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

Except as set forth in the disclosure letter (subject to Section 9 13(c)) delivered to Company by Parent at or prior to entering into this
Agreement (the “Parent Disclosure Letter”), Parent hereby represents and warrants to Company that

41 Organization Each of Parent and Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and 1n good standing under the

Laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all requisite corporate or stmilar power and authority to own and operate 1ts
properties and assets and to carry on 1ts business as presently conducted

4 2 Authorization of Transaction Each of Parent and Merger Sub has all requisite corporate power and authority to, and has taken all
corporate action necessary in order to, execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement This Agreement is a valid
and binding agreement of each of Parent and Merger Sub, enforceable against 1t in accordance with 1ts terms, subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratortum and similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors'
rights and to general equity principles

4 3 Noncontravention Neither the execution and the delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, will (1) violate any provision of the charter or bylaws of any of Parent and 1its Subsidiarnes or (11), assuming
compliance with the matters referred to i the next sentence of this Section 4 3, (A) violate any Laws or Governmental Order to which
any of Parent and 1ts Subsidiaries 1s subject or (B) with or without notice, lapse of time or both, conflict with, result in a breach of,
constitute a default under, result in the acceleration of| create in any party the night to accelerate, terminate, modify or cancel, or
require any notice under any agreement, contract, lease, license, instrument or other arrangement to which any of Parent and 1ts
Subsidiaries 1s a party or by which 1t 1s bound or to which any of its assets 1s subject (or result in the imposition of any Security
Interest upon any of its assets), except, n the case of clause (11), such violation, breach, default, acceleration or other change that
would not, mdividually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on Parent Except (a) for any
FCC Consent, State PUC Consent or consent or approval of any other Governmental Entity 1dentified 1n Section 3 3 of the Company
Disclosure Letter or in Section 4 3 of the Parent Disclosure Letter, in each case as required by applicable Laws, (b) as may be
necessary as a result of any facts or circumstances relating solely to Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any holder of Company
Shares, (c) for the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the Delaware Secretary of State pursuant to the Delaware Law and of
appropriate documents with relevant authonities of other states in which Company 1s qualified to do business to reflect such Certificate
of Merger filing, (d) for filings by Parent under, and complance by Parent with the requirements under, the Secunities Exchange Act
and the applicable requirements of Nasdaq and (e) for any other third party approvals as are reflected 1n Section 4 3 of the Parent
Disclosure Letter, the execution, delivery and performance by Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby do not require any consents, warvers, authorizations or approvals of, or filings with, any Governmental Entity or
any other third Person, except 1n any case for those that the failure to make or obtain would not be reasonably expected to have a
Matenial Adverse Effect on Parent
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4 4 Brokers' Fees Neither Parent nor Merger Sub has any Liabihity or obligation to pay any fees or commussions to any broker,
finder, or agent with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement for which any of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries could
become liable or obligated

45 Capuital Resources Parent has sufficient capital resources to pay the Merger Consideration and shall maintain such capital
resources through the effective date of the Merger

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS

3 1 Interim Operations The Parties agree as follows with respect to the period from and after the execution of this Agreement

(a) Company shall not knowingly take or permit any of its Subsidiaries to take any action or refrain from taking any action the
result of which would be reasonably and foreseeably likely to prevent the consummation of the Merger by the Termination Date
Company covenants and agrees as to itself and its Subsidiaries that, after the date hereof and prior to the Effective Time, unless Parent
shall otherwise approve 1n writing, and except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement or the Interim Agreement or as
required by applicable Laws, the business of 1t and 1ts Subsidiaries shall be conducted in the ordinary and usual course and, to the
extent consistent therewith, it and 1ts Subsidiaries shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to preserve their business
organizations intact, maintain existing relations and goodwill with Governmental Entities, customers, suppliers, distributors, creditors,
lessors, employees and business associates and keep available the services of the present employees and agents of Company and its
Subsidiaries, maintain the vahdity of the Communications Licenses and, except as disclosed in Section 5 1 of the Company Disclosure
Letter, comply 1n all matenial respects with all requirements of the Communications Licenses and the rules and regulattons of the FCC
and State PUCs Without limrting the generahity of the foregoing and in furtherance thereof, from the date of this Agreement until the
Effective Time, except (A) as otherwise expressly required by this Agreement or as otherwise contemplated by the Interim Agreement

or as permutted 1n Section 5 6(d), (B) as Parent may approve in writing, (C) as set forth in Section 5 1(a) of the Company Disclosure

Letter or (D), in the case of any of the following clauses 1n this Section 5 1(a), as may be expressly permitted by another of the

following clauses in this Section 5 1(a), the Company will not and will not permit its Subsidiaries to
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(1) adopt or propose any material change 1n 1ts articles of incorporation or by—laws or other applicable governing instruments or
amend any term of the Company Shares,

(2) merge or consolidate Company or any of its Subsidiaries with any other Person, except for any such transactions among
wholly owned Subsidiaries of Company that are not obligors or guarantors of third—party indebtedness, or adopt a plan of liquidation,

(3) acquure assets outside of the Ordinary Course of Business from any other Person with a value or purchase price 1n excess of
$50,000 m the aggregate, other than acquisitions pursuant to Contracts to the extent in effect immediately prior to the execution of this

Agreement and as otherwise set forth in Section 5 1(a)(3) of the Company Disclosure Letter, and other than capital expenditures as
permutted by Section 5 1(a)(12),

(4) (x) enter into any material line of business 1n any geographic area other than the current lines of business of Company or any
of its Subsidiaries, and 1n the geographic areas where they are currently conducted, as of the date hereof or (y) engage 1n the conduct
of any business 1n any state that would require the receipt or transfer of a Communications License,

(5) file for any License outside of the Ordinary Course of Business,

(6) other than as set forth 1n Section 5 1{a)(6) of the Company Disclosure Letter and other than the 1ssuance of shares of
Common Stock upon exercise of Employee Stock Options or conversion of shares of Preferred Stock outstanding as of the date of this
Agreement, issue, sell, pledge, dispose of, grant, transfer, lease, license, guarantee, encumber, or authorize the 1ssuance, sale, pledge,
disposition, grant, transfer, lease, license, guarantee or encumbrance of, any shares of capital stock of Company or any of 1ts
Subsidiaries (other than the 1ssuance of shares by a wholly owned Subsidiary of Company to Company or another wholly owned
Subsidiary), or securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for any shares of such capital stock, or any options, warrants,

conversion rights, stock appreciation rnights, redemption rights, repurchase rights, agreements, arrangements, calls, commitments or
other rights of any kind to acquire any shares of such capital stock or such convertible or exchangeable securities,
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(7) other than (1) in connection with recervables, facilities and securitizations as n effect on the date hereof and disclosed in the
Company Disclosure Letter and renewals thereof 1n the Ordinary Course of Business, (11) 1in connection with the refinancing of
Company's indebtedness under 1ts credit facility as in effect on the date hereof and disclosed in the Company Disclosure Letter, (111)
Liens created or incurred to secure the purchase price of assets acquired as permitted by Section 5 1(a)(12) and (1v) Liens described 1n
clause (11), (111), (1v), (v) or (v1) of Section 3 8§, create or incur any Security Interest on any assets of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries,

(8) other than loans and advances to employees of Company or its Subsidiaries in the Ordinary Course of Business and not in
excess of $10,000 at any time outstanding to any employee, make any loans, advances or capital contributions to or investments in any
Person (other than Company or any direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary of Company),

(9) declare, set aside or pay any dividend or distribution with respect to Company's capital stock (whether in cash, stock or
property or any combination thereof) or redeem, purchase or acquire any of its capital stock,

(10) reclassify, split, combine, subdivide or repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of its capital
stock or securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for any shares of its capital stock,

(11) other than (1) in connection with receivables, facilities and securitizations as in effect on the date hereof and disclosed in the
Company Disclosure Letter and renewals thereof in the Ordinary Course of Business, (11) in connection with the refinancing of
Company's indebtedness under 1ts credit facility as in effect on the date hereof and disclosed in the Company Disclosure Letter, and
(11) indebtedness ncurred to finance the capital expenditures permutted by Section 5 1(a)(12) and guarantees thereof, incur any

indebtedness for borrowed money or guarantee such indebtedness of another Person, or 1ssue or sell any debt securities or warrants or
other rights to acquire any debt security of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries,
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(12) except for the caputal expenditures set forth in Section 5 1(a)(12) of the Company Disclosure Letter and asset acquisitions

otherwise permitted by Section 5 1(a)(3) (without giving effect to the exception therein for capital expenditures as permitted by this
clause (12)), make or authorize any capital expenditure,

(13) enter into any contract or other agreement (x) that would have been a Matenial Contract as described 1n Section 3 18 (d), (f)
or (g) had 1t been entered into prior to the date of this Agreement, (y) other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, that involves
annual consideration in excess of $50,000 or (z) that involves annual consideration in excess of $250,000 and 1s not terminable by

Company and its Subsidiaries without additional payment or penalty (including by any acceleration of remaining amounts), upon not
more than 90 days' notice,

(14) make any changes with respect to accounting policies or procedures, except as required by changes in GAAP or by

applicable Laws or except as Company, based upon the advice of its independent auditors after consultation with Parent, determines 1n
good faith 1s advisable to conform to best accounting practices,

(15) settle any litigation or other proceedings before or threatened to be brought before a Governmental Entity for an amount to

be paid by Company or any of its Subsidiaries in excess of $25,000 or that would be reasonably likely to have any adverse impact on
the operations of Company or any of its Subsidiaries,

(16) other than in the Ordinary Course of Business or as disclosed 1n Section 5 1(a)(16) of the Company Disclosure Letter, (1)
amend or modify 1n any material respect adverse to Company or 1ts Subsidiaries, or terminate or waive any material right or benefit of
Company or its Subsidiaries under, any Material Contract, or (1) cancel, modify or waive any debts or claims held by 1t or waive any
rights,

(17) sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any assets of Company or its Subsidiaries except (1) in the Ordinary Course of
Business or obsolete assets or (11) as set forth in Section 5 1(a)(17) of the Company Disclosure Letter,
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(18) except as (x) required pursuant to existing written, binding agreements 1n effect prior to the date of this Agreement or as
otherwise required by applicable Laws, (y) set forth in Section 5 1(a)(18) of the Company Disclosure Letter or (z) the costs and
expenses of which will be a Transaction Cost or Severance Amount, (1) enter into any commitment to provide any severance or
termination benefits to (or amend any such existing arrangement with) any director, officer or employee of Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, other than for severance or termination benefits to employees (other than officers) in the Ordinary Course of Business
and pursuant to the terms of plans, programs or arrangements 1n effect prior to the date of this Agreement and disclosed on Section
3 18 or 3 25 of the Company Disclosure Letter, (11) increase the benefits payable under any existing severance or termination benefit
policy or employment agreement (other than as required to be increased pursuant to the existing terms of any such policy or agreement
or as a result of ordinary pay raises or promotions), (111) enter into any employment, severance, change 1n control, termination,
deferred compensation or other similar agreement (or amend any such existing agreement) with any director, officer or employee of
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries other than pursuant to the terms of any plan or agreement 1n effect on the date hereof and
disclosed on Section 3 18 or 3 25 of the Company Disclosure Letter, (1v) establish, adopt, amend or terminate any employee or
director compensation or other benefit, employment or severance plan, program or agreement (including Employee Benefit Plans,
each, a “Compensation Plan”), except for technical amendments n the Ordinary Course of Business, provided that such amendments
do not matenally increase the cost of such arrangements to Company, (v) increase the compensation, bonus or other benefits of, make
any new awards under any Compensation Plan to, or pay any bonus to any director, officer, employee, consultant or independent
contractor of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except for (1) the payment of the first half 2005 bonus amounts set forth 1n
Section 5 1(a)(18) of the Company Disclosure Letter and accrued for in the Most Recent Financial Statements by the Company and
(2) increases, new awards or payments in the Ordinary Course of Business for employees who are not officers of Company, (v1) take
any action to fund or 1n any other way secure the payment of compensation or benefits under any Compensation Plan, except as
required pursuant to the terms thercof as in effect as of the date of this Agreement, (vi1) take any action to accelerate the vesting or
payment of any compensation or benefits under any Compensation Plan, to the extent not already required 1n any such Compensation
Plan, or (viu) enter into any collective bargaining agreements, provided, however, that the prohibitions contained in the foregoing

clauses (1) and (v) shall not apply in connection with newly hired or newly promoted employees, 1n each case to the extent consistent
with past practice,

(19) (a) take any action that may reasonably be expected to jeopardize the vahidity of any of the Communications Licenses or
result in the revocation, surrender or any adverse modification of, forfeiture of, or fail to renew under regular terms, any of the
Communications Licenses, (b) fail to use commercially reasonable efforts to prosecute with due diligence any pending applications
with respect to the Communications Licenses, including any renewals thereof, and (c) with respect to Communications Licenses, fail
to make all matenial filings and reports and pay all material fees necessary or reasonably appropriate for the continued operation of the
Business, as and when such approvals, consents, permits, licenses, filings, or reports or other authorizations are necessary or
appropriate or (d) fail to initiate appropriate steps to renew any material Licenses held by Company or any of its Subsidiaries that are

scheduled to terminate prior to or within 60 days after the Effective Time or to prosecute any pending applications for any material
License, or
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(20) agree or commut to do any of the foregoing

(b) Parent shall not knowingly take or permut any of its Subsidiaries to take any action or refrain from taking any action the result
of which would be reasonably and foreseeably likely to prevent the consummation of the Merger by the Termination Date

52 Filings, Other Actions, Notification

(a) Company and Parent shall cooperate with each other and use (and shall cause their respective Subsidiaries to use) their
respective reasonable best efforts to take or cause to be taken all actions, and do or cause to be done all things, necessary, proper or
advisable on 1ts part under this Agreement and applicable Laws to consummate and make effective the Merger and the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement as soon as practicable, including preparing and filing as promptly as practicable all
documentation to effect all necessary notices, reports and other filings (including by filing no later than 5 business days after the date
of this Agreement all applications required to be filed with the FCC, provided, however, that the failure to file within 5 business days
will not constitute a breach of this Agreement) and to obtain as promptly as practicable all consents, registrations, approvals, permits
and authorizations necessary or advisable to be obtained from any third party and/or any Governmental Entity 1n order to consummate
the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, provided, however, that nothing in this Section 5 2 (1)
shall require, or be construed to require, Parent to take or to refrain from taking any action, to agree to any restriction with respect to
any assets or operations of Parent or 1ts Subsidiaries, or to cause 1ts Subsidiaries to do or agree to do any of the foregoing, in each case
that would take effect prior to the Effective Time, or (1) shall require, or be construed to require, Parent to take or to refrain from
taking any action, to agree to any restriction with respect to any assets or operations of Parent or Company or 1ts respective
Subsidiaries, or to cause its Subsidiaries to do or agree to do any of the foregoing, 1f any such action, failure to act, restriction or
agreement, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on 1t or 2 Combined
Material Adverse Effect Subject to applicable Laws relating to the exchange of information, Parent and Company shall have the right
to review 1n advance, and to the extent practicable each will consult the other on, all of the information relating to Parent or Company,
as the case may be, and any of their respective Subsidiaries, that appears 1n any filing made with, or written materials submutted to,
any third party and/or any Governmental Entity in connection with the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement To the extent permitted by law, each Party shall provide the other with copies of all correspondence between 1t (or its
advisors) and any Governmental Entity relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and, to the extent reasonably
practicable, all telephone calls and meetings with a Governmental Entity regarding the transactions contemplated by this Agreement

shall include representatives of Parent and Company In exercising the foregoing rights, each of Company and Parent shall act
reasonably and as promptly as practicable
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(b) To the extent permitted by law, Company and Parent each shall, upon request by the other, furnish the other with all
information concerming itself, its Affiliates, directors, officers and stockholders and such other matters as may be reasonably necessary
or advisable 1n connection with any statement, filing, notice or application made by or on behalf of Parent, Company or any of their
respective Affiliates to any third party and/or any Governmental Entity in connection with the Merger and the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement

(c) Subject to applicable Laws and the instructions of any Governmental Entity, Company and Parent each shall keep the other
appnised of the status of matters relating to completion of the transactions contemplated hereby, including promptly furnishing the
other with copies of notices or other communications recerved by Parent or Company, as the case may be, or any of its Subsidiaries,
from any third party and/or any Governmental Entity with respect to the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this
Agreement Company shall give prompt notice to Parent of any change, fact or condition of which 1t has Knowledge that 1s reasonably
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on Company or of any failure of any condition to Parent's obligations to effect the
Merger Parent shall give prompt notice to Company of any change, fact or condition of which 1t has Knowledge that 1s reasonably
expected to result in a Matenial Adverse Effect on Parent or of any failure of any condition to Company's obligations to effect the
Merger

(d) Subject to the proviso set forth in Section 5 2(a), Parent's and Company's obligations under this Section 5 2 shall include,
without limitation, the obligation to use their respective reasonable best efforts to defend any lawsuits or other legal proceedings,
whether judicial or administrative, challenging the consummation of the Merger or the other transactions contemplated hereby,
including using reasonable best efforts to seek to have any stay or other mjunctive relief which would prevent or matenally delay or
impair the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement entered by any court or other Governmental Entity
reversed on appeal or vacated
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53 Company Financial Statements

(a) Assoon as reasonably practicable, but in any event within 20 days after the end of each calendar month commencing with
October 2005, Company will deliver to Parent unaudited consolidated balance sheets of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries as of the end of
such calendar month and as at the end of the comparative month in the preceding year, together with unaudited summaries of
consolidated earnings of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries for such calendar month and for the comparative month in the preceding year
As soon as reasonably practicable, but in any event within 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter of Company, commencing with
the quarter ended September 30, 2005, Company wll deliver to Parent unaudited consolidated balance sheets of Company and 1ts
Subsidiaries as at the end of such fiscal quarter and as at the end of the comparative fiscal quarter of the preceding year, together with
the unaudited statements of consolidated income and cash flows for the fiscal quarters then ended

(b) Company will use 1ts reasonable best efforts to work with Emst & Young LLP to deliver to Parent as promptly as practicable
after the date of this Agreement (and in any event prior to the Closing Date) the following information with respect to each of
Company and 1ts Subsidiaries (or, 1n the case of clause (B) below, with respect ta each of the Subsidiaries) as of the then most recent
practicable date (A) the amount of any net operating loss, net capital loss, unused investment or other credit, unused foreign tax or
excess charitable contribution allocable to Company or Subsidiary, (B) the amount of any deferred gain or loss allocable to Company
or Subsidiary arising out of any Deferred Intercompany Transaction, (C) the basis of Company or Subsidiary 1n 1ts assets and (D) the
basis of the stockholder(s) of the Subsidiary 1n 1ts stock (or the amount of any Excess Loss Account)

54 Access Subject to confidentiality obligations and similar restrictions that may be applicable to mformation furnished to Company
or its Subsidiaries by third—parties that may be in Company’s or its Subsidianes' possession from time to time, from the date hereof
until the Closing, Company shall (1) give Parent and 1its counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives
(collectively, the “Parent Representatives”) reasonable access during normal business hours to the offices, properties, books and
records of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries, (it) furnish to Parent and the Parent Representatives such financial and operating data and
other information as such Persons may reasonably request and (111) instruct 1ts employees, counsel and financial advisors to cooperate
with Parent in Parent's investigation of the business of Company and its Subsidiaries, provided that any information provided to Parent
or the Parent Representatives pursuant to this Section 5 4 shall be subject to the Confidentiality Agreement, and provided further that
no investigation pursuant to this Section 5 4 or otherwise 1n connection with this Agreement and the other Transaction Agreements
shall affect any representation or warranty given by Company hereunder or by any Preferred Stockholder n any instrument or
certificate delivered pursuant to this Agreement Any investigation pursuant to this Section 5 4 shall be conducted in such manner as
not unreasonably to interfere with the conduct of the business of Company and 1its Subsidiaries Notwithstanding the foregoing, Parent
shall not have access to personnel records of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries relating to individual performance or evaluation records,
medical histories or other information that, 1n the Company's good faith opinion, 1s sensitive or the disclosure of which could subject
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to nisk of hability From the date hereof until the Closing, Company shall furnish and shall cause
each Company Subsidiary to furnish to Parent copies of any notices, documents, requests, court papers or other matenals received
from any governmental agency or third party with respect to the Transactions
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55 Durector and Officer Liability Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation, and the Surviving Corporation hereby agrees, to do
the following

(a) From and for six years after the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, and the Surviving Corporation
shall, indemnify and hold harmless each present and former officer and director of Company and of any Subsidiary of the Company
(each an “Indemnified Person™) in respect of acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective Time to the fullest extent
permitted by Delaware Law and as provided under the Company's certificate of incorporation and bylaws in effect on the date hereof,
provided that such indemnification shall be subject to any imitation imposed from time to time under applicable law The Indemnified
Person shall be entitled to control the defense of any action, suit, investigation or proceeding with counsel of his or her own choosing
reasonably acceptable to the Surviving Corporation and the Surviving Corporation shall cooperate in the defense thereof, provided that
the Surviving Corporation shall not be liable for the fees of more than one counsel for all Indemnified Persons, other than local
counsel, in any one jurisdiction, unless a conflict of interest shall be caused thereby, and provided further that the Surviving
Corporation shall not be liable for any settlement effected without 1ts written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld)

(b) Any Indemnified Person wishing to claim indemmnification under Section 5 5(a), upon learning of any such claim, action, sut,
proceeding or investigation that may give rise to such claim, shall promptly notify Parent thereof, but the falure to so notify shall not
rehieve Parent or the Surviving Corporation of any hability it may have to such Indemnified Person except to the extent such failure
matenally and actually prejudices the indemnifying party In the event of any such claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation
(whether ansing before or after the Effective Time), (1) Parent or the Surviving Corporation shall have the right to assume the defense
thereof and Parent shall not be liable to such Indemnified Persons for any legal expenses of other counsel or any other expenses
subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Persons in connection with the defense thereof, except that 1f Parent or the Surviving
Corporation does not elect to assume such defense or counsel for the Indemmified Persons advises that there are 1ssues that raise
conflicts of interest between Parent or the Surviving Corporation and the Indemnified Persons, the Indemnified Persons may retain
counsel satisfactory to them, and Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall jointly and severally be obligated to pay all reasonable
fees and expenses of such counsel for the Indemnified Persons promptly as statements therefor are recelved, provided, however, that
Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall be obligated pursuant to this Section 5 5(b) to pay for only one firm of counsel for all
Indemnified Persons 1n any jurisdiction unless the use of one counsel for such Indemmified Persons would present such counsel with a
conflict of nterest, provided, that the fewest number of counsel necessary to avoid conflicts of interest shall be used, (11) the
Indemnified Persons will use their reasonable efforts to cooperate in the defense of any such matter, and (1u) Parent and the Surviving
Corporation shall not be liable for any settlement effected without their prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably
withheld or delayed), and provided, further, that Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall not have any obligation under this
Agreement to any Indemmified Person 1f and when a court of competent jurisdiction shall ultimately determine, and such
determination shall have become final, that the indemnification of such Indemnified Person in the manner contemplated hereby 1s
prohibited by applicable law

(c) Prnor to the Closing Date, Company shall procure a six—year “ta1” prepaid policy prior to the Effective Time on terms with
respect to coverage and amount substantially comparable to, but no less favorable to Company and the Indemnified Persons than,
those under the directors' and officers' hability policy maintained by Company and in effect on the date hereof
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5 6 Employee Benefits After the Merger

(a) Until at least June 30, 2006, Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation to provide those of its and its Subsidaries' employees
who were employed by Company or its Subsidiaries immedately prior to the Effective Time with compensation and employee
benefits at least as favorable, in the aggregate, as the compensation and benefits provided by Company and its Subsidiaries to such
employees immediately prior to the date hereof The preceding sentence shall not preclude Parent or the Surviving Corporation at any
time following the Effective Time from terminating the employment of any Company employee

(b) Parent shall, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, give each Company employee full credit in respect of his or her
employment with Company or 1ts Subsidiaries prior to the Effective Time for purposes of ehgibility, vesting, level of benefits and
service under any new employee benefit plans offered by the Surviving Corporation after the Merger (“Surviving Corporation New
Plans”) or any Parent Employee Benefit Plan in which the Company employee 1s permtted to participate (to the extent that the
corresponding Company Employee Benefit Plan currently provided to Company employees gave such credit)

(c) From and after the Effective Time, Parent will, or will cause the Surviving Corporation to, (1) cause any pre—existing conditions
or hmutations and ehigibility waiting periods (only to the extent such limitations or waiting periods did not apply to the Company
employees under the Company Employee Benefit Plans) under any group health plans of Parent, or any group health plans
constituting Surviving Corporation New Plans, in which Company employees are permitted to participate to be warved with respect to
the Company employees and their eligible dependents and (11) give each Company employee credit toward applicable deductibles and
annual out—of—pocket limits under group health plans of Parent or group health plans constituting Surviving Corporation New Plans
for expenses incurred under the Benefit Plans during the plan year in which such employees and their ehigible dependents are
transferred to the group health plans of Parent, or any group health plans constituting Surviving Corporation New Plans

(d) From and after the Effective Time, Parent will, and will cause the Surviving Corporation to, honor, without modification,
perform all acts and pay all amounts required or due under or with respect to each Company Employee Benefit Plan and each
agreement that relates to any current or former employee of the Company and its Subsidiaries or the terms of any such employee's
employment or termunation of employment, including, without hmitation, all employment, retention, change of control, employment
protection, severance, termination, consulting, deferred compensation, executive pension and retirement, welfare and fringe benefit
agreements, plans and programs Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Parent will, and will cause the Surviving

Corporation, to admimister the Company's 2005 Bonus Plan 1n the manner set forth 1n Section 5 6(d) of the Company Disclosure
Letter
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(e) Parent acknowledges and agrees that the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will constitute a
“change of control” of the Company for purposes of each Company Employee Benefit Plan and each program, policy and agreement
covering any current or former employee of the Company and its Subsidiaries as has been specifically indicated 1n Section 5 6(¢) of
the Company Disclosure Letter to have any such “change of control” provisions, and, accordingly agrees to, and agrees to cause the
Surviving Corporation to, honor all provisions relating to a change of control under such Company Employee Benefit Plans,
programs, policies and agreements as have been specifically indicated 1 Section 5 6(e) of the Company Disclosure Letter to have any
such “change of control” provisions and pay all costs associated therewith and specifically indicated in Section 5 6(e) of the Company
Disclosure Letter

(f) Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 5 6 shall preclude Parent from seeking to (1) modify any employment
agreement with the consent of the affected employee or employees or (1) modify any Company Employee Benefit Plan to the extent
such modification 1s permutted by the terms of such Company Employee Benefit Plan and 1s consistent with Section 5 6(a)

57 Nonces and Filing by Company

(a) As promptly as practicable, but 1n no event more than three business days after the date hereof, Company shall give to all
holders of Company Shares other than the Consenting Stockholders the notice (which shall be 1n form and content reasonably
acceptable to Parent) of the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the Merger and appraisal nights required to be given
pursuant to the first sentence of Section 262(d) of the Delaware Law and the Secretary of Company shall execute a written affidavit
certifying to Company and Parent that such notice has been given as so required

(b) As promptly as practicable, but in no event more than three business days after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation
shall give to all former holders of Company Shares that were stili Dissenting Stockholders as of the Effective Time the notice of the
Effective Time required to be given pursuant to the fifth sentence of Section 262(d) of the Delaware Law and the Secretary of the
Surviving Corporation shall execute a written affidavit certifying to Company and Parent that such notice has been given as so
required
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ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS TO CLOSE

6 1 Conditions to Each Party's Obligation The respective obligation of each Party to consummate the Merger 1s subject to the
satisfaction or waiver of each of the following conditions at or prior to the Effective Time

(a) (1) All approvals and authorizations required to be obtained 1n respect of the FCC Licenses for the consummation of the Merger
shall have been obtained, and (1) all other Governmental Consents the failure of which to make or obtain would, individually or in the
aggregate, provide a reasonable basis to conclude that Company or its directors or officers would be subject to nisk of criminal hability
or to nisk of civil liability for which they are not entitled to indemnification by Company (or the Surviving Corporation), shall have
been made or obtained For purposes of this Agreement, “Governmental Consents” means all notices, reports, filings, consents,
registrations, approvals, permits or authorizations required to be made prior to the Effective Time by Company or Parent or any of
their respective Subsidiaries with, or obtamned prior to the Effective Time by Company or Parent or any of their respective Subsidiaries
from, any Governmental Entity in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the Merger
and other transactions contemplated hereby

(b) Neither any Laws or Governmental Order shall be enacted, promulgated, entered, enforced or deemed applicable to the Merger
nor any other action shall have been taken by any Governmental Entity that 1s in effect and that (1) restrains, enjoins or otherwise
prohibits the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (11) makes the purchase of, or payment for, some or
all of Company Shares 1llegal

6 2 Conditions to Obligation of Parent and Merger Sub The obligations of each of Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the
Merger are also subject to satisfaction or waiver by Parent or Merger Sub of the following conditions at or prior to the Effective Time

(a) (1) Each of the representations and warranties of Company set forth in the first three and the last sentences of Section 3 1(a) and
in Sections 3 1(b), 3 1(c), 3 1(d), 32,3 3(1) and 3 13 of this Agreement shall be true and correct 1n all material respects as of the date
of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent any such
representation and warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and
correct as of such earlier date), (11) any failure of any of the other representations and warranties of Company set forth in this
Agreement (without giving effect to any matenality or Material Adverse Effect qualifications contained therein), individually or 1n the
aggregate, to be true and correct as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing
Date (except to the extent any such representation and warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such
representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earlier date) shall not have had a Material Adverse Effect on
Company, (11) from and after the date of this Agreement and to the Closing Date there has not been any Material Adverse Effect on
Company, provided, however, that, any damage to properties, service interruptions, loss of customers, additional operating and other
costs and other adverse consequences resulting from Hurricanes Katrina and Ruta, as and to the extent described 1n Section 3 11(m) of
the Company Disclosure Letter under the heading “Katrina/Rita Impact,” shall not be deemed to be a Material Adverse Effect, and
(1v) Parent shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Company by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of Company to such effect
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(b) Company shall have performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by 1t under this Agreement at or
prior to the Closing Date, and Parent shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Company by the chief executive officer and
the chief financial officer of Company to such effect

(¢) No Governmental Entity of applicable jurisdiction shall have instituted (or, if instituted, shall not have withdrawn) any
proceeding seeking any Governmental Order and no Governmental Entity shall have instituted any civil, criminal or administrative
action, suit, claim, hearing, investigation or other proceeding the existence of which would, in the reasonable judgment of Parent,
individually or in the aggregate, be reasonably likely to result in a failure of the condition set forth 1n Section 6 1(b)

(d) All approvals and authorizations required to be obtained in respect of the Communications Licenses for the consummation of
the Merger shall have been obtained and all other Governmental Consents (other than those described in Section 6 1(a)(1)) the failure
of which to make or obtain would, individually or in the aggregate, (1) reasonably be expected to result in a Combined Material
Adverse Effect or (11) provide a reasonable basis to conclude that Parent or any of its directors or officers would be subject to the risk
of criminal hability, shall have been made or obtained (such consents, together with those consents that are conditions under Section
6 1(a)(1) being the “Required Governmental Consents™) All Governmental Consents that have been obtained shall have been obtained
without the imposition of any term, condition or consequence the acceptance of which would, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have or result in a Combined Material Adverse Effect

(e) Company shall have obtained the consent or approval of each Person whose consent or approval shall be required under any
Contract set forth 1n Section 6 2(€) of the Company Disclosure Letter to which Company or any of its Subsidiaries 1s a party in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement except where the fatlure to obtain such consent or approval,
individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to result in a Combined Material Adverse Effect

(f) Except as set forth in Section 6 2(f) of the Company Disclosure Letter, Parent and Merger Sub shall have received the
resignations as directors and officers, effective as of the Closing, of each director and officer of Company and 1ts Subsidiaries other
than those whom Parent shall have specified in writing at least five business days prior to the Closing

(g) Company and the Representatives shall have delivered to Parent and Merger Sub an executed counterpart of the Escrow
Agreement

(h) There shall not have been any material default by Company or 1ts Subsidiaries under the Interim Agreement and the Interim
Agreement shall be in full force and effect
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(1) Parent shall have received a certificate dated the Closing Date and signed on behalf of Company by the chief executive officer
and the chief financial officer of Company certifying as to the respective amounts of the Transaction Costs and the Severance Amount
(the “Closing Costs Cernficate”)

() Holders of no more than 400,000 shares of Common Stock shall be Dissenting Stockholders or holders of no more than 400,000
shares of Preferred Stock shall be Dissenting Stockholders

Subject to the provisions of applicable law, Parent and Merger Sub may waive, 1n whole or 1n part, any condition specified in this
Section 6 2 1f they execute a wnting so stating at or prior to the Closing

6 3 Conduinions to Obligation of Company The obligation of Company to consummate the Merger are also subject to satisfaction or
waiver by Company of the following conditions at or prior to the Effective Time

(a) (1) Each of the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub set forth in Sections 4 1,4 2, 4 3(1) and 4 5 of this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made
on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent any such representation and warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, 1n
which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such earhier date), (1) any failure of any of the other
representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement (without giving effect to any matenality or
Material Adverse Effect qualifications contained therein), individually or 1n the aggregate, to be true and correct as of the date of this
Agreement and as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent any such representation and
warranty expressly speaks as of an earlier date, in which case such representation and warranty shall be true and correct as of such
earlier date) shall not have had a Material Adverse Effect on Parent, and (i11) Company shall have received a certificate signed on
behalf of Parent and Merger Sub by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Parent to such effect

(b) Each of Parent and Merger Sub shall have performed 1n all matenial respects all obligations required to be performed by 1t under
this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date, and Company shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Parent and Merger
Sub by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of Parent to such effect

(c) Parent shall have delivered to Company an executed counterpart of the Escrow Agreement

Subject to the provisions of applicable law, Company may waive, i whole or in part, any condition specified 1n this Section 6 3 1f it
executes a writing so stating at or prior to the Closing
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ARTICLE vII
SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; INDEMNIFICATION

7 1 Survival of Representations and Warrannes The representations and warranties of the Parties contained 1n this Agreement shall
survive the Closing hereunder (even if the damaged Party knew or had reason to know of any misrepresentation or breach of warranty
or covenant at the time of Closing) and continue in full force and effect until the Claim Date (subject, in each case, to any applicable
statutes of limitations)

7 2 Indemnification
(@) Indemmification From and after the Effective Time

(1) From the Escrow Fund and as provided 1n, and subject to the terms and conditions of, this Section 7 2, Parent and 1ts officers
directors, affiliates (including the Surviving Corporation), employees, agents and representatives (each a “Parent Indemnified Party”
and, collectively, the “Parent Indemnified Parties™), shall be indemnified and held harmless aganst (1) all claims (including without
hmitation Third Party Claims, as defined below, and any claims for indemnification against Company, Surviving Corporation or
Parent by officers, directors or employees of Company), losses, liabilities, damages, diminutions 1n value, deficiencies, costs, interest,
awards, amounts paid in settlement, judgments, penalties and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' and consultants’ fees and
expenses and including any such expenses incurred mn connection with nvestigating, defending against or setthing any of the
foregoing, but excluding hability for any lost profits or incidental, consequential, indirect or spectal damages, (herenafter individually
a “Loss” and collectively “Losses”™), incurred or sustained by the Parent Indemnified Parties, or any of them, directly or indirectly,
anising out of or by reason of or as a result of (x) any breach or maccuracy of a representation or warranty of Company contained in
this Agreement or 1n any certificate or other instrument delivered by or on behalf of Company pursuant to this Agreement or (y) any
claim by any holder of Common Stock 1n respect of or arising out of or as a result or by reason of (or alleged to be in respect of or to
arise out of or as a result or by reason of) this Agreement or the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Merger, the approval
or adoption thereof or any solicitation of such approval or adoption (other than appraisal proceedings under Section 262 of the
Delaware Law) and (u1) the amount, 1 any, by which the payment required to be paid to any Dissenting Stockholder in respect of its
Company Shares exceeds the amount of the Merger Consideration that would have been received by such holder in respect of such
Company Shares pursuant to Sections 2 4(e) and (f) had such holder not been a Dissenting Stockholder and that was not paid out as
Merger Consideration, and (111) any costs and expenses, including attorneys' and consultants' fees and expenses (including any that
may be assessed by the court) and including any such expenses incurred in connection with investigating, defending against or
settling, but not including the amounts paid to the former holders in respect of their Company Shares as determined pursuant to
Section 262 of the Delaware Law, incurred or sustained by the Parent Indemnified Parties, or any of them, directly or indirectly,
arising out of or by reason of or as a result of any appraisal proceeding 1n respect of the Company Shares under Section 262 of the
Delaware Law and (1v) the amount by which the aggregate amount of all Transaction Costs and Severance Amounts shall exceed the
aggregate amount thereof set forth in the Closing Costs Certificate
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(2) As provided in, and subject to the terms and conditions of, this Section 7 2, Parent shall indemnify and hold harmless each of
the Preferred Stockholders and 1ts shareholders, officers, directors, affiliates, employees, agents and representatives (each a “Company
Indemnufied Party” and, collectively, the “Company Indemnified Parties™), against all Losses incurred or sustained by the Company
Indemnified Parties, or any of them, directly or indirectly, arising out of any breach or inaccuracy of a representation or warranty of
Parent or Merger Sub contained in this Agreement or in any certificate or other instrument delivered by or on behalf of Parent or
Merger Sub pursuant to this Agreement

(b) Third Party Claims

(1) Promptly after receipt by any Person entitled to indemnification under this Section 7 2 (the “Indemnified Party”) of notice of
the commencement of any action by a third party in respect of which, 1f successful, the Indemnified Party would be entitled to
indemntfication under this Section 7 2 (a “Third Party Claim”), the Indemnified Party shall notify the Representative in writing, who
shall in turn notify each person that 1s obligated to provide such indemnification (an “Indemmfying Party”) thereof in writing, but any
failure to so noufy the Representative or the Indemnifying Party, as the case may be, shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party from any
liability that it may have to the Indemnified Party other than to the extent the Indemnifying Party 1s actually prejudiced thereby

(2) The Representative shall have the right to assume control of the defense of the Indemnified Party against the Third Party
Claim with counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Indemnified Party or, if the Representative does not assume such defense, to
participate in the defense of such Third Party Claim at its own expense
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(3) So long as the Representative 1s diligently conducting the defense of the Third Party Claim

O]

(1)

(1)

the Indemmified Party shall be entitled to participate in the defense of such claim and to
employ counsel at its own cost and expense (which expense shall not constitute a Loss
unless the Indemnified Party reasonably determunes that the Representative, because of
a conflict of interest, may not adequately represent any interests of the Indemnified
Parties and to the extent such costs and expenses are reasonable) to assist in the
handling of such claim,

the Representative shall not consent to the entry of any judgment or enter into any
settlement that does not include as an unconditional term thereof the giving by each
claimant or plaintiff to each Indemnified Party of a release from all liability n respect
of such claim, and

the Representative shall not be liable to such Indemnified Party hereunder for any legal
expenses subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Party in connection with the
defense

(4) Notwithstanding the foregoing, 1f (x) a Third Party Claim seeks equitable relief or (y) the subject matter of a Third Party
Clamm relates, in whole or 1n part, to the ongoing business of any of the Indemnified Parties, which Claim, 1f decided against any of the
Indemnified Parties, would materiaily adversely affect the ongoing business of any of the Indemnified Parties, or (z) a Third Party
Claim, if decided against any of the Indemnified Parties, would, together with any other claims for indemnification under this Section
7 2 by such Indemnified Parties, result in Losses that would reasonably be expected to exceed, by 25% or more, the maximum amount
of the Indemnifying Party's remaining indemnification obligations under this Section 7 2 (after giving effect to the limitations herein
on the maximum payments under this Section 7 2 by the Indemnifying Party) then, in any such case, the Indemnified Parties alone
shall be entitled to contest, defend and settle such Third Party Claim n the first instance and, 1f the Indemnified Parties do not contest,
defend or settle such Third Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party shall have the right to contest and defend (but not settle) such Third
Party Claim If the Indemnified Parties shall have exercised the right to contest, defend and settle any such Third Party Claim instead
of the Indemnifying Party by reason of the foregoing provisions of this Section 7 2(b)(4), such Indemnifying Party shall be entitled, at
its own cost and expense, to participate in the defense of such claim and to employ counsel
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(5) The Indemnified Party shall obtain the prior written approval of the Indemmifying Party before admitting liability or entering
into any settlement of such claim or ceasing to defend against such claim that the Indemnified Party 1s defending (with such approval
not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), provided that the Indemnified Party shall not be required to obtain approval from the
Representative of the Indemnifying Party in respect of any claims to the extent that the Losses resulting from such admission of
liability or settlement or cessation of defense exceed, by 25% or more, the maximum amount of the Indemnifying Party's remaining
indemnification oblhigations under this Section 7 2 (after giving effect to the imitations herein on the maximum payments under this
Section 7 2 by the Indemnifying Party)

(6) If the Representative does not assume defense of the Third Party Claim, the Indemnufied Party shall have the right to defend
such claim in such manner as 1t may deem appropriate at the cost and expense of the Indemnifying Party, and the Indemnifying Party
will promptly reimburse the Indemmified Party therefor in accordance with this Section 7 2(b)

(7) If the Indemnified Party 1s a Parent Indemnified Party, the retmbursement of fees, costs and expenses incurred by the
defending party as required by this Section 7 2(b) shall be made from the Escrow Fund by periodic payments during the course of the
invesugations or defense, as and when bills are received or expenses incurred

(c) Other Claims 1In the event any Indemnified Party should have a claim under Section 7 2(a) that does not involve a Third Party
Claim being asserted against or sought to be collected from such Indemnified Party, the Indemnified Party shall deliver written notice
of such claim with reasonable promptness and stating the nature, basis and amount of the claim 1n reasonable detail to the
Representative, who shall in turn notify the Indemnifying Party The failure by any Indemnified Party to so notify the Representative,
or the Representative to so notify the Indemnifying Party, as the case may be, shall not relieve any hiabihity under Section 7 2(a),
except to the extent that the ability to defend such claim or demand shall have been prejudiced as a result of such failure If the
Indemnifying Party disputes the liability with respect to such claim, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall proceed in
good faith to negotiate a resolution of such dispute and, 1f not resolved through negotiations, such dispute shall be resolved by
litigation 1n an appropriate court of competent jurisdiction
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(d) Ternunation of Indemnification

(1) The nghts of the Parent Indemnified Parties to be indemnified, defended and held harmless under Section 7 2(a)(1) shall
termunate at 11 59 pm EST on the Claim Date, provided, however, that such obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall
not terminate with respect to any item as to which the Person to be indemnified or the related party thereto shall have, before the
expiration of the applicable period, previously made a claim by delivering a notice of such claim (stating in reasonable detail the basis
and amount of such claim) to the Company and Preferred Stockholders

(2) The nghts of the Company Indemnified Parties to be indemnified, defended and held harmless under Section 7 2(a)(2) shall
terminate at 11 59 pm EST on the Claim Date, provided, however, that such obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall
not terminate with respect to any item as to which the Person to be indemnified or the related party thereto shall have, before the
expiration of the applicable period, previously made a claim by delivering a notice of such claim (stating in reasonable detail the basis
and amount of such claim) to Parent

(e) Escrow Fund, Maximum Payments, Remedy

(1) By virtue of this Section 7 2 and as security for the indemnity obligations provided for in Section 7 2(a) hereof, at the
Effective Time, Parent will deposit with the Escrow Agent the Escrowed Consideration as provided 1n Section 2 6(a) Solely for
purposes of this Section 7 2 and the allocation of interests in the Escrow Fund among the Preferred Stockholders, and without
limitation of the amount of the Escrow Fund available for satisfaction of claims by the Parent Indemnified Parties under this Section
7 2, each Preferred Stockholder shall be deemed to have received and deposited such Preferred Stockholder's pro rata share of the
Escrow Fund with the Escrow Agent as provided in Section 2 5(a) of this Agreement The Escrow Fund shall be deposited with, and
shall be held by, the Escrow Agent and shall be available to compensate the Parent Indemnified Parties for any claims by such parties
for any Losses suffered or incurred by them and for which they are entitled to recovery under this Agreement Claims by the Parent
Indemnified Parties under this Section 7 2 for Losses shall be imited to, and shall be satisfied solely from, the Escrow Fund

(2) Any payment to any Parent Indemnified Party under this Section 7 2 from the Escrow Fund shall be deemed made by each of
the Preferred Stockholders in their respective Allocated Portions The “Allocated Portion” of any Preferred Stockholder shall be such
amount that bears the same relationship to the total payment to any Parent Indemnified Party as the value of the Merger Consideration
to be received by such Preferred Stockholder bears to the Total Merger Consideration
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(3) Claims by the Company Indemnified Parties under this Section 7 2 for Losses shall be limited to, and shall not exceed, an
amount equal to the Escrow Amount, reduced dollar—for—dollar by the amount, if any, of any direct or indirect payment by or on
behalf of Parent to any Stockholder or former Stockholder, in each case in 1ts capacity as a Stockholder or former Stockholder, by
reason of any claim, statutory or otherwise, 1n respect of the Merger or this Agreement or the Interim Agreement that 1s made other
than under this Section 7 2 (other than (1) the payment of the Merger Consideration as provided in this Agreement, (11) payments by
Parent to the extent that any such payment 1s by reason of a loss, claim, damage or hiability ansing out of or based upon any untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement or omussion or alleged omission 1n written materials furmished by Company to the Stockholders,
1n connection with the solicitation of the Stockholders of their approval of this Agreement, in reliance upon and 1n conformity with
written information furnished to Company by or on behalf of Parent specifically for mcluston 1n such furnished written materials, and
(1) payments made to any Stockholders for breach by Parent of any obligation of Parent under this Agreement that 1s expressly stated
herein to be for the benefit of such Stockholder) No payment by Parent of Losses to any Company Indemnified Party shall be made
until the expiration of Parent's indemnification period, as set forth in Section 7 2(d)(2), and any such payment may be withheld or
reduced (x) pending the final resolution of any claim that would have reduced the Escrow Amount indemnity obligation of Parent as
provided above in this Section 7 2(e)(3) had payment thereof been made prior to such expiration date and as to which Parent shall
have, before such expiration date, given notice of such claim (stating n reasonable detail the basis and amount of such claim) to the
Company and Preferred Stockholders and (y) by the amount at 1ssue in such claim

() Basket Amount Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 7 2 to the contrary, but subject to the proviso below 1n this
sentence, an Indemnified Party may not recover any Losses under Section 7 2(a) hereof unless and until such Losses exceed $50,000
(the “Basket Amount”), n which case the Indemnified Party shall be entitled to recover all Losses, including the Basket Amount,
provided that Parent may recover any amount described under Section 7 2(a)(1)(u1), (1) or (1v) upon occurrence and without regard to
the Basket Amount

(g) Insurance, Tux Benefit, Mingation

(1) All indemnification or reimbursement payments required pursuant to this Section 7 2 shall be (1) made net of all insurance
proceeds actually received by the party to be indemnified, and (1) reduced to take account of any net tax benefit when and as realized
by the indemnified party arising from the incurrence or payment of any Loss In the event a payment has been made without reduction
(in whole or 1n part) because any net tax benefit has not yet been realized (in whole or 1n part), the indemnified party shall reimburse
the paying party promptly at the time of the realization of the net tax benefit Proceeds recetved from an insurance carrier which are
subject to a reservation of rights by the carrier that has not been released 1n writing by the carrier (“Reserved Insurance Proceeds™)
shall be taken 1nto account 1n the calculation of Losses once received by the party to be indemnified, provided, however, that Reserved
Insurance Proceeds with respect to which the insurance carrier subsequently obtains reimbursement shall be deemed to be Losses on a
dollar for dollar basis with the amount by which Losses were previously reduced as a result of the recetpt of such proceeds Parent
Indemnified Parties and Company Indemmified Parties shall each use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a release of a
reservation of rights from the msurance carrier promptly following the settlement or final adjudication of the claim or proceeding to
which the Reserved Insurance Proceeds related

(2) Each Indemnified Party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate Losses, including seeking recovery under
insurance policies If a Parent Indemnified Party 1s the Indemnified Party, 1t shall reimburse the Escrow Fund (if the Escrow
Agreement 1s still in effect) or the Preferred Stockholders (if the Escrow Agreement has been terminated), or 1f a Company
Indemnified Party 1s the Indemnified Party, 1t shall reimburse Parent, for any Loss indemnified by them to the extent all or a portion of
such Loss (net of reasonable collection costs) is subsequently recovered by the Indemnified Party under any such insurance, but in
each case only to the extent that the amount of such recovery exceeds the amount of the Losses claimed by such Indemnified Party
that have not been paid to such Indemnified Party because of the imitations of Section 7 2(e) hereof
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(h) Exclusive Remedy

(1) From and after the Closing and to the fullest extent allowed by law, the indemnification pursuant to this Section 7 2 shall be
the exclusive remedy of the Parent Indemnified Parties for any Loss or Losses arising out of or by reason of or as a result of any
matter described 1n clause (1), (1) or (1) of Section 7 2(a)(1)

(2) From and after the Closing and to the fullest extent allowed by law, the indemnification pursuant to this Agreement shall be
the exclusive remedy of the Company Indemnified Parties for any Loss or Losses anising out of or by reason of or as a result of any
matter described in Section 7 2(a)(2)

(3) Notwithstanding the foregoing in this Section 7 2(h), nothing herein shall prevent any of the Indemnified Parties from
bringing an action based upon allegations of fraud or other intentional breach of an obligation of or with respect to any party in
connection with this Agreement or the Interim Agreement
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ARTICLE VIII
TERMINATION

81 Termmnation of Agreement The Parties may terminate this Agreement and the Merger may be abandoned as provided below at
any time prior to the Effective Time before or after the approval by the Stockholders or Merger Sub stockholder

(a) the Parties may terminate this Agreement by mutual written consent of Parent and Company with the prior authorization of their
respective board of directors,

(b) Parent may terminate this Agreement with the prior authorization of the Parent Board by giving written notice to Company at
any time prior to the Closing in the event Company has breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements
contained in this Agreement 1n any material respect, or any such representation or warranty shall have become untrue or incorrect after
the execution of this Agreement, such that Section 6 2(a) or Section 6 2(b), as the case may be, would not be satisfied, and (x) such
breach is not reasonably capable of being cured prior to the Termination Date or (y) 1n the case of a breach of a covenant or
agreement, 1f such breach 1s reasonably capable of being cured prior to the Termination Date, such breach shall not have been cured
prior to the Termination Date,

(c) Company may terminate this Agreement with the prior authorization of the Company Board by giving written notice to Parent
at any time prior to the Closing in the event Parent or Merger Sub has breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements contained in this Agreement in any matenial respect, or any such representation or warranty shall have become untrue or
incorrect after the execution of this Agreement, such that Section 6 3(a) or Section 6 3(b), as the case may be, would not be satisfied,
and (x) such breach is not reasonably capable of being cured prior to the Termination Date or (y) 1n the case of a breach of a covenant
or agreement, 1f such breach 1s reasonably capable of being cured prior to the Termination Date, such breach shall not have been cured
prior to the Termination Date, and

(d) erther Company or Parent may terminate this Agreement with the prior authorization of its respective board of directors by
giving written notice to the other Party 1f (1) the Closing shall not have occurred on or before March 31, 2006 (the “Ternination
Date”), by reason of the failure of any condition precedent under ARTICLE VI hereof, or (1) there shall be any law or regulation that
makes consummation of the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited or any judgment, ijunction, order or decree of any court or
governmental body having competent jurisdiction enjoining Company or Parent from consummating the Merger and such judgment,
tnjunction, order or decree shall have become final and nonappealable, provided that the nght to terminate this Agreement pursuant to
this Section 8 1(d) shall not be available to any Party that has breached its obligations under this Agreement or under any other
agreement contemplated hereunder in any manner that shall have proximately contributed to the occurrence of the failure of a
condution to the consummation of the Merger

82 Effect of Termination If this Agreement 1s terminated pursuant to Section 8 1, all nights and obligations of the Parties hereunder
shall terminate without any hability of any Party to any other Party, except that the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement and
the provisions of Sections 8 2 and 9 11 shall survive any such termination, and provided, however, except as otherwise provided

herein, no such termination shall relieve any Party of any hability or damages resulting from any willful or intentional breach of any
covenant in this Agreement
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ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOQOUS

91 Press Releases and Public Announcements The nitial press release disclosing this Agreement shall be a press release 1ssued
Jomtly by Parent and Company Company shall 1ssue no press releases or otherwise make any public announcements with respect to
the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement without the express written consent of Parent Parent shall
consult with Company prior to 1ssuing any press releases or otherwise making public announcements with respect to the Merger and
the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and, except as may be required by applicable Laws or by obligations pursuant
to any hsting agreement with or rules of Nasdag or by the request of any Governmental Entity, will not 1ssue any such press releases
or make any such public statement prior to such consultation Company and Parent each shall consult with the other prior to making
any filings with any third party or any Governmental Entity (including any national securities exchange) with respect thereto

92 No Third—Party Beneficiaries This Agreement 1s not intended to, and does not, confer any rights or remedies hereunder upon
any Person other than the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns, provided, however, that (a) the Stockholders
shall be deemed third party beneficiaries solely with respect to the right to receive the Per Share Merger Consideration pursuant to
ARTICLE II hereof, (b) the Indemnified Parties shall be deemed third party beneficiaries solely with respect to Section 7 2 and (c) the
Indemnified Persons shall be deemed third party beneficiaries solely with respect to Section 5 5

93 Ennre Agreement This Agreement and the other documents referred to herein, including the Confidentiality Agreement, the
Escrow Agreement and the Intenim Agreement constitute the entire agreement among the Parties and supersede all other prior
understandings, agreements or representations by or among the Parties, written or oral, to the extent they relate m any way to the
subject matter hereof
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94 Binding Effect, Assignment This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective
successors and permitted assigns This Agreement shall not be assignable by operation of law or otherwise, provided, however, that
Parent may designate, by wrnitten notice to Company, another wholly owned direct or indirect subsidiary to be a Constituent
Corporation 1n lieu of Merger Sub, in which event all references herein to Merger Sub shall be deemed references to such other
subsidiary, except that all representations and warranties made herein with respect to Merger Sub as of the date of this Agreement
shall be deemed representations and warranties made with respect to such other subsidiary as of the date of such designation, provided
that any such designation shall not relieve Parent or Merger Sub of any of its obligations hereunder or materially impede or delay the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise materially impede the rights of the Stockholders
under this Agreement Any purported assignment in violation of this Agreement will be void ab itio

95 Counterparts This Agreement may be executed (including by facsimile) in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original instrument but all of which together will constitute the same instrument

96 Headings The table of contents and headings contained 1n this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, do not
constitute part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to mit or otherwise affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement

97 Notices Any notice, request, demand, claim or other communication or document to be given hereunder shall be in writing and
delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, by facsimile or by overnight
courier, addressed to the intended recipient as set forth below
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If to Company

NT CORPORATION

3300 North Pace Boulevard

Pensacola, FL 30505

Attention Danyelle Kennedy, Chief Financial Officer

Facsimile (850) 470-9641

with a copy(which shall not conshtute notice) to
Latham & Watkins LLP

555 Eleventh Street, NW, Suite 1000
Washmgton, D C 20004

Attention David M McPherson

Facsimile (202) 637-1080

If to Parent

TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC

6805 Route 202

New Hope, PA 18938

Attention Aloysius T Lawn, IV, Executive Vice President — General Counsel

Facsimile 215 862 1960
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with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to
Arnold & Porter LLP

399 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10022

Attention Jonathan C Stapleton, Esq

Facsimile (212) 715~1111

If to Merger Sub

THNETCO, INC

c/o TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC

6805 Route 202

New Hope, PA 18938

Attention Aloysius T Lawn, IV, Executive Vice President — General Counsel

Facsimile 215 862 1960
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with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to
Amold & Porter LLP

399 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10022

Attention Jonathan C Stapleton, Esq

Facsimile (212) 7151111,

or to such other persons or addresses as may be designated in writing by the party to receive such notice as provided above Any
notice, request, instruction or other communication or document given as provided above shall be deemed given to the recerving party
upon actual receipt, 1f delivered personally, three business days after deposit in the mail, 1f sent by registered or certified mail, upon
confirmation of successful transmission 1f sent by facsimile (provided that 1f given by facsimile such notice, request, instruction or
other document shall be followed up within one business day by dispatch pursuant to one of the other methods described herein), or on
the next business day after deposit with an overnight courier, 1f sent by an overnight courier

98 Governing Law THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CHOICE OR CONFLICT OF
LAW PROVISION OR RULE (WHETHER OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION) THAT
WOULD CAUSE THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE STATE OF
DELAWARE.
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99 Amendments and Waivers The Parties may mutually amend any provision of this Agreement at any time prior to the Effective
Time with the prior authorization of their respective boards of directors, except that any amendment will be subject to the restrictions
contained n the Delaware Law, to the extent applicable No amendment of any provision of this Agreement shall be vahd unless the
same shall be in writing and signed by all of the Parties The conditions to each of the Parties' obligations to consummate the Merger
are for the sole benefit of such Party and may be waived by such Party in whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable Laws
No waiver by any Party of any default, misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder, whether intentional or not,
shall be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation or breach of warranty or covenant hereunder or affect
1n any way any rights arising by virtue of any such prior or subsequent occurrence

910 Severabiity The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the other provisions hereof If any provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof to any Person or any circumstance, 1s invalid or unenforceable, (a) a suitable and equitable provision shall be substituted
therefor in order to carry out, so far as may be valid and enforceable, the intent and purpose of such invalid or unenforceable provision
and (b) the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other Persons or circumstances shall not be affected
by such invalidity or unenforceability, nor shall such invalidity or unenforceability affect the validity or enforceability of such
provision, or the application thereof, in any other junisdiction

9 11 Expenses Except as expressly set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, each of Company and Parent shall bear its own costs and
expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby

912 Survival This ARTICLE IX and the agreements of Company, Parent and Merger Sub contained in Sections 5 5, 5 6 and 7 2
shall survive the consummation of the Merger This ARTICLE IX and the agreements of Company, Parent and Merger Sub contained
in Section 9 11 (Expenses) and Section 8 2 (Effect of Termination) and the Confidentiality Agreement shall survive the termination of
this Agreement If the Merger shall be consummated, the representations and warranties of Company set forth in ARTICLE I and the
representations and warranties of Parent set forth in ARTICLE 1V shall survive the consummation of the Merger for the period set
forth in Section 7 |, except as otherwise set forth in this Section 9 12, all other representations, warranties, covenants and agreements
in this Agreement shall not survive the consummation of the Merger or the termination of this Agreement

913 Construction

(a) The Parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement In the event an ambiguity or question
of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as 1f drafted jointly by the Parties and no presumption or burden of
proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement
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(b) The Parties intend that each representation, warranty and covenant contained herein shall have independent significance If
any Party has breached any representation, warranty or covenant contained herein 1n any respect, the fact that there exists another
representation, warranty or covenant relating to the same subject matter (regardless of the relative levels of specificity) that the Party
has not breached shall not detract from or mitigate the fact that the Party 1s in breach of the first representation, warranty or covenant

(c) Each of Company and Parent has or may have set forth information 1n 1ts respective disclosure letter in a section thereof that
corresponds to the section of this Agreement to which 1t relates A matter set forth 1n one section of a disclosure letter need not be set
forth 1n any other section of the disclosure letter so long as its relevance to the latter section of the disclosure letter or section of this
Agreement 1s readily apparent on the face of the information disclosed in the disclosure letter to the Person to which such disclosure 1s
being made The fact that any 1tem of information 1s disclosed 1n such a disclosure letter shall not be construed to mean that such
information 1s required to be disclosed pursuant to this Agreement Such information and the dollar thresholds set forth herein shall
not be used as a basis for interpreting the terms “material,” “Material Adverse Effect” or other similar terms 1n this Agreement

914 Incorporation of Exhibits and Schedules The Exhibits and Schedules identified in this Agreement are incorporated herein by
reference and made a part hereof

915 Specific Performance Each of the Parties acknowledges and agrees that the other Parties would be damaged irreparably 1n the
event any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with their specific terms or otherwise are breached
Accordingly, each of the Parties agrees that the other Parties shall be entitled to an injunction or other equitable relief to prevent
breaches of the provisions of this Agreement and to enforce specifically this Agreement and the terms and provisions hereof in any
action mstituted 1n any court of the United States or any state thereof having jurisdiction over the Parties and the matter (subject to the
provisions set forth in Section 9 16 below), in addition to any other remedy to which they may be entitled, at law or in equity
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916 Submussion to Jurisdiction Each Party irrevocably submits to the junisdiction of the courts of the State of Delaware and the
federal courts of the United States of America located 1n the State of Delaware for the purposes of any suit, action or other proceeding
ansing out of this Agreement and of the documents referred to in this Agreement and any transaction contemplated hereby Each Party
wrevocably and unconditionally waives any objection to the laying of venue of any action, suit or proceeding arising out of this
Agreement or any transaction contemplated hereby 1n said courts and hereby further irrevocably and unconditionally waives and
agrees not to plead or claim n any such court that any such action, suit or proceeding brought n any such court has been brought in an
inconvemient forum Each Party further irrevocably consents to the service of process out of any of the aforementioned courts in any
such suit, action or other proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by mail to such party at its address set forth in this Agreement,
such service of process to be effective upon acknowledgment of receipt of such registered mail, provided that nothing 1n this Section

9 16 shall affect the nght of any party to serve legal process in any other manner permutted by law The consent to jurisdiction set forth
1n this Section 9 16 shall not constitute a general consent to service of process m the State of Delaware and shall have no effect for any
purpose except as provided in this Section 9 16 The parties agree that a final judgment 1n any such suit, action or proceeding shall be
conclusive and may be enforced in other junsdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law

917 Waiver of Jury Trial EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY THAT MAY
ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES, AND
THEREFORE EACH SUCH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT
SUCH PARTY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS
AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (i) NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR
ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER
PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER, (ii) EACH
PARTY UNDERSTANDS AND HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF THIS WAIVER, (iii) EACH PARTY
MAKES THIS WAIVER VOLUNTARILY, AND (iv) EACH PARTY HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS
AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION
9.17.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective the date first above written

NT CORPORATION

By /s/Leo]J Cyr

Name LeoJ Cyr

Title President and CEO

THNETCO, INC.
By (s/ Aloysius T. Lawn IV
Name Aloysius T Lawn IV

Title EVP & Secretary

TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC.

By /s/ Aloysius T Lawn IV

Name Aloysius T Lawn IV

Title EVP — General Counsel




EXHIBIT A
Form of Escrow Agreement

ESCROW AGREEMENT

This ESCROW AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) 1s dated as of [Closing Date], 2005, by and among TALK AMERICA
HOLDINGS, INC.., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), VIC PARKER, as representative of the Stockholders (as defined below)
(“Representative™), and | ] (the “Escrow Agent”™)

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Parent, THNETCO, INC , a Delaware corporation and a subsidiary of Parent (“Merger Sub™), and NT Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (“*Company™), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 18, 2005 (the “Merger
Agreement”), pursuant to which Parent agreed to acquire all of the outstanding shares of common stock, $0 01 par value per share (the
“Common Stock”), and preferred stock, $0 O1 par value per share (the “Preferred Stock”), of Company pursuant to a merger of Merger
Sub with and into Company (the “Merger”),

WHEREAS, at and as of the effective ime of the Merger, each 1ssued and outstanding share of Preferred Stock and Common Stock
will be converted into the right to recerve cash,

WHEREAS, certain indemnification obligations exist under the Merger Agreement, which obligations are to be satisfied from cash
(together with all earnings on and income from the amounts held hereunder, the “Escrow Assets™) deposited with, and to be held and
disposed of by, the Escrow Agent under this Agreement, which Escrow Assets are, 1n accordance with the terms of the Merger
Agreement, to be withheld from the Merger Consideration (as defined in the Merger Agreement) otherwise payable to the holders of
Preferred Stock identified on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Stockholders™) and n the respective amounts set forth 1n such Exhibit A,

WHEREAS, Representative has agreed to act as Stockholders' agent hereunder, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein,
and

WHEREAS, to provide for the appropriate administration of the Escrow Assets, Parent, Company and Representative desire to
establish an escrow account with the Escrow Agent subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Parent, Company, Representative and the Escrow Agent (collectively, the “Parnes”
and sometimes, individually, a “Party”), intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows




I Appointment Parent, Company and Representative hereby appoint the Escrow Agent as escrow agent, and the Escrow Agent
hereby accepts such appointment, on the terms and conditions set forth herein Representative shall act hereunder as the
attorney—in—fact and agent of Stockholders, which Representative shall have full authority to act for and on behalf of
Stockholders with respect to the Escrow Assets for all purposes of this Agreement Representative's authority to act hereunder
shall not be affected by the death, incapacity, illness, dissolution or other inability to act of any of the Stockholders

I Establishment of Escrow

A Concurrently herewith, Parent 1s depositing with the Escrow Agent cash representing the total amount of the Escrow

Assets The Escrow Agent hereby acknowledges receipt of cash 1n an amount of §[ ] constituting the
Escrow Assets

The Escrow Agent shall invest and reinvest the Escrow Assets as directed in Section IV Any earnings on the amount
B of the Escrow Assets shall be credited to and become part of the Escrow Assets and may be reinvested as provided n
Section IV and any loss on the investment of the Escrow Assets shall be charged against the Escrow Assets

The Escrow Agent shall hold the Escrow Assets deposited with the Escrow Agent under this Agreement pursuant to

C and 1n accordance with this Agreement, and shall disburse the Escrow Assets only when and to the extent required by
Section IIT hereof




Il Dustributions from Escrow, Escrow Period

A Ifatany ime and from time to time Parent advises the Escrow Agent in writing (with a copy to Representative 1n the
manner set forth in Section X hereof) (such notice, a “Claim”) (a) that Parent 1s entitled to indemnification pursuant to
Section 7 2 of the Merger Agreement, identifying the basis for such claim and the provision of the Merger Agreement
upon which the claim 1s based, and (b) of the amount of indemnification due (the “Indemnity Amount™), then the
Escrow Agent shall, within 15 Banking Days (as defined below) after the date of the written notice from Parent, deliver
Escrow Assets 1n an amount equal to the Indemnity Amount to Parent, unless the Escrow Agent shall have received,
within 10 Banking Days after the date of the written notice from Parent, a written objection from Representative to
such delivery setting forth the amount 1n dispute, 1n which case the Escrow Agent shall deliver any undisputed amount
to Parent, and shall continue to hold the disputed amount until either (A) receipt of a certificate signed by Parent and
Representative directing the Escrow Agent to deliver Escrow Assets 1n an amount equal to the Indemnity Amount set
forth in such certificate to Parent or (B) receipt of a formal order of a court of competent Junisdiction directing the
Escrow Agent to deliver Escrow Assets in an amount equal to the Indemmity Amount specified 1n such order to Parent
Escrow Agent has the right to institute upon a Bill of Interpleader, should a controversy arise The term “Banking
Days” shall mean days other than Saturdays, Sundays or days on which banks in the State of New York may be closed

B The release of Escrow Assets by the Escrow Agent to Parent of the Indemnity Amount in respect of any Claim 1n
accordance with this Section III shall be made from the Escrow Assets in proportion to the respective interests of the *
Stockholders, as set forth in Exhibit A

C The Escrow Agent shall disburse to the Stockholders (a) on the first business day that 1s at least 270 days after the [date
hereof] [Closing Date], an amount equal to 50% of the Interim Escrow Amount (as defined below), to be distributed to
each Stockholder in proportion to 1ts respective interest as sct forth in Exhibit A, and (b) within 10 days after the Claim
Date, the remaining Escrow Assets, (x) less the aggregate Indemnity Amounts related to all Claims made pursuant to
Section ITT A and not yet resolved as of the Claim Date and (y) less (1) any unpaid Escrow Agent fees or Escrow Agent
expenses payable by the Representative on behalf of Stockholders and then (11) any unpaid Representative claims
pursuant to Section IX or expenses pursuant to Section X hereto, which amount shall be distributed to each Stockholder
n accordance with the remaining cash constituting part of the Escrow Assets attributable to such Stockholder as set
forth in Exhibit A “Interim Escrow Amount” means, as of any date, the aggregate amount of Escrow Assets held by the
Escrow Agent pursuant to this Agreement as of such date, as such amount 1s reduced by the aggregate Indemnity
Amounts related to all Claims made pursuant to Section III A and not yet resolved

D Upon receipt by the Escrow Agent from time to time and at any time during the term of this Agreement of joint written
instructions executed by Representative and Parent or a court order from a court of competent jurisdiction directing
disbursement of Escrow Assets, the Escrow Agent shall promptly disburse Escrow Assets then held by 1t to the persons
and 1n the amounts specified therein

E Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Escrow Agent shall not be required at any time to
disburse more than the aggregate amount of Escrow Assets then held by 1t

F Nothing contained herein shall obligate or be construed to obligate Representative or Parent to submut any dispute or
claim to arbitration




1V Investment of Escrow Assets

A During the term of this Agreement, at the joint written direction of Parent and Representative, Escrow Assets deposited
shall be invested 1n an interest—bearing money market account or other pooling arrangement that exclusively purchases
and holds investments itemized 1n Exhibit B All interest and other income earned on the Escrow Assets shall be added
to and be a part of the Escrow Assets Periodic statements will be provided to Parent and Representative reflecting
transactions executed in the Escrow Assets Parent and Representative, upon written request, shall receive a statement
of transaction details upon completion of any securities transaction 1n the Escrow Assets without any additional cost
The Escrow Agent shall have the right to liquidate any investments held 1n order to provide funds necessary to make
required payments under this Agreement The Escrow Agent shall have no liability for any loss sustained as a result of
any investment in an investment indicated on Exhibit B or any investment made pursuant to the joint written
Investment instructions of Parent and Representative or as a result of any liquidation of any investment prior to its
maturity 1n order to provide funds necessary to make required payments under this Agreement or for the failure of
Representative or Parent to give the Escrow Agent instructions to invest or reinvest the Escrow Assets

B Any earnings or loss on investment of the Escrow Assets shall be allocated as to each Stockholder in the respective
proportion of Escrow Assets for such Stockholder set forth in Exhibit A The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that
any interest or other income earned on the Escrow Assets shall constitute gross income of the Stockholders for all
income tax purposes, and the Stockholders shall file all income tax returns (including without limitation, information
returns) 1n a2 manner consistent with such treatment Representative shall provide Escrow Agent with such written
information as 1s necessary for the Escrow Agent to determine each Stockholder's share of any income earned on the
Escrow Assets for income tax reporting purposes (including, without limitation, the preparation and filing of all IRS
Form 1099s) The Escrow Agent shall distribute to the Stockholders throughout the term of this Agreement, on or
about each April 1, June 1, September 1 and January 1, 48% of the interest or other income earned on the Escrow
Assets since the later of the date hereof or the determination date for the most recent such payment

C The Escrow Agent may make investments permitted by this Section through or from 1ts own bond department or trust
investments department, or 1ts parent's or affiliate's bond department or trust investments department Except as
otherwise provided hereunder or agreed in writing among the parties hereto, Representative, for and on behalf of the
Stockholders, shall retain the authority to institute, participate and join in any plan of reorgamization, readjustment,
merger or consohdation with respect to the issuer of any securities held hereunder, and, in general, to exercise each and
every other power or night with respect to each such asset or investment as individuals generally have and enjoy with
respect to their own assets and investment, including power to vote upon any securities Parent and Representative
acknowledge that regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency grant the Stockholders the right to receive brokerage
confirmations of the security transactions as they occur Representative, for and on behalf of the Stockholders,
specifically waives such notification to the extent permitted by law and will receive periodic cash transaction
statements which will detail all investment transactions

4




V' Responsibilities and Duties of Escrow Agent

A

The Escrow Agent shall not incur any liability for following the instructions herein contained or provided for in any
written instructions given jointly by Representative and Parent In the event that the Escrow Agent shall be uncertain as
to 1ts duties or nights hereunder, shall fail to recerve written instructions or shall recerve instructions, claims or demands
from any other Party that, in 1ts opinion, conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement, 1t shall be entitled to
reframn from taking any action and its sole obligation shall be to keep safely all property held in escrow until it shall be
directed otherwise i writing by all of the other Parties or by a final order or judgment of a court of competent
Jurisdiction

The Escrow Agent may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting on any written notice, instruction
or request furmished to 1t hereunder The Escrow Agent shall not have any responsibility for the genuineness or vahdity
of any document or other material presented to or deposited with 1t nor any hability for any action taken, suffered or
omitted 1n accordance with any written instructions or certificates given to 1t hereunder and believed by it to be signed
by the proper party or parties

The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken by 1t in good faith and believed by 1t to be authorized or
within the rights or powers conferred on 1t by this Agreement The Escrow Agent may consult with counsel of its
choice, and shall not be hable for any action taken, suffered or omitted by 1t 1n good faith 1n accordance with the
opinion of such counsel

The Escrow Agent shall not be required to institute legal proceedings of any kind and shall not be required to initiate or
defend any legal proceedings that may be instituted agamnst 1t by third parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement If the Escrow Agent does elect to act it will do so only to the extent that 1t 1s indemnified to 1ts satisfaction
against the cost and expense of such defense or initiation

The duties and responsibilities of the Escrow Agent are those herein specifically provided and no other The Escrow
Agent shall not have any liability under, or duty to inquire into, the terms and provisions of the Indemnification
Agreement or of any other agreement or instrument, other than this Agreement Its duties are ministerial in nature and,
the Escrow Agent shall not incur any liability whatsoever other than for its own willful misconduct or gross negligence
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VI

viI

VIII

Escrow Agent Indemnification Parent and Representative, for and on behalf of the Stockholders, hereby, jointly and severally,
agree to indemnufy, defend and hold the Escrow Agent harmless from and against any and all loss, damage, tax, hability and
expense that may be incurred by the Escrow Agent arising out of or in connection with its duties, obligations or performance
as escrow agent under this Agreement, except as caused by 1ts gross negligence or willful misconduct, including the legal costs
and expenses of defending itself against or initiating any claim or liability in connection with its performance hereunder The
terms of this paragraph shall survive the termination of (1) this Agreement and (1), with respect to claims arising in connection
with the Escrow Agent's duties while acting as such, the resignation or remaval of the Escrow Agent

Escrow Agent Fee, Expenses of Escrow Agent Each of Parent and Representative, for and on behalf of the Stockholders,
agrees to pay one—half of the fees of the Escrow Agent for its services hereunder as and when billed by the Escrow Agent or to
reimburse the Escrow Agent on request for one—half of all expenses, disbursements and advances, including reasonable
attorneys fees, incurred or made by the Escrow Agent in connection with carrying out its duties hereunder The payment
obligations of Representative, on behalf of the Stockholders, shall be paid out of, and charged against, the Escrow Assets, to
the extent thereof

Discharge and Resignation of Escrow Agent The Escrow Agent may resign and be discharged from 1ts duties or obligations
hereunder by giving Representative and Parent at least thirty (30) days prior notice 1in writing of such resignation, but such
resignation shall not be effective until a successor escrow agent shall have been appointed and shall have accepted such
appointment in writing As soon as practicable after its resignation, the Escrow Agent shall turn over to a successor escrow
agent appointed by Representative and Parent the Escrow Assets on presentation of the document appointing the successor
escrow agent and its acceptance thereof, whereupon all of the Escrow Agent's duties and obligations hereunder shall cease and
terminate If no successor escrow agent 1s so appointed within the 30-day period following such notice of resignation, the
resigning Escrow Agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor escrow agent
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IX

XI

X1l

Representative Indemnification Stockholders shall, jointly and severally, agree to indemnify, defend and hold Representative
harmless from and against any and all loss, damage, tax, hability and expense that may be incurred by Representative arising
out of or 1n connection with his/her duties, obligations or performance as Representative under this Agreement, except as
caused by his/her gross negligence or willful misconduct, including the legal costs and expenses of defending himself/herself
against or mnitiating any claim or hability in connection with his/her performance hereunder Representative shall not have any
liabihty under the terms or provisions of this agreement or instrument for any action taken or not taken in performance of
his/her duties under this Agreement, except for such liability as arises from Representative's gross negligence or willful
misconduct The terms of this paragraph shall survive the termination of (1) this Agreement and (11), with respect to claims
ansing in connection with Representative's duties while acting as such, the resignation or removal of Representative

Discharge and Resignation of Representative, Expenses of Representative Representative may resign from his/her duties or
obligations hereunder by giving Parent and Escrow Agent at least thirty (30) days prior notice in writing of such resignation In
addition, the Stockholders to whom at least 50% of the Escrow Assets are deemed attributable as set forth in Exhibit A (the
“Required Stockholder Interest”) may discharge Representative of histher duties or obligations hereunder by giving Parent and
Escrow Agent at least thirty (30) days prior notice 1n writing of such discharge Prior to the effective time of any resignation or
discharge of Representative, the Required Stockholder Interest shall provide written notice to Parent and Escrow Agent of a
successor Representative Upon the death or incapacity of Representative, the Required Stockholder Interest shall provide
prompt written notice to Parent and Escrow Agent of a successor Representative Any and all costs and expenses incurred by
Representative in connection with any action taken as Representative, including any action taken by Representative 1n
enforcing or defending Stockholders rights under this Agreement, shall be reimbursed to such Representative out of the
Escrow Assets in accordance with Section I11 C of this Agreement

Termination This Agreement, except Sections V, VI, VII, IX, and X shall terminate on disbursement of all Escrow Assets

Nouce All notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing, shall be transmitted
by registered or certified mauil, postage prepaid, and shall be addressed, as follows
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When Escrow Agent ts the intended recipient
Attention
Facsimile
If to Parent
TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC
6805 Route 202
New Hope, PA 18938
Attention Aloysius T Lawn, IV, Executive Vice President — General Counsel

Facsimile 215 862 1960




With a copy to

Armold & Porter LLP

399 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10022

Attention Jonathan C Stapleton, Esq
Facsimile (212) 715~1111

When the Representative 1s the intended recipient
Vic Parker

c/o Spectrum Equity

333 Middlefield Road

Suite 200

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Facsimile (415)464-4601




A Party may designate a new address to which notices required or permutted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall thereafter be
transmutted by giving written notice to that effect to the other Parties Each notice transmutted in the manner described 1n this Section
XII shall be deemed to have been given, received and become effective for all purposes at the time 1t shall have been delivered to the
addressee as indicated by the return receipt

XUl Ennre Agreement, Binding Effect, Assignment The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement
among the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
Parties and their respective successors and assigns No Party shall assign any of its rights or delegate any of its duties under
this Agreement (by operation of law or otherwise) without the prior written consent of the other Parties In the case of any
inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall govern

X1V Amendments The Escrow Agent shall not be bound by any modification, amendment, termination, cancellation, rescission or
supersession of this Agreement unless the same shall be in writing and signed by all of the other Parties and, 1f 1ts nghts,
duties, immunities or indemnities as Escrow Agent are affected thereby, unless Escrow Agent shall have given its prior written
consent thereto
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XV

XVI

XVH

Goverming Law, Jurisdiction EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH BELOW, THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DOMESTIC LAWS OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CHOICE, OR CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISION OR RULE
(WHETHER OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION) THAT WOULD CAUSE THE
APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE STATE OF DELAWARE. Each of
the Parties submuts to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in the State of Delaware in any action or proceeding
anising out of or relating to this Agreement and agrees that all claims n respect of the action or proceeding may be heard and
determined tn any such court Each Party also agrees not to bring any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this
Agreement in any other court Each of the parties hereto waives any defense of inconvenient forum to the maintenance of any
action or proceeding so brought and waives any bond, surety or other security that might be required of any other Party with
respect thereto Each Party agrees that a final judgment in any action or proceeding so brought shall be conclusive and may be
enforced by suit on the judgment or 1n any other manner provided by law or at equity EACH OF PARENT, COMPANY,
REPRESENTATIVE (FOR AND ON BEHALF OF ITSELF AND STOCKHOLDERS) AND THE ESCROW AGENT
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ALL RIGHTS TO
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT,
TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

Headings, Counterparts The headings 1n this Agreement have been inserted for conventence of reference only, shall not be
considered a part of this Agreement and shall not limit, modify or affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this

Agreement This Agreement may be signed 1n any number of counterparts

No Modification of Indemnification Agreement Except as expressly provided herein, the rights and obligations of Parent and
Company in this Agreement shall in no way affect their respective nights and obligations under the Merger Agreement

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement effective the date first above written

TALK AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC..

By

Name

Title

s/

(AS REPRESENTATIVE)

[ESCROW AGENT]

By s/

Name

Title




EXHIBIT A

STOCKHOLDER

SHARE OF ESCROW ASSETS

$




Exhibit 99.1

Talk America to Acquire Network Telephone

New Hope, PA and Pensacola, FL, — October 19, 2005 — Talk America (NASDAQ TALK) announced today that 1t has entered into a
definitive agreement to acquire Network Telephone Corporation, a leading faciliies—based communications provider serving business
customers in the BellSouth region The merger will extend Talk America's networking footprint to the Southeast and add significantly
to 1ts commercial services capabilities The transaction will also allow Talk America to realize capital expenditure savings and
networking synergies in the Atlanta market, where NTC has 22 end offices and Talk America has over 25,000 customers

Ed Meyercord, Chief Executive Officer and President of Talk America, said “This will create growth opportunities for both companies
and strengthen our ability to capture market share in the Southeast We will add high—end IP services to NTC's product portfolio
utilizing our soft—switching infrastructure and leverage NTC's extensive networking assets to deliver voice and broadband services to
small and medium sized businesses and consumers in new markets This combination will also accelerate the migration of our Atlanta
customers onto network facilities and add significantly to our commercial revenue base ”

NTC 1s a privately held company based 1n Pensacola, Florida and serves over 16,500 business customers representing more than
150,000 voice and data equivalent lines throughout 8 states in the BellSouth region Among NTC's commercial accounts,
approximately 8,500 are T~1 customers served from 154 end offices NTC provides voice, data, hosting, virtual private network and
data back—up services through an 80—person direct sales force NTC has invested capital of over $240 million

Leo Cyr, Chief Executive Officer and President of NTC, commented “We are excited to become part of the Talk America team They
have executed impressively on their networking buildout in Michigan, migrated over 150,000 voice lines to their own network
facilities and expanded into commercial services through their acquisition of LDMI Talk America has a unique back office capability
and a soft—switching platform that will allow us to leverage our existing networking assets and grow our business ™

Mr Meyercord continued, “The management and employees at NTC bring significant value and depth to our team Their experience
in the commercial market will allow us to elevate our service levels 1n all geographic markets With the acquisition and ntegration of
LDMI and the closing of the NTC transaction, Talk America will be poised for further expansion 1n 2006

At the closing of the transaction, Talk America will pay approximately $20 million, including transaction fees, in exchange for all of
the stock of NTC NTC 1s expected to generate $60 million in revenue and $5 5 million in EBITDA in 2006, including the impact of
merger related synergies Talk America will fund the purchase price out of cash on hand

The NTC transaction has been approved by the board of directors of both companies and 1s subject to certain regulatory approvals,
which both companies expect to receive The companies expect that the transaction will close in early 2006

CONFERENCE CALL

Talk America and Network Telephone management will host a conference call to discuss the acquisition of Network Telephone at
8 00 am ET on October 19, 2005 The call can be accessed by dialing the following US (877) 690—6769, International, (212)
231-2662 A replay of the call will be avatlable through 7 00 p m ET on October 26, 2005 by dialing the following US (800)
633-8284, International (402) 977-9140 The reservation number for the replay 1s 21265900




About NTC

Network Telephone serves more than 16,500 small business customers with phone and Internet services including local and long
distance telephone, high—speed Internet, Web hosting, Data Backup, VPN service, Conferencing, and more The company employs
more than 375 at its headquarters 1n Pensacola, Fla , and at regional sales offices located in Alabama, Louisiana, Mississippi, Florida,
Georgia, Kentucky, North Carolina and Tennessee Network Telephone was named one of America's fastest—growing private
companies by Inc magazine in 2003 and 2004 For more information about Network Telephone, visit the company's Web site at
www networktelephone net

About Talk America

Talk America 1s a leading competitive communications provider that offers phone services and high speed internet access to both
residential and business customers Talk America delivers value in the form of savings, simplicity and quality service to 1ts customers
through 1ts leading edge network and award—winning back office

Please Note The statements contained herein regarding the consummation of the acquisition of

NTC, the future results of NTC and the effects and results of the acquisition on the business and results of operations of Talk America
should be, and certain other of the statements contained herein may be considered forward—looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Such statements are 1dentified by
the use of forward—looking words or phrases, including, but not mited to, "estimates,” "expects," "expected," "anticipates,”
"anticipated,” "forecast,” "guidance,"” and "targets" These forward—looking statements are based on our current expectations

Although we beheve that the expectations reflected in such forward—looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that
such expectations will prove to have been correct Forward—looking statements involve risks and uncertainties and our actual results
could differ materially from our expectations In addition to those factors discussed in the foregoing, important factors that could
cause such actual results to differ matenally include, among others, the non—completion of the NTC acquisition or our inability to
integrate effectively and as anticipated the business of NTC upon the completion of the acquisition, dependence on the availability and
functionality of local exchange carriers' networks as they relate to the unbundled network element platform, failure to establish and
deploy our own local network as we plan to do or to operate 1t in a profitable manner, increased price competition for long distance
and local services, failure of the marketing of the bundle of local and long distance services and long distance services under our direct
marketing channels to a smaller marketing footprint, attrition 1n the number of end users, failure to manage our collection management
systems and credit controls for customers, interruption in our network and information systems, failure to provide adequate customer
service, and changes in government policy, regulation and enforcement and/or adverse judicial or administrative interpretations and
rulings relating to regulations and enforcement, including, but not imited to, the continued availability of the unbundled network
element platform of the local exchange carriers network and unbundled network element pricing methodology

For a discussion of such risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ from those contained in the forward—looking
statements, see the discussions contained in our Quarterly Report on Form 10~Q filed August 9, 2005, our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year—ended December 31, 2004, filed on March 16, 2005, as amended by our Form 10—-K/A filed March 30, 2005, and
any subsequent filings We undertake no obligation to update our forward—looking statements

Contact

Talk America

Jeff Schwartz
215-862-1097
jschwartz@talk.com
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Network Telephone Corporation
and
Talk America Inc.

Officers and Directors



Officers and Directors

Network Telephone Corporation

Officers:
Leo Cyr President and Chief Executive Officer
Charles Emling I Chief Admmmistrative Officer and Executive Vice President of Sales
and Marketing
Danyelle Kennedy-Lantz Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Mark Miller Executive Vice President of Engineering
Directors:
Leo Cyr
Matthew Durney

Thomas Darden
Susan Mason
Victor Parker
Ray Russenberger
Seth Schofield




Talk America Inc.

Officers:

Edward Meyercord, I
Aloysius T Lawn, IV
David G Zahka
Thomas Walsh
Jeffrey Earhart
Warren Brasselle
Timothy Leonard
Craig Pizer

Patrick O'Leary

Mark Wayne

Directors:

Edward Meyercord, III
Aloysius T Lawn, IV
David G. Zahka

Officers and Directors (Cont'd.)

CEO and President
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President — Finance and Treasurer
Executive Vice President — Customer Operations
Executive Vice President — Network Operations

Chief Information Officer
Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Executive Vice President — Business Services
Executive Vice President — Business Sales
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